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About this report

This integrated annual report of Accéntuate 
aims to provide a balanced, understandable 
and complete view of our business by reporting 
on the financial performance and non-financial 
aspects of the group. 
The report covers the identification of and reporting on material 
issues and stakeholder relations affecting the group, as well as key 
performance areas of the business and includes considerations which 
are undertaken to ensure the sustainability of the business. This 
document contains the consolidated annual financial statements 
of Accéntuate Limited and its subsidiaries for the financial year from 
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.

The Accéntuate board confirms its responsibility for the integrity of the 
report, the content of which has been collectively assessed by the 
directors, who believe that all material issues have been addressed. 
The annual financial statements have been audited by the independent 
auditor in terms of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended (“the 
Companies Act”), as indicated in their report, but no other information 
contained in the integrated annual report has been independently 
assured.

The financial statements were prepared under the supervision of the 
chief financial officer, Maarten Coetzee, CA(SA).

The 2018 integrated annual report 
comprises:

 • A review of the group as pertains to the 
2018 full year results.

 • Social, environmental, governance, 
prospects and leadership of the group.

 • Annual financial statements prepared 
and presented in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) and the Companies 
Act of South Africa.

The report is guided by:
 • The King Code on Governance 
Principles for South Africa for 
2016 (“King IV™*).

 • The Companies Act, 71 of 2008, 
as amended.

 • JSE Listings Requirements.

*  Copyrights and trademarks are owned by the 
Institute of Directors in Southern Africa NPC and 
all of its rights are reserved
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This integrated annual report may contain 
certain forward looking statements concerning 
Accéntuate’s operations, business strategy, 
financial conditions, growth plans and 
expectations. These statements include, 
without limitation, those concerning the 
economic outlook, business climate and 
changes in the market. Such views involve 
both known and unknown risks, assumptions, 
uncertainties and important factors that could 
materially influence the actual performance 
of the group. No assurance can be given 
that these will prove to be correct and 
no representation or warranty,expressed 
or implied, is given as to the accuracy 
or completeness of such views contained 
in this announcement.
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Who we are

Accéntuate is a group of companies involved in the water treatment, chemical blending, industrial and 
commercial cleaning and metal treatment sectors, as well as the flooring market.

Accéntuate is a truly South African company, partnered with local and international leaders in their field, and 
in this way is able to fulfil the mandate of consciously supporting economic transformation in the country.

Water treatment
Full spectrum of water treatment solutions 
including chemicals, equipment and 
turnkey projects

Chemical blending 
Total chemical and cleaning  
equipment solutions provider

Specialists in all forms of water and waste water 
treatment and management.

Chief executive officer
Gourish Chakravorty (see pages 14 and 15)

Through a joint venture with Ion Exchange India, Accéntuate 
provides a comprehensive range of water treatment 
chemicals, equipment, technologies and total water 
management solutions to the southern African market.

Gained significant traction in the corporate sector to 
assist in water treatment plants and solutions

 • Water treatment chemicals
 • Ion Exchange resins
 • Reverse osmosis chemicals
 • Flocculants
 • Membranes
 • Waste water treatment plants 
 • Sewage treatment plants
 • Design and consulting
 • Comprehensive turnkey solutions
 • Water installations

Positioned and partnered to benefit 
from water, a strategic commodity

Specialist chemicals business, which provides 
customised, environmentally acceptable chemical, 
equipment, adhesive, metal and water solutions 
directed at the industrial food and beverage and 
commercial markets.

Managing director
Eric Platt (see pages 16 and 17)

Safic, with a manufacturing facility, warehouse and laboratory 
in Johannesburg, is a significant supplier of cleaning 
solutions, speciality process chemicals and adhesives 
to the various identified sectors.

Strong pipeline in place

Cleaning and specialised chemicals and equipment 
specifically for use in:

 • Food
 • Industrial and mining
 • Specialised vehicle care
 • Floor care
 • Commercial property
 • Metal treatment

Diversified to attain critical mass

1 2
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Flooring solutions
Ultimate flooring solutions

As the only South African manufacturer of vinyl 
flooring, FloorworX supplies almost 60% of the 
resilient flooring market in South Africa.

A comprehensive range of wood, access, laminate, 
luxury vinyl and carpet products complement the 
range.

Managing director
Donald Platt (see pages 18 and 19) 

FloorworX is a market leader in the supply of resilient flooring 
products and services to both the public and private sectors. 
It is involved in most forms of floor covering materials, with a 
26 000 m2 manufacturing facility in East London, a 
1 500 m2 access flooring manufacturing facility in 
Wynberg, warehouses in East London and 
Johannesburg and offices in most major centres.

The Pentafloor transaction diversifies FloorworX into 
the access flooring market and adds management talent

 • Floor coverings
 • Wood maintenance
 • Laminated wood floors
 • Access flooring and solutions
 • Engineered wood floors
 • Accessories
 • Self-levelling screeds
 • Textile flooring
 • Vinyl maintenance
 • Transport flooring

Cross-selling across the businesses

Leading supplier in the access flooring market in 
South Africa.

Chief executive officer
Bianca Shakinovsky (see pages 20 and 21) 

Pentafloor supplies affordable, high quality, flexible 
access flooring solutions to a unique and niche market.

The company has grown organically and in 2012 acquired the 
business of Solidfeel Access Flooring and the raised access 
floor division of LaFarge (South Africa) in 2013. These three 
prominent brands have joined forces and have the advantage 
of sharing 60 years of technical expertise and track record 
without compromising each one-of-a-kind brand's individual 
heritage. The company has since acquired the distribution 
rights for SHAW Contract Carpets, making up the group’s 
unique one of a kind, bundled business offering.

Adds diversification to the flooring solutions segment

 • Access floor coverings
 • Access flooring manufacturing
 • Hospitality
 • Carpets
 • Laminate
 • Vinyl
 • Tiles

Cross-selling in the flooring segment 

3
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Value proposition

The board remains committed to profitable growth as the primary generator of value. This fundamental 
has been difficult given the size of the businesses that make up Accéntuate. Macroeconomic conditions 
have also made this growth difficult over the course of recent financial years.

WATER TREATMENT
Positive

 • Total water management solutions 
to homes, communities and industry

 • Cost-effective and appropriate 
technology in which it is used

 • Water crisis in the Eastern and 
Western Cape provinces has 
increased the awareness of water 
recycling

Negative
 • Relatively new player in the market, 

up against established competitors
 • Inadequate presence in southern 

Africa

Key performance indicators

FLOORING SOLUTIONS
Positive

 • Slight increase in tenders 
 • Estimated market share of 60% of 

the vinyl market in South Africa
 • Increased carpet tile market 

penetration 
 • Continued strategy implementation

Negative
 • Substantial reduction in government 

spend on infrastructure and 
slowdown in construction sector

 • Weak and volatile currency
 • Aggressive bidding between 

contractors
 • Fewer projects came on line 

CHEMICAL BLENDING 
Positive

 • Major drive towards a greater portion 
of contract-based income

 • Revitalised sales and marketing 
structure focused on defined markets

Negative
 • Continued depressed economic 

climate
 • Government policy uncertainty
 • Fluctuating exchange rates

Eastern Cape

Western Cape

Free State
KwaZulu-Natal

Gauteng

East London

Cape Town

Bloemfontein
Durban

Johannesburg

South Africa

1

1 2 3 2

1 1 1

2 1

1

4
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Footprint
Accéntuate has strong relationships across 
SADC with distributors in Namibia, Botswana, 
Ghana and Angola, and agents and resellers 
representing our products across a number 
of other African countries.

REGIONAL OFFICES6
FACTORIES3
WAREHOUSES5
SHOWROOMS6
LABORATORIES3

Mission
As a truly African company operating 
within the global economy, we strive to 
provide comprehensive, innovative 
and cost-effective solutions to 
accentuate sustainable development 
and maintenance of infrastructure on the 
African continent.

Vision
We strive to be the partner of choice 
to our targeted industries through 
the provision of world-class 
infrastructural solutions. This will be 
done within a framework embracing 
global benchmarks while taking 
cognisance of local realities.

Values
We accept our position as a responsible 
corporate citizen and therefore uphold 
and respect:

 • the rule of law;
 • responsible and sustainable 
development;

 • trust and respect for individuals and 
communities; and

 • conducting businesses with 
uncompromising integrity.
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The group has spent a large 
part of the year ensuring it 
is positioned correctly.

Chairman’s letter

The past year was marked by a 
severely challenging operating 
environment, which was countered 
by further cost-cutting and an 
increased focus on retaining 
market share.

South Africa, as is the case with many 
emerging markets, is experiencing 
low economic growth, and reduced 
government spend on essential 
infrastructure, education and healthcare. 
It is highly likely that limited spend will 
continue until after the national elections 
in 2019. 

Being a water-scarce country, South 
Africa has, over the past three years, also 
experienced just how devastating a bad 
drought can be. This has, however, 
highlighted the importance of our water 
treatment partnership with Ion Exchange 
(India). Such is the calibre of the 
partnership that the company has been 
invited to engage with all levels of 
government and was instrumental in 
driving the concept of a Water War 
Room. This provides Accéntuate with 
the opportunity to assist government 
in making the strategic decisions that 
are necessary for the sustainability of 
the country.

The group has spent a large part of the 
year ensuring it is positioned correctly 
and embarked on cost-cutting measures 
to ensure that the operations are lean, but 
still able to operate effectively. This effort 
has reflected in the market share of all 
operations remaining stable and not 
being eroded.

In last year’s integrated annual report 
our message to shareholders detailed 
the strategy that we needed to put in 
place to ensure critical mass in the 
smaller operations of the group, namely 
the water treatment and chemical 
blending businesses. No acquisitions 
were made in these two operations 

during the financial year under review, 
and in the short term, until our cash flows 
have stabilised, we will be unable to 
progress with this strategy. However, we 
are in constant strategic interaction with 
our water partners Ion Exchange (India) 
to ensure that significant opportunities are 
not lost and that alternative funding 
arrangements can be found if 
appropriate. 

Update on the strategic 
positioning
In the 2017 integrated annual report, four 
initiatives were listed: 

 • The strengthening of the balance sheet.
 • Becoming a true black empowered 
listed company.

 • A better balance between the public 
and private customer base. 

 • The water strategy implementation 
tempo is increased. 

The strengthening of the balance sheet 
will take a little more time to produce 
meaningful results, but small victories 
include improved cash collections and 
much better management of cash flow 
and working capital. Due to the present 
pressure on cash flow the board will be 
continuously monitoring the actual 
monthly cash flows, against the forecast 
position so as to ensure that any major 
deviation is considered and appropriate 
and timeous action implemented if 
required.

Although Accéntuate would like to be 
better represented by BEE shareholders, 
this will progress only when additional 
suitable partners are found. However, the 
investment by Thebe Investment 
Corporation ("Thebe") and our relationship 
with Thebe remains strong.

Balancing our exposure to the public and 
private sector is critical to our long-term 
sustainability. As a group we will not stop 
supporting public sector projects as these 
are vital to the country, but we had to 

position ourselves more towards the 
private sector, where the majority of 
spend is taking place. This balance will be 
actively managed to benefit from projects 
and segments where meaningful spend 
is taking place. 

With regards to the increased 
implementation tempo for the water 
strategy, progress was made in terms 
of brand exposure as mentioned above. 
Secondly, the market has been clearly 
segmented and joint ventures in a couple 
of these segments have been initiated 
which should bear fruit in the coming 
year.

Accéntuate will continue to focus on 
these four key points. Further details 
regarding the status of these points are 
contained on page 10. 

Last year, it was indicated that we 
expected the year under review to be 
tough and it was indeed so. Our response 
was to bolster the control environment, 
and to reduce costs so as to create a 
lean structure. This was achieved as 
costs were thoroughly interrogated and 
approximately R7 million taken out of the 
system across the group. 

Another tough trading environment is 
anticipated but we believe Accéntuate 
will benefit from the cost pruning exercise 
and that the cash flow pressure will be 
overcome during the course of the new 
year. Then we will be in a position to 
benefit from the anticipated growth in 
the water segment where we have 
established our credentials.

Ralph Patmore
Chairman

23 November 2018

SECTION 1: 
Group overview

P2

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

5



Chief executive officer’s review

The focus for the year was on 
market share retention and 
cost-optimisation initiatives.

The past year was impacted 
negatively by an extremely 
challenging operating environment, as 
a result of the critical situation in the 
South African construction sector. 
This was exacerbated by policy 
uncertainty. The focus for the year was 
thus on market share retention and 
cost-optimisation initiatives.

Nevertheless, despite poor market 
indicators and conditions, the 
environment created opportunities for:

 • Meaningful cost reduction.
 • Leases were renegotiated, resulting in 
a saving of R7 million.

 • Where possible, inventory was reduced.
 • Strict cash management was 
implemented.

 • Clear strategy development and 
implementation took place across 
all operations.

We successfully embarked on a 
cost-reduction process, with a focus on 
market share retention. This major 
emphasis on sustainability and cost 
control has seen Accéntuate emerge 
leaner, with greater focus and thus better 
positioned to take advantage of the many 
opportunities that are currently presenting 
themselves.

Notwithstanding the extremely difficult 
year, Accéntuate has managed both 
costs and working capital down to the 
lowest levels currently feasible. It must be 
noted, however, that the environment 
conversely presents opportunities for 
acquisitive growth specifically in water 
treatment and chemicals with water 
becoming a central theme.

Financial results
Although the results for the period under 
review are disappointing, they are in line 
with expectations and the general 
performance of the construction industry 
in which Accéntuate operates. At a group 
level the results were impacted by:
(i)  generally poor economic conditions;
(ii)  a lack of government infrastructure 

spend; and
(iii)  currency volatility.

This set of results carries a restatement 
of the 2017 results and an impairment of 
the investment in Pentafloor. 

The board deemed it prudent not to 
declare a dividend.

 • Meaningful cost reduction 
was achieved. 

 • Leases were renegotiated, 
resulting in a saving of 
R7 million.

 • Where possible, inventory 
was reduced.

 • Strict cash management 
was implemented.

 • Clear strategy development 
and implementation took 
place across all operations.

For more information please 
go to pages 14 – 21
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Operational performance
Details of the four operations can be 
reviewed on pages 14 to 21 of this 
integrated annual report.

Despite the disappointing market 
conditions, each operation in the 
business held a comprehensive strategic 
session during the year, resulting in a 
series of outputs that assisted the group 
both in crafting plans for the future, which 
we are very excited about, and identifying 
areas where costs could be reduced 
substantially. In summary, the outcome of 
these various strategic sessions produced 
objectives, which have helped the group 
to counter negative economic impacts.

FloorworX, the largest contributor 
of revenue to the group, experienced 
a dramatic decline in sales volumes, 
especially in the areas of government 
spend on education and healthcare.

Despite this, FloorworX maintained 
market share, and the operation 
experienced positive growth in soft 
flooring and other specialised 
floor coverings.

Much focus and attention was placed 
on the commercial construction and 
refurbishment areas which still showed 
some degree of activity.

Pentafloor, the acquisition concluded 
during the last financial year that added 
access flooring to Accéntuate’s repertoire 
of products, was impacted by operating 

costs such as fuel increases, as well as 
exchange rate volatility. The business 
managed costs successfully, but the 
slowdown across the construction and 
building sector has resulted in a reduced 
profit compared to the previous year.

Safic experienced an increase in 
production volume in line with a slight 
increase in sales volumes. This, together 
with revised pricing agreements, resulted 
in margin increases. This operation has 
put a comprehensive development plan 
in place to increase volumes, which is 
starting to show results. Costs will rise 
slightly due to additional sales people 
being recruited to drive the new strategy. 

Ion Exchange Safic, the water treatment 
partnership with Ion Exchange (India), has 
developed a new strategy, part of which 
includes the appointment of several 
distributors, a process which is well under 
way. Negotiations with global engineering, 
procurement and construction 
contractors have begun to take place, 
boding well for the future.

Prospects
Despite poor market indicators and 
conditions, we are seeing the early stages 
of recovery with government policy and 
spend being central to this.

The dire water situation across the 
country, even with the Western Cape now 
slowly recovering from the devastating 
drought, as well as water restrictions in 
many other parts of South Africa, have 

heightened the calamitous position the 
country will be in if something is not done 
quickly. In line with this, Accéntuate has 
been at the forefront of advocating for 
change and the establishment of the 
“Water War Room”. This provides the 
group with a platform to assist in making 
recommendations to government.

The flooring division has benefited from 
the diversification that Pentafloor 
provided. However, for now the focus 
remains on the water and chemical 
blending segments to better balance the 
profitability of the group.

Appreciation
One only gets through tough situations 
with support from others and a unified 
commitment to the cause. This best 
describes the management team and the 
staff of Accéntuate, who during the past 
year had to face and overcome many 
trials, which I am proud to say they did 
extremely well.

I would like to thank the board of 
directors once again for their guidance 
and wisdom, both of which we as a 
management team appreciate.

Fred Platt
Chief executive officer

23 November 2018
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Business model

Capitals

1

Water 
treatment

2

Chemical
blending 

3

Flooring
solutions

FINANCIAL

 • Retained earnings
 • Shareholder returns
 • Dividends
 • Providers of capital

INTELLECTUAL

 • Leading agency 
agreements

 • Information services
 • New opportunities

HUMAN

 • Active skills 
development

 • Training and mentorship
 • Selection

SOCIAL AND 
RELATIONSHIP

 • Health and safety
 • Stakeholder relations
 • Responsible corporate 
citizen

MANUFACTURED

 • Manufacturing plants
 • Ethical applications
 • Laboratories

NATURAL

 • Water
 • Environmental 
management

Le
ad

in
g

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
g

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 in

te
lle

ct
ua

l p
ro

p
er

ty

Partnership with Ion Exchange India 
drawing on international network

26 600 m2 
manufacturing 
and 
warehousing 
facility

International 
partnerships 
with global 
leaders

1 500 m2 access 
flooring manufacturing 

facility in Wynberg

Inputs
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OutcomesSector coverage

Healthcare

Food and
beverage

Transport

Industrial 
and mining

Commercial

Education

Private and 
public sector

Solutions

Private
sector

ION EXCHANGE SAFIC pages 14 and 15

SAFIC pages 16 and 17

PENTAFLOOR pages 20 and 21

FLOORWORX pages 18 and 19

Water  
treatment 

engineering

Water  
treatment 
equipment

Water  
treatment 
chemicals

Specialist 
industrial  

and cleaning 
chemicals

 Cleaning and 
maintenance  
equipment

Cementations, 
adhesive and 
maintenance 

products

Screeds and 
adhesives

Maintenance 
solutions

Resilient and 
access flooring 

solutions

FLOORING  
SOLUTIONS

CHEMICALS

STRATEGIC WATER 
SOLUTIONS

ZERO FATALITIES 
FOR THE YEAR

SUSTAINABLE AND 
DIVERSIFIED 
BUSINESS MODEL 
IN PLACE

SYNERGIES ACROSS 
ALL OPERATING 
COMPANIES

Water 
authorities
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2017 four-point strategy Achievements and feedback Immediate One to three years

2022  
and beyond

1
To strengthen the 
Accéntuate balance  
sheet

The strengthening of the balance sheet is an ongoing activity. 
Working capital management remains a high priority and this, 
together with acquisitions, should naturally translate into 
strengthening of the balance sheet. 

ACQUISITIONS, 
JOINT VENTURES 
AND PARTNERSHIPS 
CONTINUE TO BE 
EVALUATED ON THE 
BASIS OF:

 • Cash generative in 
nature

 • Correctly priced
 • Cultural fit

 • Progress 
potential 
acquisitions 
to bolster 
chemical 
blending and 
water 
segments to 
ensure critical 
mass

 • Ensure 
synergies and 
cross-selling 
peaks

 • Extract 
benefits from 
management 
brought into 
the flooring 
business

 • Ensure black ownership is in place

 • Segments contributing equally to 
group results

 • Substantially increase profitability

 • Create shareholder value

 • Ensure steady dividend stream

2
To support the chemical 
and water focus of the 
group

Despite no acquisitions being completed during the year 
under review, a vast amount of work has been undertaken in 
each segment to ensure clear acquisition strategies and 
growth targets are in place. Accéntuate should be in a 
position to advise further on this shortly. 

3
To become a truly black 
empowered listed 
company

Accéntuate is committed to transformation that will ultimately 
reflect the demographics of our country. The group has for 
the past 11 years enjoyed an excellent partnership with 
Thebe Investment Corporation. Accéntuate wishes this 
relationship to continue, and understands that to be a true 
South African company, it has to ensure it is a genuine 
empowered company. Thebe currently owns 12,67% of 
Accéntuate. During the year under review Accéntuate has 
engaged with potential partners in order to broaden its black 
ownership, but to this point no agreements have been 
reached. 

Accéntuate has committed to have black ownership in place 
by 2022.

4
Put in place sufficient 
critical mass and a better 
balance between the 
public and private sector 
customer base

There is no doubt that previous acquisitions made in the 
chemical blending and flooring segment have added bulk and 
critical mass, diversified income streams and acquired new 
clients. Although Accéntuate has made good progress in 
identifying potential acquisitions relevant to point 2 above, 
which will add to critical mass and a better balance between 
the customer base, unfortunately no transactions were 
concluded in the year under review. 

Strategy

In order to ensure shareholder value, do the right things in a responsible 
manner when it comes to environmental management, ensure 
transformation is in line with government requirement and to support 
black industrialists, last year Accéntuate committed to a four-point 
strategy to position the group for the future. 
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2017 four-point strategy Achievements and feedback Immediate One to three years

2022  
and beyond

1
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To support the chemical 
and water focus of the 
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Despite no acquisitions being completed during the year 
under review, a vast amount of work has been undertaken in 
each segment to ensure clear acquisition strategies and 
growth targets are in place. Accéntuate should be in a 
position to advise further on this shortly. 

3
To become a truly black 
empowered listed 
company

Accéntuate is committed to transformation that will ultimately 
reflect the demographics of our country. The group has for 
the past 11 years enjoyed an excellent partnership with 
Thebe Investment Corporation. Accéntuate wishes this 
relationship to continue, and understands that to be a true 
South African company, it has to ensure it is a genuine 
empowered company. Thebe currently owns 12,67% of 
Accéntuate. During the year under review Accéntuate has 
engaged with potential partners in order to broaden its black 
ownership, but to this point no agreements have been 
reached. 

Accéntuate has committed to have black ownership in place 
by 2022.

4
Put in place sufficient 
critical mass and a better 
balance between the 
public and private sector 
customer base

There is no doubt that previous acquisitions made in the 
chemical blending and flooring segment have added bulk and 
critical mass, diversified income streams and acquired new 
clients. Although Accéntuate has made good progress in 
identifying potential acquisitions relevant to point 2 above, 
which will add to critical mass and a better balance between 
the customer base, unfortunately no transactions were 
concluded in the year under review. 

CHEMICAL BLENDING
 • Focus on substantially increasing the 
order book

 • Innovation and product development

 • Increase production efficiency through 
acquisitions that will see volume 
throughput

FLOORING SOLUTIONS
 • Ensure better positioning in public and 
private sector

 • Increase manufacturing volume locally 
and through partnerships, therefore 
reinforcing market share and 
increasing efficiency and profitability

WATER TREATMENT
 • Extract value from marketing and 
partnership agreements in place

 • Deliver and market on successes 
to date

SECTION 2: 
The Accéntuate group
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Leadership

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive chairman

Ralph Patmore
66
BCom (University of the Witwatersrand), 
MBL (SBL), Stanford Executive 
Programme (Stanford University, USA)

 Audit and risk 
  Remuneration and nominations

Independent non-executive director

Eric Ratshikhopha
67
BA (Hons) Sociology, University of the 
North Developmental Programme in 
Labour Relations, Unisa Advanced 
Programme in Labour Relations, Unisa 
Master of Management, University of 
the Witwatersrand Senior Executive 
Programme, Harvard School of 
Business, Masters of Management, 
University of the Witwatersrand

 Audit and risk 
  Remuneration and nominations
  Social and ethics

Non-executive director 

Pieter Kriel
59
BAcc (Hons) (Stellenbosch), CA(SA), 
Certificate in Senior Management

  Remuneration and nominations

Full CV information for our 
directors can be found 

on the website.

 
Non-executive director 

Thys du Preez
71
BCom (Hons) Accounting (Pta), CA(SA)

 Audit and risk

Alternate non-executive director to 
Thys du Preez

Ockert Goosen
59
BCom (Hons) Accounting, MBA 
(University of the Witwatersrand), 
CA(SA) 

Alternate non-executive director to 
Pieter Kriel

Andile Mjamekwana
41
BCom (Hons) Accounting (University of 
Natal), BCompt (WSU), CA(SA)

 Audit and risk

Chief executive officer

Frederick Platt
51
BA (Industrial Psychology), MBA (Brunel 
University, UK)

Chief financial officer

Maarten Coetzee
39
CA(SA), MCom (Master’s) (SA and 
International Tax), MBA (GIBS)

Executive director

Dr Donald Platt
59
Degrees in Business Administration and 
PhD in Management

Length of service

 1 – 4 years 

 5 – 8 years 

 9 – 12 years 
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ROLE OF THE BOARD
The board is fully committed to the highest 
standards of governance and accountability, as 
recommended by King IV™, and the delivery of 
outcomes such as an ethical culture, good 
performance, effective control and legitimacy. 
The board plays a pivotal role in strategy planning 
and establishing benchmarks to measure the 
group’s strategic objectives.

The role of the board is regulated in a formal board 
charter, which defines its authority and power. 
While retaining overall accountability, the board 
has delegated authority to the chief executive to 
run the day-to-day affairs of the group. The 
chief executive is supported by the executive 
management committee. The board also created 
sub-committees to enable it to discharge its duties 
and responsibilities properly and to fulfil its 
decision-making process effectively.

During the financial year, no contracts were 
entered into in which directors and officers of the 
company had an interest and which significantly 
affected the business of the group. The directors 
had no interest in any third party or company 
responsible for managing any of the business 
activities of the group.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Executives 3

Non-executives 2

Independent non-executives 2

Alternative directors 2

Male 100%

Historically disadvantaged 22%
Non-historically disadvantaged 78%

Tenure

1 – 4 years 3

4

2

5 – 8 years

9 – 12 years

ETHICS
The group’s code of ethics and business conduct, which embodies our guiding principles and values, was reviewed during 
the year, updated with the recommendations by King IV™ and confirmed to be relevant and effective. This policy deals with, 
inter alia, no tolerance for discrimination in whatever form, human rights, health and safety and the implementation of the 
group’s ethical standards to stakeholders. The code of ethics and business conduct is available on the company’s website 
www.accentuateltd.co.za. 

The company’s fraud line, available since 2015, was reviewed during the year and confirmed to be relevant and effective, 
providing an appropriate balance between encouraging reporting and discouraging malicious and frivolous reporting. A 
special box was also placed in the canteen for employees to anonymously submit any fraud-related matters or general 
complaints, but no reports/requests were received through this channel. 

P8

SECTION 2: 
The Accéntuate group
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Overview

Ion Exchange Safic is the joint venture 
between Ion Exchange India, specialists in 
water and environment management for 
over five decades and Safic Environmental 
Solutions, part of the Accéntuate group. Its 
mission is to play a leading role in the 
conservation and preservation of water 
and the environment.

Performance and the operating environment  
Ion Exchange Safic

The range of products includes water, 
waste water treatment and recycling 
plants using various physiochemical 
processes for settling, clarification, 
filtration and disinfection. This includes 
membranes and ion exchange 
technology, and ion exchange resins; 
polyelectrolytes for water and non-water 
processes; and boiler, cooling water and 
fireside treatment chemicals. The 
business also offers technical services 
such as project management, design, 
erection and commissioning, operation 
and maintenance of water plants and 
the supply of spare parts to these.

Challenges faced
Despite the obvious need for water 
infrastructure projects and maintenance 
programmes in South Africa, a water-
scare country as highlighted by the recent 

serious droughts in the Eastern and 
Western Cape, there has been a delay in 
decision making. The ongoing lack of 
government spend on infrastructure, 
coupled with the slowdown of the 
economy and sluggish market growth, as 
well as volatile exchange rates proved 
challenging for Ion Exchange Safic. This 
environment was compounded by 
mounting competition from established 
local and international companies, which 
are taking an interest in the South African 
market, increasing the possibility of more 
competition.

Negative factors also included the 
reluctance of companies to try new 
vendors and slow decision-making 
processes on major projects, as well as 
the fluctuating rand exchange rate, which 
give rise to unpredictable import costs.

Water treatment

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018
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Due to challenging market conditions, 
more emphasis was placed on the export 
market, as well as on the local food and 
beverage sector. The business assessed 
opportunities to increase sales of 
consumable and replenishment products 
for water treatment, and to seek out 
opportunities for public-private 
partnerships with government, 
specifically focusing on build, operate, 
own, transfer (“BOOT”) and operations 
and maintenance (“O&M”) projects.

Opportunities
Over the short and medium term, 
opportunities for the business lie in 
growing sales of consumable products 
such as chemicals, resins and 
membranes, and appointing business 
partners in identified geographical areas. 

In the longer term, the business will seek 
to participate in engineering projects, 
partnering on engineering solutions and 
working with engineering, procurement 
and construction (“EPC”) contractors, 
and with construction companies active 
in Africa. The strategy further includes 
supplying water treatment chemicals 
and solutions to original equipment 
manufacturers (“OEMs”). It will also 
actively target local municipalities with 
good standing for waste-water recycling 
initiatives. 

Gourish Chakravorty
Chief executive officer

ION EXCHANGE SAFIC 
MANAGEMENT 

Gourish Chakravorty
Chief executive officer

For further information please  
visit www.accentuateltd.co.za or
www.ionexchange.co.za

SECTION 3: 
Performance and the 
operating environment
P14
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Performance and the operating environment   
Safic

Challenges faced
Market conditions remained extremely 
challenging during this financial year, with 
the business feeling the brunt of poor 
economic performance and lack of 
growth in the South African market, the 
relatively high cost of petrochemical 
derivative raw material inputs, fluctuating 
exchange rates, the further increase in 
energy and water costs, as well as the 
high costs associated with the distribution 
of our products.

Overview of results
Despite challenges, revenue was up 
by 6,2% at R65,8 million 
(2017: R62,0 million), contributing to an 
operating loss to R5,1 million 
(2017: R2,4 million loss). 

A conscious investment into bolstering 
the sales and marketing capacity should 
result in increased profitability in the 
coming year. 

Outlook
The major focus remains the growth of 
sustainable revenue within the business. 
This will be achieved by organic growth 
as well as identified acquisitions. This has 
compelled Safic to further refine its 
product and market solutions and realign 
sales and marketing structures to support 
this objective. 

Overview

Safic provides sustainable, customised, 
environmentally acceptable cleaning and 
maintenance solutions, process chemicals 
for metal and water treatment, as well 
as confidential blending services to the 
industrial, commercial, food and beverage, 
transport, construction and government 
sectors.

Chemical blending
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New innovations include offering a full 
spectrum of water and environmental 
solutions through our joint venture with 
Ion Exchange India and the inclusion of 
a specialised metal treatment product 
range. We also added to our range of 
cleaning equipment to support our 
ability to offer a comprehensive solution 
package to key clients, allowing them 
overall cost savings.

Safic continues to focus on efforts 
to extract profit from inter-group 
opportunities, namely the supply of 
adhesive and cementitious products to 
FloorworX, grow our presence within 
identified markets, and further maximise 
efficiencies in operations – all 
underpinned by excellent product quality, 
service delivery, and environmental, health 
and safety standards.

As mentioned, the strategy for the 
business includes a major emphasis 
on organic revenue growth within the 
industrial, commercial, food and 
beverage, metal and water treatment 
sectors. The expansion of the direct sales 
force into new geographical areas and 
the further focus on our key account 
initiatives is intended to ensure stronger 
secured annuity income. The second key 
focus area will be on the identification of 
suitable mergers and acquisitions.

Eric Platt
Managing director

SAFIC  
MANAGEMENT 

Eric Platt
Managing director

For further information please  
visit www.accentuateltd.co.za or  
www.safic.co.za

SECTION 3: 
Performance and the 
operating environment
P14
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Performance and the operating environment   
FloorworX

Challenges faced
The period under review was probably 
the most challenging faced by FloorworX 
in the past decade. The construction 
industry was impacted by muted activity, 
and government spend was severely 
impacted by budget constraints in the 
major areas of healthcare build and 
refurbishment and education 
infrastructure spend, in particular the 
construction of classrooms across all 
provinces. Residential activity was also 
at an all-time low in both the upper and 
affordable market segments. 

Due to the slowdown in market activity, 
shifts at the FloorworX manufacturing 
facility were reduced from two shifts per 
day, to one 12-hour shift a day. The 

decrease in manufacturing activity had 
the adverse effect of reducing both 
efficiencies and profitability.

Management introduced several 
cost-cutting initiatives and general 
rationalisation across the business, 
which unfortunately included a number of 
retrenchments on the production line as 
mentioned above, as well as others 
throughout FloorworX.

The sales and marketing departments 
were restructured, and an aggressive 
sales plan was put in place to increase 
share of a reduced market. Other 
initiatives included a vigorous focus 
on cash flow and a new strategy to 
ensure sustainability of the business into 
the future.

Overview

FloorworX distributes a comprehensive range 
of internationally renowned resilient floor 
coverings, including wood laminates, luxury 
vinyl planks and engineered wooden floors. 
It provides a wide range of flooring adhesives, 
accessories, floorcare and maintenance 
products, as well as offering technical advice 
on sub-floor preparation, floor installation 
support, cleaning and aftercare assistance.

Flooring solutions

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

18



Overview of results
As mentioned, FloorworX, the largest 
contributor of revenue and of profitability 
to the group, experienced a dramatic 
decline in sales volumes, especially in the 
areas of government spend on education 
and healthcare. Despite this, FloorworX 
maintained market share, and the 
operation experienced positive growth 
in soft flooring. 

Outlook
The new sales structure has improved the 
response time to market and produced 
positive results. Given market conditions 
though, the business will continue to 
focus on aggressively managing 
operational costs and seek to explore 

new markets, while maintaining shares in 
those we currently service. We do not 
expect the market to recover any time 
soon; however, various projects are being 
investigated and discussed, the details of 
which will be announced in due course. 

Donald Platt
Managing director

FLOORWORX 
 MANAGEMENT 

Donald Platt
Managing director

For further information please  
visit www.accentuateltd.co.za or
www.floorworx.co.za

SECTION 3: 
Performance and the 
operating environment
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Performance and the operating environment   
Pentafloor

Challenges faced 
Pentafloor’s key performance indicators 
show that over the last 12 months, even 
though Pentafloor witnessed a slight 
increase in tenders, the construction 
industry slowed down substantially. 
Aggressive bidding between contractors 
has in turn driven down the prices of 
sub-contractors and suppliers, and as 
competition increases and fewer projects 
come on line, the more aggressive 
bidders have become. 

While Pentafloor anticipates an increase 
in sales because of increased tender 
opportunities, this is mainly due to taking 
market share and not necessarily 
reflective of the industry being on an 
upwards trajectory. Management 
continues to monitor performance to 

ensure the operation manages the 
downturn until the industry starts to 
experience a more positive change. 

Overview of results
The Pentafloor results were impacted by 
operating costs such as fuel increases, 
as well as exchange rate volatility. 
The business managed costs 
successfully, but the slowdown across 
the construction and building sector has 
resulted in a reduced profit compared to 
the previous year.

External factors such as rising fuel costs 
had a negative effect on operating costs, 
more specifically transport costs, which 
are a significant part of Pentafloor’s sales 
costs. Since importing is core to 
Pentafloor’s business, the rise and 

Overview

Pentafloor is a leading supplier 
in the access flooring market 
in South Africa, with brands 
serving the networking 
environment for more than 
60 years. 

Flooring solutions

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

20



fluctuations in the exchange rates also 
affected foreign currency gains and 
losses, is another factor to be considered. 
In managing this, Pentafloor cut down on 
borrowings, with the current ratio being 
0,69, compared to 0,64 last year, and 
managed to repay long-term debt, thereby 
reducing finance costs by R681 058.

Opportunities
Opportunities going forward lie in working 
more closely with the end-user and their 
budgets by offering a direct-to-client 
solution. This will increase the affordability 
of the product as well as expediting the 
process from the enquiry phase through 
to the placement and completion phase. 

Should the building industry falter more 
than it has already, the direct-to-client 
opportunities will increase and this is 
where Pentafloor envisions its niche in 
future.

Bianca Shakinovsky
Chief executive officer

PENTAFLOOR 
 MANAGEMENT 

Bianca Shakinovsky
Chief executive officer

For further information please  
visit www.accentuateltd.co.za or
www.pentafloor.co.za
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operating environment
P14

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

21



Corporate governance report

Commitment to corporate 
governance
Accéntuate Limited continues to apply 
high standards of corporate governance 
and ethical practice to ensure the 
sustainability of the business and to 
contribute to long-term value creation 
for shareholders. 

The board is the custodian of corporate 
governance and is accountable to 
shareholders. Management aims to 
promote ethical business practices across 
its operations while the board’s social and 
ethics committee has oversight for 
monitoring ethics practices.

The group has applied the King IV 
Report on Corporate Governance for 
South Africa 2016 (“King IV™”) with 
effect from 1 April 2017. In line with the 
application and explanation philosophy 
of King lV™, the group’s application of 
the 16 principles of the new code is 
covered in the detailed corporate 
governance report on the group’s 
website www.accentuateltd.co.za.

Primary role and responsibilities 
of the board
The group is committed to achieving its 
goals with integrity, high ethical standards 
and in compliance with all applicable 
laws, while being a responsible corporate 
citizen. The board acts as focal point and 
custodian of corporate governance of the 
group. A clear division of responsibilities 
between the directors is maintained 
to ensure that no single director has 
unfettered decision-making powers. 
A delegation of authority framework is in 
place and reviewed regularly to ensure 
the necessary authority to management 
to implement and execute the strategy. 
The board is satisfied that the delegation 
of authority framework contributes to 
role clarity and the effective exercise of 
authority and responsibilities.

The directors have access to the advice 
and services of the company secretary. 
They are entitled, at the company’s 
expense, to seek independent 
professional advice about the affairs 
of the company regarding the execution 
of their duties as directors. 

Summarised roles and responsibilities
 • Governing the group on behalf of 
its shareholders.

 • Steering the group and setting its 
strategic direction.

 • Approving policies and planning that 
gives effect to the direction provided.

 • Overseeing and monitoring the 
implementation and execution 
by management.

 • Appointing of chief executive officer.
 • Ensuring communication to 

stakeholders is timeous and 
transparent.

 • Ensuring compliance with relevant 
legal requirements.

 • Approving and monitoring the 
annual budget.

 • Guarding and promoting values 
and ethics.

 • Managing the group’s risk profile.

The board charter is available on the website 
at www.accentuateltd.co.za

The board met four times during the 
reporting period and held a strategy 
workshop on 29 January 2018. The 
board is satisfied that it has fulfilled its 
responsibilities in accordance with its 
charter for the reporting period. 

Board members and invitees as at 30 June 2018
Meeting attendance

Independent non-executive directors

Ralph Patmore 5/5
Eric Ratshikhopha 5/5

Non-executive directors

Thys du Preez 4/5
Pieter Kriel 5/5
Ockert Goosen* 5/5
Andile Mjamekwana** 4/5

Executive directors

Maarten Coetzee 5/5
Fred Platt 5/5
Donald Platt 5/5

Invitees

Designated adviser
Pieter Veldtman 4/4
Johan de Beer 1/1
Company secretary
Sirkien van Schalkwyk 5/5

* Alternate to Thys du Preez
** Alternate to Pieter Kriel
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Board composition and 
independence
As at 30 June 2018, the board consisted 
of two independent non-executive 
directors, two non-executive directors, 
two alternative directors and three 
executive directors. Excluding the 
alternate directors, two of the four 
non-executive directors are not 
independent. The board does not 
believe that this has compromised the 
functioning of the board in any matter. 
Ralph Patmore is an independent 
chairman and his role is separate 
from that of the chief executive officer, 
Fred Platt.

Board appointment and re-election 
process 
The board has a formal and transparent 
policy regarding the appointment of 
directors to the board. While the 
appointments are a matter for the board, 
the authority to oversee the nomination 
and to carry out the interview process 
have been delegated to the remuneration 
and nominations committee. 

Apart from a candidate’s experience, 
knowledge, skills, availability and likely 
fit, the committee also considers a 
candidate’s integrity, as well as other 
directorships and commitments to ensure 
that the candidate will have sufficient time 
to discharge his/her role properly. The 
remuneration and nominations committee 
also considers race and gender diversity 
in its assessment in line with its gender 
diversity policy. The policy was updated 
to include a target for race representation 
in its membership. 

In line with the memorandum of 
incorporation, one-third of the non-
executive directors are required to retire, 
and if available and eligible, stand for 
re-election at the company’s annual 
general meeting. Those directors who 
have been in office for the longest, as 
calculated from the last re-election or 
appointment date, are required to stand 
for re-election. At the 2018 annual 
general meeting, Ralph Patmore and 
Thys du Preez will retire and only 
Ralph Patmore being available for 
re-election. A brief professional profile 
of Ralph Patmore can be found on the 
Accéntuate website. Thys du Preez will 
retire and is not available for re-election. 

The non-executive directors have the 
necessary skills and experience to 
provide judgement that is independent 
of management on matters relating to 
strategy, performance, resources, 
transformation, diversity, equity 
employment, standards of conduct and 
evaluation of performance. The board is 
satisfied that its composition reflects the 
appropriate mix of knowledge, skills, 
experience, diversity and independence. 
The independence of all non-executive 
directors is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Classi�cation of directors

2 2

3

2

■ Independent 
    non-executive   
    directors

■ Alternate
    non-executive
    directors  

■ Non-executive
    directors  

3,5

3,0

2,5

2,0

1,5

1,0

0,5

0  
■ Executive
    directors  

Tenure

1 – 4 years 3
4

2

5 – 8 years

9 – 12 years

Demographics

Black
White

2 
7
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Corporate governance report continued

Company secretary
The company secretary plays a vital role 
in the corporate governance of the group 
and is responsible for ensuring board 
compliance with procedures and 
regulations of a statutory nature. The 
company secretary ensures compliance 
with the JSE Listings Requirements and 
is responsible for the submission of the 
annual compliance certificate to the 
JSE Limited (“JSE”). 

The company secretary ensures that, in 
accordance with the pertinent laws and 
regulatory framework, the proceedings 
and affairs of the board, its members 
and the company itself are properly 
administered. 

The board satisfied itself regarding 
Sirkien van Schalkwyk’s work experience, 
performance, technical skills and overall 
competence in fulfilling her role as 

company secretary at the previous 
meeting of the board (during which time 
she was excused from the meeting). 
She is a consultant and maintains an 
arm’s length relationship with the board. 
She reports to the chair on all statutory 
duties and functions performed relating 
to the governing body. 

The company secretary is accountable to 
the board to:

 • Ensure that board procedures are 
followed and reviewed regularly.

 • Ensure applicable rules and regulations 
for the conduct of the affairs of the 
board are complied with.

 • Maintain statutory records in 
accordance with legal requirements.

 • Guide the board as to how its 
responsibilities should be properly 
discharged in the best interest of the 
company.

 • Keep abreast of, and inform the board 
of, current and new developments 

regarding best practice corporate 
governance thinking and practice. 

Governance framework
The group seeks to maintain strong 
corporate governance structures and 
processes by working within a clearly 
defined governance framework, thus 
enabling the delivery of sustainable 
growth to all our stakeholders. The 
governance framework promotes the 
establishment of a board sub-committee 
structure with the intention of supporting 
the board in the execution of its duties. 
The board has delegated specific 
authority to each sub-committee, while 
still enabling effective control as well as 
preserving its accountability. Roles and 
responsibilities for each committee are 
defined, and the board has approved 
terms of reference for the various 
sub-committees. 

Governance reporting structure

COMMITTEES COMMITTEES
Social  

and ethics

Remuneration 
and 

nominations

Audit  
and risk

ACCÉNTUATE LIMITED BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PENTAFLOORFLOORWORX
ACCÉNTUATE 
MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES
SAFIC GROUP ION EXCHANGE

GROUP 
INDEPENDENT 

INTERNAL AUDIT

INDEPENDENT 
EXTERNAL  
AUDITOR

For further information please  
visit www.accentuateltd.co.za

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ACCÉNTUATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
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Board committees
Through our clear governance framework, 
the board has established specific 
committees to pay detailed attention to 
certain responsibilities. The committees 
are governed by terms of reference that 
have been approved by the board and 
serve to outline each committee’s role, 
authority, responsibilities and 
accountability.

The terms of reference are subject to 
change as and when required by the 
board in order to accommodate the 
company’s changing needs. Roles and 
associated responsibilities and the 
composition of membership across 
committees are considered holistically. 
All committees have a minimum of three 
members and, as a whole, have the 
necessary knowledge, skills, experience 
and capacity to execute their duties 
effectively. The chairman of each board 
committee reports at each scheduled 
meeting of the board, and minutes of 
board committee meetings are provided 
to the board. 

Audit and risk committee
In reviewing the committee composition 
during the year, it was decided that, due 
to the size of the company, the audit 
committee and risk committee would 
remain one committee. However, the 
agenda is divided into two separate 
sections so as to ensure that both audit 
and risk management responsibilities are 
attended to. 

The committee comprises two 
independent non-executive directors 
and two non-executive directors, all four 
complying with the definition of being 
independent in terms of the Companies 
Act, 2008 as amended. The board is 
satisfied that the independence, 
experience and qualifications of each 
member enable them to fulfil the 
committee’s mandate. The chief executive 
officer, chief financial officer, partner of the 
external auditor and the internal auditor 
attend meetings by invitation. In addition 
to scheduled meetings, the committee 
meets at least once a year with the 
company’s internal and external auditors, 
without management being present. 

The audit and risk committee meets 
at least three times a year and more if 
necessary. The committee roles and 
responsibilities, as well as its composition, 
are set out below. 

Summarised roles and 
responsibilities

 • Providing the board with additional 
assurance regarding the efficiency and 
reliability of the financial information 
used by the directors to assist them 
in the discharge of their duties.

 • Reviewing interim and annual financial 
statements, the integrated annual 
report and any other external reports 
issued by the organisation.

 • Overseeing the internal audit function.
 • Ensuring that significant business, 
financial and other risks have been 
identified and are being managed 
suitably.

 • Ensuring independence of external 
audit and overseeing the external audit 
process.

 • Ensuring good standards of 
governance, reporting and compliance 
are in operation.

 • Overseeing the group’s risk 
management profile.

Audit and risk committee members and invitees as at 30 June 2018
Meeting attendance

Members

Andile Mjamekwana (chairman) 3/3
Thys du Preez
Ockert Goosen (alternate to Thys du Preez)

3/4
1/1

Ralph Patmore 3/3
Eric Ratshikhopha 3/3

Invitees

Chief executive officer 3/3
Chief financial officer 3/3
External auditor 3/3
Internal auditor 3/3

The audit and risk committee is satisfied that it has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference for the 
reporting period. 

Refer to pages 28 to 31 of the integrated annual report 
for the audit and risk committee report.

SECTION 4: 
Corporate governance

P22

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

25



Social and ethics committee
During the reporting period, the group 
financial manager resigned from the 
company and was replaced by Pholoso 
Masilela, the new group financial manager
and as a member of the committee. 
Sadly, Pholoso passed away on 5 August 
2018. She fulfilled her role with 
enthusiasm, dedication and distinction 
and our heartfelt condolences are with 
her family. It was further decided to invite 
Donald Platt, managing director of 
FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited, to the 
meeting in order to align operating 

subsidiaries to the sustainability, 
transformation and social matters of the 
group. Subsequent to the year end, 
Donald Platt was appointed to fill the 
vacancy in the committee. The committee 
therefore comprises one independent 
non-executive director and two 
prescribed officers.

The social and ethics committee meets 
at least twice a year and more if 
necessary. The committee roles and 
responsibilities as well as its composition 
are set out below. 

Summarised roles and 
responsibilities

 • Planning, implementing and monitoring 
the group’s strategy for transformation.

 • Monitoring compliance with legislation.
 • Monitoring employment equity and fair 
labour practices.

 • Monitoring good corporate citizenship 
and the group’s contribution to the 
development of communities in which 
it operates.

Corporate governance report continued

Social and ethics committee members and invitees as at 30 June 2018

Meeting attendance

Members

Eric Ratshikhopha (chairman) 2/2
Pholoso Masilela (group financial manager)** 1/1
Eric Platt (managing director: Safic group) 2/2
Paresh Dayah (group financial manager)* 1/1

Invitees

Chief executive officer 2/2
Managing director: FloorworX 1/1
Company secretary 2/2

* Resigned during the reporting period.
**  It is with great sadness that we announced the passing of Pholoso Masilela who was group financial manager for Accéntuate. She fulfilled her role with 

enthusiasm, dedication and distinction, making an immeasurable contribution to the group. Our condolences are extended to her family and friends.

The social and ethics committee is satisfied that it has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference for the 
reporting period. 

Refer to pages 32 to 35 of the integrated annual report 
for the social and ethics committee report.
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Remuneration and 
nominations committee
In reviewing the committee composition 
during the year, it was decided that, 
due to the size of the company, the 
remuneration committee and nomination 
committee would remain one committee. 

The committee comprises two 
independent non-executive directors and 
a non-executive director. The chairman is 
not independent as classified in terms of 
King IV™, but acts independently as 
defined by the Companies Act, 2008 as 
amended. 

The chief executive officer and chief 
financial officer attend meetings by 
invitation, but may not participate in 
discussions on their own remuneration. 
The chairman of the board is not eligible 

for appointment as chairman of the 
committee, but will preside as chairman 
when the committee fulfils its oversight 
responsibilities on nomination matters 
and board/director interactions. 

One meeting took place during the 
reporting period and the second meeting 
only after year end due to a planned 
change in the scheduling of meetings to 
facilitate timeous feedback to the board. 
The committee’s roles and responsibilities, 
as well as its composition, are set 
out below. 

Summarised roles and 
responsibilities

 • Identifying and nominating new 
directors for approval by the board.

 • Ensuring that appointments to the 
board are formal and transparent.

 • Approving the classification of 
directors as independent.

 • Overseeing induction and training of 
directors and conducting annual 
performance reviews of the board and 
board committees.

 • Overseeing an appropriate separation 
between executive, non-executive and 
independent directors.

 • Ensuring proper and effective 
functioning of the group’s board 
committees.

 • Reviewing the board’s structure, the 
size and composition of the various 
board committees and making 
recommendations.

 • Overseeing the remuneration 
philosophy and practices.

 • Overseeing and monitoring of the 
Accéntuate share appreciation 
rights scheme.

Remuneration and nominations committee members and invitees as at 30 June 2018

Meeting attendance

Members

Pieter Kriel (chairman) 1/1
Ralph Patmore 1/1
Eric Ratshikhopha 1/1

Invitees

Chief executive officer 1/1
Chief financial officer 1/1
Company secretary 1/1

The group’s remuneration policy aims to 
attract, retain and motivate skilled and 
performing employees to execute the 
group’s strategy. Going forward, the 
remuneration policy and implementation 
report will be put to shareholders as two 
separate non-binding advisory votes at 
the company’s annual general meeting.

The remuneration and nominations 
committee is satisfied that it has fulfilled 
its responsibilities in accordance with its 
terms of reference for the reporting 
period. 

Refer to pages 36 to 41 of the integrated 
annual report for the remuneration and 
nominations committee report, included 
in the remuneration report. 

Evaluation
The board assumes responsibility for the evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees, its chair and its individual 
members. The board elected to conduct this evaluation every second year. No evaluations were conducted during the reporting 
period and evaluations on the board, individual members and sub-committees will only be done in the current financial year. 

Compliance governance
The board assumes responsibility for the governance of compliance with applicable laws and adopted non-binding rules and code 
of standards. This function is delegated to the social and ethics committee with financial compliance overseen by the audit and risk 
committee. 

SECTION 4: 
Corporate governance
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Audit and risk committee report

Annual financial statements for 
the year ended 30 June 2018
The audit and risk committee has 
pleasure in submitting this report, which 
has been approved by the board and has 
been prepared in accordance with section 
94(7)(f) of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 
(“the Companies Act”) and incorporating 
the recommendations of the Report on 
Corporate Governance for South Africa 
2016 (“King IV™”).

In summary, this committee assists the 
board in its responsibilities to cover the: 

 • internal and external audit process for 
the group taking into account the 
significant risks;

 • adequacy and functioning of the 
group’s internal controls;

 • integrity of the financial reporting; and
 • risk management and information 
technology. 

The committee has performed all 
the duties required in section 94(7) 
of the Companies Act 71. 

Due to the size of the company, the 
board made a decision to combine the 
audit and risk committees and attend to 
both audit and risk responsibilities in one 
committee. However, the agenda is 
divided into two separate sections to 
ensure that both audit and risk 
management responsibilities are 
attended to.

Members of the audit committee 
and attendance at meetings 
The audit committee consists of four 
non-executive directors listed below and 
all members act independently as 
described in the Companies Act. 

The chief executive officer, chief financial 
officer, partner of the external auditors 
and the internal auditor attend meetings 
by invitation and attended all meetings 
held during the reporting period. The 
board is satisfied that the independence, 
experience and qualifications of each 
member enable them to fulfil the 
committee’s mandate. In addition to 
scheduled meetings, the committee 
meets at least once a year with the 
company’s internal and external auditors, 
without management being present. 

Three meetings took place during the reporting period. The committee composition and meeting attendance are below:

Name Position Qualification Experience
Meetings 
attended

Andile Mjamekwana Non-executive 
chairman

BCom (Hons) Accounting, 
BCompt, CA(SA)

Over 15 years’ experience in investment 
banking, corporate finance valuations 
and accounting matters

3/3

Thys du Preez Non-executive 
member

BCom (Hons) Accounting, 
CA(SA)

Over 45 years’ experience in audit, 
accounting and investment valuations

2/3*

Ralph Patmore Independent 
member

BCom, MBL, Stanford 
Executive Programme

Over 30 years’ experience in 
management, strategy, mergers and 
acquisitions and accounting matters

3/3

Eric Ratshikhopha Independent 
member

BA (Hons) Sociology, 
Advanced Programme in 
Labour Relations, Senior 
Executive Programme, 
Harvard School 
of Business, Masters 
of Management

Over 30 years’ experience in 
management, transformation, stakeholder 
relations and community development

3/3

* Ockert Goosen, alternate director to Thys du Preez, attended one meeting in his stead.

The committee, as a whole, has the necessary financial literacy, skills and experience to execute its duties effectively.
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2019 focus areas
 • Develop and implement a formal 
combined assurance framework.

 • Implementation of a enterprise resource 
planning (“ERP”) system.

 • Maturing of the group risk register.
 • Successfully integrate Pentafloor (Pty) 
Limited’s finance reporting into the 
group financial system.

Role of the audit and risk 
committee 
The audit and risk committee has 
adopted an updated formal terms of 
reference, approved by the board, setting 
out its duties and responsibilities as 
prescribed in the Companies Act and 
incorporating additional duties delegated 
to it by the board. The requirements of 
King IV™ are also included in the new 
terms of reference.

The committee: 
 • fulfils the duties that are assigned to it 
by the Companies Act and as governed 
by other legislative requirements;

 • assists the board in overseeing the 
quality and integrity of the group’s 
integrated annual reporting process, 
including the annual financial 
statements and sustainability reporting, 
and announcements in respect of the 
financial results; 

 • ensures that an effective control 
environment in the group is maintained;

 • provides the chief financial officer, 
external auditor and the head of internal 
audit with unrestricted access to the 
committee and its chairman as is 
required in relation to any matter falling 
within the ambit of the committee;

 • meets with the external auditor, senior 
managers and executive directors as 
the committee may elect;

 • meets confidentially with the internal 
and external auditors without other 
executive board members and the 
company’s chief financial officer being 
present;

 • reviews and recommends to the board 
the interim financial results and annual 
financial statements;

 • oversees the activities of, and ensures 
coordination between, the activities of 
the internal and external auditors;

 • fulfils the duties that are assigned to it 
by the Companies Act and as governed 
by other legislative requirements, 
including the statutory audit committee 
functions required for subsidiary 
companies;

 • receives and deals with any complaints 
concerning accounting practices, 
internal audit or the content and audit 
of its annual financial statements or 
related matters;

 • conduct annual reviews of the audit 
committee’s work plan and terms of 
reference; 

 • assesses the performance and 
effectiveness of the audit committee 
and its members on a regular basis; and

 • reviewed the proactive monitoring 
process in terms of the letter from the 
JSE dated 20 February 2018 and took 
appropriate action. 

The committee is pleased to report back on its focus areas of the reporting period and list its focus areas for the current 
financial year:

Focus areas during 2018 Delivery 2018

Finalising the fraud matter  • The High Court in Grahamstown granted a realisation order in terms of the Prevention of 
Organised Crime Act in respect of known assets under the control of the curator amounting 
to R9,7 million, which directs the curator to dispose of those assets and to pay the proceeds 
thereof to the company as recompense to the victim of the fraud that was committed by 
Louis Schreuder.

Reviewed the insurance 
portfolio 

 • The committee found the insurance cover to be adequate for the needs of the company. 

Enterprise risk management  • An enterprise risk assessment was conducted for all operating entities, to identify and assess 
business risks, culminating in the development of the risk registers.

Internal controls  • Implemented the internal audit charter. On an ongoing basis, the internal audit function 
evaluated the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls and reported the results to the 
committee, based on the approved annual audit plan. Effective corrective action was taken to 
correct any reported deficiencies in internal controls.

Adopted a group risk 
management policy 

 • Subsequent to an internal audit, a group risk management policy was developed and approved 
by the board via the committee.

Adoption of a new delegation 
of authority framework 

 • This updated delegation of authority framework is based on the group risk management 
framework and will be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that delegation levels remain 
relevant. 

Adoption of a formal 
non-audit services policy

 • A formal non-audit services policy was updated to be reviewed and non-audit services 
approved on an annual basis.

Implementation of King IV™  • The terms of reference were updated with the requirements of King IV™ and all policies falling 
under the ambit of the committee.

SECTION 4: 
Corporate governance

P22

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

29



Audit and risk committee report continued

Execution of functions during 
the year 
The committee is satisfied that, for the 
2018 financial year, it has performed all 
the functions required to be performed by 
an audit and risk committee as set out in 
the Companies Act and the committee’s 
terms of reference. 

The audit and risk committee discharged 
its functions in terms of its terms of 
reference and ascribed to it in terms of 
the Companies Act during the year under 
review as follows: 

External audit
The committee among other matters: 

 • nominated PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(“PwC”) and Keeran Ramnarian as the 
external auditor and designated auditor 
respectively to shareholders for 
appointment as auditor for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2018, and ensured 
that the appointment complied with all 
applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements for the appointment of 
an auditor;

 • nominated the external auditor and the 
independent auditor for each material 
subsidiary company for reappointment;

 • requested from the audit firm, the 
formal letter of their latest inspection 
performed by IRBA on PwC and 
Keeran Ramnarian, including any 
findings, if applicable, to the firm  
and/or individual;

 • reviewed the audit effectiveness and 
evaluated the external auditor’s internal 
quality control procedures;

 • obtained an annual confirmation from 
the auditor that their independence 
was not impaired;

 • maintained a policy setting out the 
categories of non-audit services that 
the external auditor may and may not 
provide, split between permitted, 
permissible and prohibited services; 

 • approved non-audit services with 
PwC in accordance with its policy;

 • approved the external audit 
engagement letter, the plan and the 
budgeted audit fees payable to the 
external auditor; 

 • obtained assurances from the external 
auditor that adequate accounting 

records were being maintained by the 
company and its subsidiaries;

 • dealt with any reportable irregularities 
that were identified and reported by the 
external auditor in terms of the Auditing 
Profession Act, 26 of 2005; and 

 • considered any reported control 
weaknesses, management’s response 
for their improvement and assessed 
their impact on the general control 
environment. 

PwC has been the auditors of the group 
for two years and the committee is 
satisfied that PwC is independent of the 
group after taking the following factors 
into account: 

 • representations made by PwC to the 
committee;

 • the auditor does not, except as 
external auditor or in rendering 
permitted non-audit services, receive 
any remuneration or other benefit from 
the company;

 • the auditor’s independence was not 
impaired by any consultancy, advisory 
or other work undertaken by the 
auditor;

 • the auditor’s independence was not 
prejudiced as a result of any previous 
appointment as auditor; and 

 • the criteria specified for independence 
by the Independent Regulatory Board 
for auditors and international regulatory 
bodies. 

Internal audit 
The committee: 

 • reviewed and approved the internal 
audit charter and risk-based annual 
audit plan and evaluated the 
independence, effectiveness and 
performance of the internal audit 
department and compliance with 
its charter;

 • outsourced the internal audit function 
to Prozilog, represented by Everhard 
Carstens, and he is not a member of 
the executive team;

 • considered the reports of the internal 
auditor on the group’s system of 
internal control including financial 
controls, business risk management 
and maintenance of effective internal 
control systems;

 • received assurance that proper and 
adequate accounting records were 
maintained and that the systems 
safeguarded the assets against 
unauthorised use or disposal thereof; 
and

 • reviewed significant issues raised by 
the internal audit processes and the 
adequacy of corrective action in 
response to significant internal audit 
findings. 

The head of internal audit reports 
functionally to the chair of the committee 
and administratively to the chief financial 
officer. 

Adequacy and functioning of the 
group’s internal controls
The committee reviewed the plans and 
work outputs of the external and internal 
auditors and concluded that these were 
adequate to address all significant 
financial risks facing the business. 

As noted above, it also reviewed 
the reporting around the adequacy of 
the internal controls and based on this 
concluded that there had been no 
material breakdowns in internal control, 
including financial controls, business risk 
management and maintenance of 
effective material control systems. 

Financial reporting 
The audit and risk committee ensures 
that the financial reporting to stakeholders 
fairly presents the state of affairs of the 
group. This covers the annual financial 
statements, integrated annual report, 
interim and preliminary reporting. 

The committee among other matters: 
 • confirmed the going concern as the 
basis of preparation of the interim 
and annual financial statements;

 • reviewed compliance with the financial 
conditions of loan covenants and 
determined that the capital of the 
company was adequate;

 • examined and reviewed the interim and 
annual financial statements, as well as 
all financial information disclosed prior 
to the submission to the board for their 
approval and then for disclosure to 
stakeholders;
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 • ensured that the annual financial 
statements fairly present the financial 
position of the company and group as 
at the end of the financial year, the 
results of operations and cash flows for 
the financial year and considered the 
basis on which the company and group 
was determined to be a going concern;

 • considered the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies adopted and 
changes thereto;

 • reviewed the external auditor’s audit 
report and key audit matters included;

 • reviewed the representation letter 
relating to the annual financial 
statements which was signed by 
management;

 • considered any problems identified 
and reviewed any significant legal and 
tax matters that could have a material 
impact on the annual financial 
statements; and 

 • considered accounting treatments, 
significant unusual transactions and 
accounting judgements. 

Significant areas of judgement 
In arriving at the figures disclosed in the 
annual financial statements there are 
many areas where judgement is needed. 
These are outlined in note 2(d) to the 
annual financial statements. The audit 
and risk committee has examined the 
quantum of the assets and liabilities on 
the statements of financial position and 
other items that require significant 
judgement including:

 • Pentafloor business combination;
 • impairment of goodwill acquired in a 
business combination;

 • impairment of investment in Pentafloor 
(Pty) Limited; and 

 • going concern statement.

Risk management and 
information technology (“IT”) 
governance 
The committee:

 • ensured the value delivery on IT and 
monitor the return on investments on 
significant IT projects;

 • ensured that intellectual property 
contained in information systems are 
protected;

 • ensured that adequate business 
arrangements are in place for disaster 
recovery;

 • ensured that all personal information is 
treated by the company as an 
important business asset and is 
identified; and

 • reviewed and recommended to the 
board for approval any policies 
proposed by management and relevant 
to the areas of responsibility of the 
committee.

Legal and regulatory requirements 
To the extent that these may have an 
impact on the annual financial statements, 
the committee:

 • reviewed legal matters that could have 
a material impact on the group;

 • reviewed the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the group’s procedures, 
including its risk management 
framework, to ensure compliance with 
legal and regulatory responsibilities; 

 • monitored complaints received via the 
group’s whistle-blowing service; and 

 • considered reports provided by 
management, internal audit and the 
external auditor regarding compliance 
with legal and regulatory requirements. 

Expertise and experience of the 
chief financial officer and the 
financial function 
As required by 3.84(h) of the JSE Listings 
Requirements, the committee 
has satisfied itself that the chief financial 
officer, Maarten Coetzee, has the 
appropriate expertise and experience. In 
addition, the committee satisfied itself that 
the composition, experience and skills set 
of the finance function met the group’s 
requirements. 

Election of committee at the 
annual general meeting
Pursuant to the provisions of section 
94(2) of the Companies Act, which require 
that a public company must elect an audit 
committee at each annual general 
meeting, it is proposed in the notice 
of annual general meeting to be 
held on 18 January 2019 that 
Andile Mjamekwana, Ralph Patmore and 
Eric Ratshikhopha be reappointed as 
members of the audit and risk committee 

until the next annual general meeting 
in 2019. 

Evaluation of the committee
In line with King IV™, the committee 
agreed to conduct an evaluation on the 
committee’s performance every second 
year. An evaluation will be conducted 
during 2018 and the results will be 
included in the next integrated annual 
report. 

Integrated annual report
Following the review by the committee 
of the consolidated annual financial 
statements of Accéntuate Limited for the 
year ended 30 June 2018, the committee 
is of the view that in all material aspects 
they comply with the relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act and International 
Financial Reporting Standards and fairly 
present the consolidated and separate 
financial positions at that date and the 
results of operations and cash flows for 
the year then ended. The committee has 
also satisfied itself of the integrity of the 
integrated annual report and the 
sustainability information reported therein. 

Recommendation of the 
integrated annual report for 
approval by the board
Having achieved its objectives, the 
committee has recommended the annual 
financial statements and the integrated 
annual report for the year ended 30 June 
2018 for approval to the board. The 
board has subsequently approved the 
reports, which will be open for discussion 
at the forthcoming annual general 
meeting. 

Andile Mjamekwana
Audit and risk committee chairman 
23 November 2018
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Social and ethics committee report

Performance for 2018
This report is prepared in compliance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2008 as amended (“the Companies Act”) 
and describes how the committee 
discharged its responsibilities in respect 
of the financial year ended 30 June 2018 
and will be presented to the shareholders 
at the annual general meeting to be held 
on 18 January 2019.

Social and ethics committee 
members
During the reporting period, the group 
financial manager resigned from the 
company and was replaced by Pholoso 
Masilela, the new group financial manager
and as a member of the committee. 
Sadly, Pholoso passed away on 5 August 
2018. She fulfilled her role with 
enthusiasm, dedication and distinction 
and our heartfelt condolences are with 
her family. It was further decided to invite 

Donald Platt, managing director of 
FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited, to the 
meeting in order to align operating 
subsidiaries to the sustainability, 
transformation and social matters of the 
group. Subsequent to the year end, 
Donald Platt was appointed to fill the 
vacancy in the committee. The committee 
therefore comprises one independent 
non-executive director and two 
prescribed officers. 

Two meetings took place during the reporting period. The committee composition and meeting attendance are below:

Name Position Qualification Experience
Meetings 
attended

Eric Ratshikhopha Independent 
chairman

BA (Hons) Sociology, 
Advanced Programme in 
Labour Relations, Senior 
Executive Programme, 
Harvard School of 
Business, Masters of 
Management

Over 30 years’ experience in 
management, transformation, stakeholder 
relations and community development

2/2

Pholoso Masilela* Group financial 
manager

BCom (Hons) Accounting, 
CA(SA)

Over six years’ experience in financial and 
audit environment

1/1

Eric Platt Managing 
director: 
Safic group

Matric Over 30 years’ business experience 2/2

*  It is with great sadness that we announced the passing of Pholoso Masilela who was group financial manager for Accéntuate. She fulfilled her role with 
enthusiasm, dedication and distinction, making an immeasurable contribution to the group. Our condolences are extended to her family and friends.

Responsibilities of the committee
The social and ethics committee’s terms 
of reference were updated with the 
requirements of King IV™. In accordance 
with the terms of reference and annual 
work plan, the committee fulfils the 
functions and responsibilities assigned to 
it in terms of the company’s compliance 
with the applicable requirements of 
Regulation 43 of the South African 
Companies Act, the company’s activities 
in relation to relevant legislation and 
prevailing codes of best practice and 
such other functions as may be assigned 
to it by the board from time to time in 
order to assist the board in ensuring that 
the group remains a responsible 
corporate citizen. 

The key objectives and responsibilities of 
the committee, which are aligned with the 
committee’s statutory functions as set out 
in the Companies Act, form the basis of 
its annual work plan, and include the 
following:

 • Social and economic development.
 • The group’s standing relative to the 
United Nations Global Compact 
Principles, the OECD recommendations 
regarding the combating of corruption 
and human rights.

 • Compliance with the Employment 
Equity Amendment Act, 47 of 2013 
and  the Broad-Based Black Economic 
Empowerment Act, 53 of 2003 and 
associated codes of good practice.

 • Good corporate citizenship, including 
the group’s contribution to the 
development of communities in which 
it operates or markets it goods to and 
the group’s record of sponsorships, 
donations and charitable giving.

 • Good corporate citizenship, including 
the group’s positioning and efforts in 
promoting equality, preventing unfair 
discrimination and combating 
corruption.

 • Promotion of equality and 
transformation and preventing unfair 
discrimination, through its code of 
conduct and business ethics and 

other social responsibility policies and 
strategies.

 • The environment, health and public 
safety, including the impacts of the 
group’s activities and products on 
the environment and society.

 • Consumer relationships, including the 
group’s advertising, public relations 
and compliance with consumer 
protection laws.

 • Labour and employment, including the 
group’s standing relative to the ILO 
Protocol on Decent Work and 
working conditions, and the group’s 
employment relationships and 
contribution to the educational 
development of its employees.

 • Generally, the monitoring of the social, 
ethics, economic, governance, 
employment and environmental 
activities of the group against 
internationally recognised human 
rights principles and other relevant 
best practice standards.

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

32



The committee is pleased to report back on its focus areas of 2018 and lists its focus areas for the current financial year:

Focus areas during 2018 Delivery 2018

Minimum wage 
implementation 

 • The group is pleased to report that all employees are paid in excess of the minimum wage 
requirements

Code of ethics and 
business conduct 

 • The code of ethics and business conduct was reviewed and updated in line with the 
requirements of King IV™ and are being implemented

Section 34 of the Prevention 
and Combating of Corrupt 
Activities Act, 12 of 2004

 • Implementation of section 34 was discussed and will be overseen by the security forum

Implementation of King IV™  • The terms of reference were updated in line with the requirements of King IV™

2019 focus areas
 • Implementation of the company’s 
ethical standards in all relevant 
documentation of all stakeholders and 
the monitoring of any breaches in terms 
of the code of conduct and business 
conduct.

 • Identify the key ethical risks of 
the group.

 • Proactive stakeholder engagement and 
formalisation of the group’s stakeholder 
engagement policy and plan.

 • Improve on the current B-BBEE rating.

Ethics and business conduct
The group’s code of ethics and business 
conduct which embodies our guiding 
principles and values, was reviewed 
during the year, updated with the 
recommendations by King IV™ and 
confirmed to be relevant and effective. 
This policy deals with, inter alia, no 
tolerance for discrimination in whatever 
form, human rights, health and safety 
and the implementation of the group’s 
ethical standards to stakeholders. The 
code of ethics and business conduct 
is available on the company’s website 
www.accentuateltd.co.za. 

The company’s fraud line, available since 
2015, was reviewed during the year and 
confirmed to be relevant and effective, 
providing an appropriate balance 
between encouraging reporting and 
discouraging malicious and frivolous 
reporting. A special box was also 
placed in the canteen for employees to 
anonymously submit any fraud-related 
matters or general complaints, but no 
reports/requests were received through 
this channel. 

Labour
Employment equity policies embody 
our commitment to implementing 
employment equity across the group. 
During the year under review, further 
attention was given to ensure our 
compliance with the Employment 
Equity Act. 

Skills development remains an area of 
focus and the various skills development 
programmes that have been implemented 
are reported on more fully in this 
integrated annual report.

Refer to the sustainability report which 
is contained on the group’s website 
www.accentuateltd.co.za for more 
information. 

Socioeconomic development
The group’s commitment is to foster good 
relations with the communities in which it 
operates, and in so doing continues to 
pursue its business philosophy which is 
to draw the staff it needs from the local 
communities thereby providing much-
needed employment and other 
socioeconomic benefits to local 
communities. 

Transformation
Accéntuate remains focused on achieving 
its transformation goals and objectives. 
During the reporting period, Accéntuate 
Limited achieved a level 5 B-BBEE rating. 

SECTION 4: 
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Social and ethics committee report continued

Stakeholder management
The stakeholder engagement framework 
outlines the group’s guiding principles for 
stakeholder engagement which are 
congruent with the values espoused in 

the group’s formal code of ethics and 
business conduct. Formalisation of the 
group’s stakeholder engagement plan 
remained an agenda item.

The company strives to provide an 
attractive return to shareholders and valid, 
accurate and relevant information which 
complies with all related legislation 
through the shareholders’ selected 
channel of communication. 

The following is the progress made against the scorecard of Accéntuate Limited:

Scorecard element BEE score Planned future focus areas

Equity ownership 17,06  • Increase black ownership and black women ownership.

Management control (including 
employment equity)

4,87  • Align workforce EE targets with the “economically active population” 
targets.

 • Drive new recruitment adherence to reduce deviations.

Skills development 17,87  • Develop subsidiary training budgets for permanent staff.

Enterprise and supplier development:
 • Preferential procurement
 • Enterprise development
 • Supplier development

30,93  • Build on and improve on group’s preferred supplier list in order that 
all business units procure from the most B-BBEE preferred suppliers 
to increase procurement points.

 • Supplier development initiatives to be developed – support current 
SMMEs on our supplier register with direct and overhead costs as 
well as internal services rendered at no cost; training and 
development initiatives for these beneficiaries.

Socioeconomic development 5,0  • Continue to implement the CSI initiatives that will ensure 
achievement of all SED points of the scorecard.

 

Stakeholder group Key issues Our response thereto

Shareholders and 
investor community

Business sustainability, share liquidity; debt-to-
equity ratio; ROI.

Operate with the optimal capital structure; review 
of debt facility; investor presentations and road 
shows, face-to-face meetings; strategy execution; 
risk management.

Customers Legislative and regulatory landscape, Consumer 
Protection Act compliance. 

Product and service innovation, services 
integration; customer service; employee benefits; 
labour law education, business consulting, training, 
risk management; compliance; delayed negative 
decision making by clients; credit terms.

Employees Working conditions, benefits, employee welfare, 
training, mentoring, succession planning, 
remuneration, reward and recognition, benefits, 
discipline, working conditions, health and safety, 
water saving.

Ongoing legal and regulatory training for sales and 
operational staff; line of sight for promotions, 
improved remuneration, clear KPIs, added 
benefits, improvement in health and safety, 
improved efficiency, training, upskilling, staff 
retention, lower absenteeism, awareness and 
education on the subject of water saving, 
specifically in the Western Cape.

Local communities Youth employment, training and skills 
development, mentoring, community leader 
engagement, labour desks, local recruitment, 
employee welfare, local vendors, CSI community 
support, local school support.

Focus on youth employment, recruitment drives to 
source staff from local communities, trust in brand, 
trust in recruitment process, utilisation of local 
service providers, effective reporting, brand 
support, community support through CSI 
initiatives.
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Stakeholder group Key issues Our response thereto

Government and 
regulators

Compliance with industry regulation, skills 
development, B-BBEE, employment equity, 
JSE Listings Requirements

Legislative and regulatory compliance, 
transformation and B-BBEE, risk management, 
trusted brand.

Suppliers Preferential supplier listing, products and pricing, 
empowerment rating, enterprise development 

Underwriting tender process established, product 
availability, preferential supplier agreements, 
empowered supplier status, transformation 
strategy, enterprise development negotiations. 

Media Results announcements, media statements, 
editorials, advertisements, meetings

Public relations, communications and marketing 
strategy, response to socioeconomic issues.

Banks, funders, 
insurance companies 
and the JSE

Performance of the company, governance, cash 
flow and capital allocation

Operate with the optimal capital structure, review 
of debt facility, investor presentations and road 
shows, face-to-face meetings, strategy execution, 
risk management.

Sustainability
The sustainability framework and the 
associated pillars which apply to all our 
operating divisions and within which the 
group’s sustainability journey will be 
managed, is currently under review by the 
chief executive officer, Fred Platt, in order 
to embed sustainability into the group, 
and to ensure further integration into the 
group’s corporate strategies together with 
the establishment of operational 
performance indicators.

Environment
The group aims to reduce the negative 
impacts of the group’s trading entities. 

Refer to the sustainability report which 
is contained on the group website 
www.accentuateltd.co.za for more 
information. 

Health and safety
Safety standards are continuously 
reviewed and monitored. The group had 
no fatalities during the year and lost time 
due to injuries reduced dramatically to 
three hours (2017: 355 hours). These 
three hours were lost in Safic and 
Floorworx had zero lost time due to 
injuries across the year under review.

Evaluation of committee 
performance
In line with King IV™, the board and 
sub-committees agreed to only evaluate 
the board and its sub-committees every 
second year. Therefore no evaluation 
was conducted for the reporting period, 
and the results of the evaluation to be 
conducted during 2018 will be included 
in the 2019 integrated annual report. 

Eric Ratshikhopha
Social and ethics committee 
chairman
23 November 2018
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Remuneration and nominations committee report

This report comprises three sections: 

 • PART I: Matters considered by the 
remuneration and nominations 
committee;

 • PART II: Remuneration policies and 
principles for shareholders’ vote at the 
annual general meeting; and

 • PART III: Implementation report of the 
remuneration policy.

PART I: REPORT FROM THE 
REMUNERATION AND 
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
In reviewing the committee’s composition 
during the year, it was decided that, due 
to the size of the company, the 
remuneration and nominations committee 
would remain one committee.

Appointment of directors to 
the board
Apart from a candidate’s experience, 
availability and likely fit, the committee 
also considers the candidate’s integrity, 
as well as other directorships and 
commitments to ensure that the 
candidate will have sufficient time to 
discharge his/her role properly. An 
appointment of directors to the board 
policy was adopted during the reporting 
period. The remuneration and 
nominations committee also considers 
race and gender diversity in its 
assessment in line with its gender and 
race diversity policy and voluntary targets 
were adopted during the reporting period. 

Remuneration and nominations 
committee members
The committee comprises three 
non-executive directors, two of whom 
are independent. The chairman is not 
independent as classified in terms of 
King IV™, but acts independently as 
defined by the Companies Act, 2008 as 
amended. 

The chairman of the board is not eligible 
for appointment as chairman of the 
committee, but will preside as chairman 
when the committee fulfils its oversight 
responsibilities on nomination matters 
and board/director interactions.

One meeting was held during the 
reporting period and the second meeting 
only after year end due to a planned 
change in the scheduling of meetings to 
facilitate timeous feedback to the board. 

The committee composition and meeting attendance are below:

Name Position Qualification Experience
Meetings
attended

Pieter Kriel Non-executive 
chairman 
(remuneration)

BAcc (Hons), CA(SA), 
Certificate in Senior 
Management

Over 20 years’ experience in finance and 
financial management

1/1

Ralph Patmore Independent 
member 
(nominations 
chairman)

BCom, MBL, Stanford 
Executive Programme

Over 30 years’ experience in 
management, strategy, mergers and 
acquisitions and accounting matters

1/1

Eric Ratshikhopha Independent 
member

BA (Hons) Sociology, 
Advanced Programme in 
Labour Relations, Senior 
Executive Programme, 
Harvard School of 
Business, Masters of 
Management

Over 30 years’ experience in 
management, transformation, stakeholder 
relations and community development

1/1
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Role of the remuneration and 
nominations committee 
The remuneration and nominations 
committee has adopted an updated 
formal terms of reference, approved by 
the board, setting out its duties and 
responsibilities. The requirements of 
King IV™ are also included in this new 
terms of reference.

The committee: 
 • assumes responsibility for the 
governance of remuneration by setting 
the direction for how remuneration 
should be approached and addressed 
on a company-wide basis;

 • approves a remuneration policy that 
articulates and gives effect to its 
direction on fair, responsible and 
transparent remuneration;

 • ensures the remuneration policy and 
implementation report is put to a 
non-binding advisory vote at the annual 
general meeting of shareholders once 
every year;

 • considers the results of the 
performance evaluation of the chief 

executive officer and chief financial 
officer, both as directors and as 
executives, in determining 
remuneration;

 • recommends to the board the 
remuneration of non-executive directors 
for approval by shareholders; 

 • determines the policy and scope of 
pension arrangements, service 
agreements, termination payments, 
compensation commitments and make 
recommendations to the board on the 
benefits for executive directors;

 • reviews market trends and reputable 
survey results in determining such 
packages and arrangements;

 • regularly reviews the incentive scheme 
to ensure continued contribution to 
shareholder value and that these are 
administered in terms of the rules;

 • to ensure compliance to all statutory 
and best practice requirements 
regarding labour and industrial 
relations management;

 • assumes responsibility for its 
composition by setting the direction 
and approving the process for it to 

attain the appropriate balance of 
knowledge, skills, experience, diversity 
and independence to objectively and 
effectively discharge its governance role 
and responsibilities;

 • regularly reviews the board structure, 
size, composition and mix of skills and 
experience and makes 
recommendations to the board with 
regards to any adjustments that are 
deemed necessary;

 • sets targets for race and gender 
representation in its membership;

 • establishes arrangements for periodic, 
staggered rotation of its members 
so as to invigorate its capabilities by 
introducing members with new 
expertise and perspectives while 
retaining valuable knowledge, skills 
and experience and maintaining 
continuity; and

 • ensures succession plans for the chief 
executive officer and senior 
management appointments are 
developed and implemented. 

The committee is pleased to report back on its focus areas of 2018 and lists its focus areas for the new financial year:

Focus areas during 2018 Delivery 2018

Introduced the new 
remuneration report to 
shareholders 

 • The remuneration report, including the remuneration policy and implementation report, are 
included in this integrated annual report and will be tabled to shareholders for approval as two 
separate resolutions at the company’s annual general meeting

Gender and race 
representation on the board

 • The committee set voluntary targets in terms of race and gender representation on the board 
and approved a policy for implementation

Implementation of King IV™  • The terms of reference were updated with the requirements of King IV™ and all policies falling 
under the ambit of the committee

2019 focus areas
 • Maturing of the remuneration policy.
 • Improving succession planning and 
ensuring its implementation.

Committee evaluation
The board agreed to adopt the King IV™ 
recommended practice to only evaluate 
the board and sub-committees every 
second year. Consequently, the 

committee was not evaluated during 
the reporting period. An evaluation will 
be conducted during 2019 and the 
results will be included in the 2019 
remuneration report. 

Pieter Kriel
Remuneration and nominations 
committee chairman
23 November 2018
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Remuneration and nominations committee report continued

PART II: REMUNERATION 
POLICY
Background statement 
The group’s remuneration policy aims to 
attract, retain and motivate skilled and 
performing employees to execute the 

group’s strategy. The remuneration 
philosophy and framework is 
predominantly guided by the business 
strategy. During the reporting period, 
the remuneration policy and framework 
was enhanced in line with King IV™ in a 

conscious effort to give effect to the 
principles of fair, responsible and 
transparent remuneration. Where 
appropriate, information for employees 
below executive level are included.

The group offers an integrated remuneration and reward model, which comprises:

1

23

Short-term
incentive

(“STI”)

Long-term
incentive

(“LTI”)

Cost-to-
company/

guaranteed 
pay

(“CTC”)

Accéntuate is commissioning PE Corporate Services for the benchmarking of executive salaries for the 2019 financial year. 

Remuneration structure

CTC Variable pay

Element Base pay Benefits STI LTI

Accéntuate group  • Monthly salary
 • Hourly wage

 • Provident fund
 • Funeral benefit 
 • Death/disability 
benefit

 • Annual incentive
 • Bonus scheme

 • Share appreciation 
rights

 • Performance shares

Objective  • Retention and 
attraction

 • Retention in 
terms of the 
comprehensiveness 
of benefits offered

 • Attraction to offer 
similar benefits to 
prospective 
employees

 • Reward company and 
group performance

 • Reward individual 
performance

 • Retention/attraction 
recognition

 • Reward company and 
group performance

 • Reward individual 
performance

 • Retention/attraction 
recognition

 • Recognition of the 
group’s long-term 
success
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Short-term incentive
The group awards management and 
most salaried employees on an annual 
performance incentive. The actual value 
awarded is subject to the achievement of 
predetermined thresholds relating to the 
performance and position of the group 
and individual performance during the 
reporting period. 

The executive directors are appraised 
against a clear set of objectives and key 
performance indicators to ensure they 
are remunerated fairly and responsibly. 
Executive directors and senior managers 
are measured and remunerated according 
to their alignment, achievement and 
contribution to the group’s strategy, 
financial performance and individual 
performance. 

In its evaluation of performance of 
individuals, the remuneration and 
nominations committee considers 
external and internal factors that may 
have contributed to the thresholds not 
being met. The committee may from time 
to time consider discretionary short-term 
bonuses for individuals. 

All payments in terms of the quantitative 
portion of the short-term incentive 
scheme are based on audited year-end 
results. The bonus paid out therefore 
always relate to the results of the 
previous year. 

The following performance criteria will be 
measured for the 2018/2019 financial 
year to determine bonus payments made 
to executive directors:

 • Hurdle 1: 12% return on equity (“ROE”).
Hurdle 2: 80% of the previous year’s 
earnings before interest and tax 
(“EBIT”).

 • Hurdle 3: other elements
 – 50% of award based on ROE 
achieved target (hurdle 1 and 2 
above).

 – 25% of award based on strategic 
goals and targets achieved.

 – 15% of awards based on operational 
targets/goals.

 – 10% of award is at the discretion of 
the board.

Long-term incentive
The long-term incentive plan forms part 
of the variable compensation and is used 
to attract, retain and motivate employees 
who influence the long-term sustainability 
and strategic objectives of the group. 
The purpose is to foster sustainable 
performance or value creation over the 
long term, which is aligned to the group’s 
strategy and which enhances stakeholder 
value. Its main characteristic is the 
promise to deliver value over a future 
vesting period, once performance criteria 
are met or exceeded. 

The following criteria would be used to 
measure performance:

 • Performance would be measured on 
the movement in total shareholders’ 
return (“TSR”) as a percentage 
compared to the percentage movement 
in the Industrial Share Index (“ISI”).

 • Shareholder return calculated using 
90-day VWAP leading to the start and 
the end of the measuring period.

 • If ISI is lower at the end of the three-
year period than at the time of the 
award, and TSR movement is also 
negative, then no vesting can take 
place.

 • The maximum of options would be 
based on twice the chief executive 
officer’s guaranteed package.

Increases
At an individual employee level, the 
annual CTC increases are determined by 
the individual’s pay relative to the band 
he/she is in, as well as the performance 
of the individual in the role. The average 
increase for 2018 was 6%, payable to 
employees subject to a performance 
evaluation. 

Policy on directors’ remuneration
The directors are appointed to the board 
to bring competencies and experience 
appropriate to achieving the group’s 
objectives.

Non-executive directors
It is the group’s policy to identify, attract 
and retain non-executive directors who 
can add significant value to Accéntuate. 
The board applies principles of good 
corporate governance relating to 
directors’ remuneration and also keeps 
abreast of changing trends. Governance 
of directors’ remuneration is undertaken 
by the committee. 

The committee takes cognisance of 
market norms and practices as well as 
additional responsibilities placed on the 
board members by new legislation and 
corporate governance principles. 

The fees for non-executive directors 
is recommended by the committee 
and will be approved by the shareholders 
at the annual general meeting in 
January 2019. 

Non-executive directors receive a base 
fee for their main board membership and 
an attendance fee per meeting. Board 
members only receive fees for meetings 
they attend. 

SECTION 4: 
Corporate governance
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Remuneration and nominations committee report continued

Category
Recommended 

remuneration

Chairman R252 000 annual retainer
Board member R91 900 annual retainer

R15 300 per meeting attended
Audit and risk committee
Chairman R20 000 per meeting attended
Member R15 300 per meeting attended
Remuneration and nominations committee
Chairman R10 000 per meeting attended
Member R7 800 per meeting attended
Social and ethics committee
Chairman R10 000 per meeting attended

Member R7 800 per meeting attended

Use of external remuneration 
advisers
From time to time, advice from external 
remuneration advisers (specified 
above) are obtained to ensure that 
the remuneration policy and the 
implementation thereof are informed by 
market-related data, current industry 
and general best practice remuneration 
trends. The committee is satisfied that 
the services rendered by these external 
advisers were at all times independent 
and objective. Overall, the committee is 
satisfied that the remuneration policy 
achieved its objectives for the past year.

Results of previous voting on the 
remuneration policy and voting 
procedures going forward
Accéntuate received a 99,9% non-
binding advisory vote in favour of the 
remuneration policy at the annual general 
meeting held on 24 November 2017. 
Going forward, the remuneration policy 
(as set out in PART II) and our 
implementation report (as set out in 
PART III) will be put to shareholders as 
two separate non-binding advisory votes. 

PART III: REMUNERATION 
IMPLEMENTATION REPORT
The remuneration implementation report 
details the outcomes following the 
implementation of the approved 
remuneration policy detailed on pages 38 
and 39 above. 

Total directors’ remuneration
The table below provides an overview of 
the total remuneration paid to executive 
and non-executive directors for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2018:

The policy on remuneration for non-
executive directors is that this should:

 • be market-related (having regard to 
the median fees paid and number of 
meetings attended by non-executive 
directors of companies of similar size 
and structure to similar sectors); and

 • not be linked to the share price of 
Accéntuate. 

The non-executive director fees are 
benchmarked against the fee survey 
issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers 
annually. 

Non-executive directors do not receive 
bonuses or share options, as it is 
recognised that this can create potential 
conflict of interest which can impair the 
independence which non-executive 

directors are expected to bring to bear 
in decision making by the board. 

Shareholders will be requested to 
approve an overall increase of 6% and 
introduce new meeting attendance fees 
for the committee chairman as set out in 
the notice of annual general meeting on 
page 110 and below:

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Executive directors 12 011 12 783
Non-executive directors 898 806

Total 12 909 13 589
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Non-executive directors’ 
remuneration
The participation of non-executive 
directors in the group is essential to the 
group achieving its strategic objectives 
and non-executive directors’ fees are 
therefore recommended by the executive 

directors and remuneration and 
nominations committee with this in mind. 

In accordance with the Companies Act, 
and the company’s memorandum of 
incorporation, non-executive directors’ 
fees are approved by the shareholders at 

the annual general meeting. The current 
fee levels are to be approved by 
shareholders at the annual general 
meeting to be held in January 2019 and 
is stated on page 110 of the notice of 
annual general meeting included in this 
integrated annual report. 

Executive directors’ remuneration

Executive directors

Guaranteed
remuneration

 R’000

Other 
expenses 

R’000

Retirement
fund

contributions
R’000

Performance-
based

remuneration 
R’000

Gains on
exercise of

SARS/Share
options 

R’000

Total 
emoluments

R’000

2018
Fred Platt 2 387 502 237 192 154 3 473
Maarten Coetzee 1 497 221 149 121 – 1 988
Donald Platt 2 042 553 316 – 116 3 027
Eric Platt* 1 692 505 168 165 101 2 631
Paresh Dayah (10 months)* 563 156 111 62 – 892

Total 8 181 1 937 981 541 371 12 011

2017
Fred Platt 2 890 – 223 211 – 3 324
Maarten Coetzee (five months) 680 – 60 – – 740
Donald Platt 2 631 – 429 330 – 3 390
Eric Platt* 2 180 – 158 16 – 2 354
Paresh Dayah* 914 – 126 150 – 1 190
Chris Povall (nine months)  1 491 – 107 187 – 1 785

Total 10 786 – 1 103 894 – 12 783

* Prescribed officers

The total amount spent on non-executive directors’ fees for 2018 and 2017 (excluding VAT) are as follows:

Non-executive director

2018 
non-executive 
directors’ fees

R’000

2017 
non-executive 
directors’ fees

R’000

Ralph Patmore 391 328
Eric Ratshikhopha 210 162
Thys du Preez 174 148
Thebe Investment Corporation (Pieter Kriel and Andile Mjamekwana) 123 168

Total 898 806

Directors’ service contracts
There are no fixed-term service contracts 
for executive or non-executive directors. 
The remuneration and nominations 

committee reviewed the employment 
contracts of the chief executive officer 
and chief financial officer and found this 
to be still appropriate to meet the needs 

of the company. Notice periods for these 
executive directors are six months. 

SECTION 4: 
Corporate governance

P22

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

41



Shareholders’ analysis

Shareholder spread
Number of 

shareholdings %
Number of 

shares %

1 – 1 000 shares 388 56,81 82 625 0,06
1 001 – 10 000 shares 161 23,57 848 703 0,61
10 001 – 100 000 shares 85 12,45 2 983 373 2,14
100 001 – 1 000 000 shares 30 4,39 9 056 602 6,50
1 000 001 shares and over 19 2,78 126 394 885 90,69

Total 683 100,00 139 366 188 100,00

Distribution of shareholders
Banks/brokers 5 0,73 29 547 966 21,20
Close corporations 6 0,88 65 042 0,05
Endowment fund 1 0,15 1 990 0,00
Individuals 637 93,27 33 417 129 23,98
Other corporations 4 0,59 136 459 0,10
Private companies 13 1,90 66 997 326 48,07
Share trust 1 0,15 2 896 971 2,08
Treasury stock 1 0,15 1 081 919 0,78
Trusts 15 2,20 5 221 386 3,75

Total 683 100,00 139 366 188 100,00

Public/non-public shareholders
Non-public shareholders 17 2,49 70 816 699 50,81
Directors of the company 3 0,44 8 832 874 6,34
Management of the company 9 1,32 66 000 0,05
Share trust 1 0,15 2 896 971 2,08
Treasury stock 1 0,15 1 081 919 0,78
Strategic holdings (more than 10%) 3 0,44 57 938 935 41,57
Public shareholders 666 97,51 68 549 489 49,19

Total 683 100,00 139 366 188 100,00

Beneficial shareholders holding 5% or more
TBI Strategic Partners (Pty) Limited 40 285 492 28,91
Thebe Investment Corporation 17 653 443 12,67
Jacana Assets Limited 13 541 684 9,72
Pruta Securities 12 004 605 8,61
F Platt 7 232 874 5,19

Total 90 718 098 65,09

* Accéntuate increased its shares in issue from 134 048 757 to 139 366 188.
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Directors’ interests Beneficial

2018 Status of director Direct Indirect

% of 
issued 
share 

capital

Fred Platt Executive 6 573 408 659 466 5,19
Donald Platt Executive 1 600 000 1,15
Thys du Preez (TBI Strategic Partners) Non-executive 40 285 492 28,91
Ockert Goosen (TBI Strategic Partners) Alternate to Thys du Preez 40 285 492 28,91
Pieter Kriel (Thebe Investment Corporation) Non-executive 17 653 443 12,67
Andile Mjamekwana (Thebe Investment Corporation) Alternate to P Kriel 17 653 443 12,67

2017
Fred Platt Executive 6 573 408 659 466 5,40
Donald Platt Executive 1 600 000 1,19
Thys du Preez (TBI Strategic Partners) Non-executive 40 170 544 29,97
Ockert Goosen (TBI Strategic Partners) Alternate to Thys du Preez 40 170 544 29,97
Pieter Kriel (Thebe Investment Corporation) Non-executive 17 653 443 13,17
Andile Mjamekwana (Thebe Investment Corporation) Alternate to P Kriel 17 653 443 13,17

Share price performance
Traded price (cents per share)
– Close 50
– High 85
– Low 23
Market capitalisation 69 683 094
Value of shares traded 4 707 851
Value traded as % of market cap (%) 6,76
Volume of shares traded 6 493 101
Volume traded as % of number in issue (%) 4,66
Dividend yield –
Earnings yield (6,46)
Period-end market price/NAV –
Shares in issue 139 366 188
Average number of shares in issue 137 643 340
Number of shareholders 683

Interaction with shareholders and diary
Please note that the company’s policy on interaction with shareholders as well as the shareholders’ diary can both be found on the 
website (www.accentuateltd.co.za) under the investor relations tab.

SECTION 5: 
Shareholders
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Directors’ responsibility and approval

Certification by the company secretary

The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity 
and fair presentation of the financial statements and other 
information included on pages 45 and 46 and 54 to 105 in 
this report. In presenting the accompanying financial statements, 
International Financial Reporting Standards, the JSE Listings 
Requirements, the Companies Act of South Africa, the SAICA 
Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting 
Practices Committee have been followed, applicable accounting 
assumptions have been used while prudent judgements and 
estimates have been made.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the 
financial statements. The directors have no reason to believe 
that the company or group will not be a going concern in the 
foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash 
resources. Given the results and conditions mentioned in the 
financial statements under note 2(b), we are aware of the need 
for management to generate additional cash flow as well as our 
financiers continuing to provide overdraft facilities to the group, 
which gives rise to a material uncertainty regarding the going 
concern status of the group. The financial statements support 

In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, 2008 as amended, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Properties Commission all such returns as are required of a public 
company in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Juba Statutory Services (Pty) Limited
(represented by Sirkien van Schalkwyk)
Company secretary

Johannesburg
23 November 2018

the viability of the company and group. The financial statements 
have been audited by the independent auditing firm 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc., as indicated in its report, which 
was given unrestricted access to all financial records and 
related data, including all resolutions and minutes of all meetings 
of the shareholders, and the board of directors and committees 
of the board. The directors believe that all representations made 
to the independent auditor during the audit were valid and 
appropriate.

The financial statements were approved by the directors on 
23 November 2018 and are signed on their behalf.

FC Platt M Coetzee
Chief executive officer  Chief financial officer

Johannesburg
23 November 2018
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The directors are pleased to submit their report for the year 
ended 30 June 2018.

Review of activities

Main business and operations
The Accéntuate group is engaged in the manufacturing, 
distribution and installation of flooring solutions; the 

manufacturing and supply of chemical infrastructural 
maintenance solutions; and the supply of water treatment 
chemicals and equipment. The group principally operates in 
southern Africa. The operating results and state of affairs of the 
group are fully set out in the attached financial statements and 
elsewhere in the integrated annual report, and do not in our 
opinion require any further comment.

Directors’ report

Directors
There were no changes made to directors during the reporting period. The directors of the company during the year and at the date 
of this report are as follows:

Name Position Appointment date

RB Patmore Independent non-executive director and 
chairman

30 September 2011 (appointed as chairman 
27 May 2015)

FC Platt Chief executive officer 6 December 2004

MJ Coetzee Chief financial officer 1 February 2017

DE Platt Executive director 1 June 2006

NE Ratshikhopha Independent non-executive director 30 September 2011

MM du Preez Non-executive director 1 March 2016

PS Kriel Non-executive director 1 August 2012

A Mjamekwana Alternate non-executive director to PS Kriel 5 August 2014

JO Goosen Alternate non-executive director to MM du 
Preez

17 November 2016

All the directors are South African.

Company secretary
The secretary of the company is Juba Statutory Services (Pty) 
Limited, represented by Sirkien van Schalkwyk.

Going concern
In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the 
financial statements, the directors are required to consider 
whether the group and company can continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future, which is for the 12 months 
following the date on which the annual financial statements are 
signed. 

The group’s results in the current year were severely impacted 
by the adverse trading conditions in the South African 
construction industry. As a result, the group incurred a net loss 
after taxation of R22 million, mainly as a result of significantly 
reduced production volumes at our East London facility, which 
affected all subsidiaries within the group. 

Despite incurring significant operational losses, the group’s 
current assets of R144 million exceed its current liabilities of 
R110 million and the group’s solvency ratio remains sufficient.

A number of turnaround initiatives have been launched within 
the group during the course of the current financial year, which 
includes:

 • A restructuring plan implemented in FloorworX Africa 
(Pty) Limited (“FloorworX”), which included the execution of 
a retrenchment plan and reorganisation within the functions 
of the company.

 • The renegotiation of the lease on the Steeledale premises, 
which has resulted in a R7 million saving per annum.

The group currently makes extensive use of its overdraft facilities 
of R28 million with its financiers and it is critical that these 
facilities are maintained. At year end the group had R16,7 million 
in overdraft facilities available to manage its working capital. The 
covenants relating to our main overdraft facility of R25 million 
and long-term bank loan with an outstanding balance of 
R14,8 million at 30 June 2018, were breached as a result of 
poor trading conditions. As a consequence of the breach, the 
bank loan has been classified as a current liability. Our financiers 
are, however, assessing conditions on a continuous basis and 
are committed to work closely with management to ensure that 
the facilities are maintained. The going concern status of the 
group is dependent on these facilities being available.
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Directors’ report continued

Given the results and conditions mentioned above, management 
is aware of the fact that the implementation of the initiatives 
mentioned are critical to maintain and grow operations in the 
group. The group is therefore dependent on management 
generating the cash flows from the initiatives mentioned as well 
as our financiers continuing to provide the current facilities to the 
group. This gives rise to a material uncertainty regarding the 
going concern status of the group and that it may be unable to 
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course 
of business.

The board will on a monthly basis monitor the group’s actual 
cash flows against those that have been forecast to ensure that 
any major deviations are considered so that appropriate and 
timeous action can be implemented as required.

Compliance with financial reporting standards
The Accéntuate Limited annual financial statements comply 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the 
Companies Act, 2018 as amended, the SAICA Financial 
Reporting Guides and the JSE Listings Requirements.

Authorised and issued share capital
The company issued 5 317 431 new ordinary shares on 
27 October 2017 as part of the conditions of the Pentafloor 
(Pty) Limited acquisition. The group did not repurchase any 
Accéntuate Limited shares during the year under review.

Refer to note 34 of the annual financial statements for further 
details.

Directors’ shareholding in Accéntuate Limited
During the reporting period, MM du Preez indirectly bought 
114 948 Accéntuate Limited shares via TBI Strategic Partners 
(Pty) Limited. The directors’ shareholdings are set out in the 
shareholders’ analysis on page 43 of the integrated annual 
report.

Interest in subsidiaries
Details of the company’s investments in subsidiaries are set 
out in note 14 of the annual financial statement.

Share options and share appreciation rights
The directors are authorised to issue, allot and grant options to 
acquire up to a maximum of 25 000 000 ordinary shares of the 
company in terms of the share incentive scheme. As at 
30 June 2018, this represented 17,9% (2017: 18,6%) of shares 
in issue. Share appreciation rights (“SARs”) have been awarded 
to identified senior executive management. 

A new total shareholder return scheme has replaced the share 
appreciation rights scheme effective 1 July 2017. The first 
allotment of options under the new scheme was made at 
30 June 2018 and will be settled in cash over the vesting period. 

Refer to note 27 for further details regarding the long-term 
incentive schemes.

Dividends
No dividends were declared during the period under review 
(2017: nil).

Borrowing limitations
In terms of the memorandum of incorporation of the company, 
the directors may exercise all the powers of the company to 
borrow money as they consider appropriate. The group’s 
borrowing facilities are as described in note 22 of the annual 
financial statements.

Directors’ emoluments
Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 33 of 
the annual financial statements and summarised in the 
remuneration report. 

Litigation statement
There has been no further legal action instituted by or against 
Accéntuate Limited during the financial year under review. 
Accéntuate Limited was granted a realisation order by the court 
relating to the fraud committed by the convicted financial 
director at FloorworX (Pty) Limited, which was recognised in the 
annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 
and has made substantial progress in liquidating these assets.

Directors’ interest in contracts
None of the directors of Accéntuate Limited has any disclosable 
interest in any party with which the group has contracted during 
the year.

Independent auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. was appointed as the group’s 
auditor in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act, 
2008 as amended and conducted the external audit for the year 
ended 30 June 2018.

Special resolutions
During the current financial year, the following special resolutions 
were passed by the company’s shareholders:

 • Authorisation for the company to repurchase shares.
 • The approval of the non-executive directors’ fees.
 • Financial assistance to related or inter-related entities of the 
company.

 • Financial assistance for the subscription of securities in the 
company or related entities.

RB Patmore
Chairman of the board

23 November 2018
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To the Shareholders of Accéntuate Limited
Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements   

Our opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and 
separate financial position of Accéntuate Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) as at 30 June 2018, 
and its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

What we have audited
Accéntuate Limited’s consolidated and separate financial statements set out on pages 54 to 105 comprise:

 • the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 30 June 2018;
 • the consolidated and separate statements of profit and loss and comprehensive income  for the year then ended;
 • the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;
 • the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and
 • the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section of our 
report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence
We are independent of the group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct 
for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in 
South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other 
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B).

Material uncertainty related to going concern
We draw attention to note 2(b) in the financial statements, which indicates that the group incurred a net loss of R22,2 million during 
the year ended 30 June 2018. As stated in note 2(b), these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2(b), 
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our audit approach
Overview

Overall group materiality
 • Overall group materiality: R2.9 million which represents 1% of group revenue.

Group audit scope
 • Full scope audits were performed on the four financially significant components. Analytical procedures were 
performed on the remaining insignificant components.

Key audit matters
 • Business Combination – Acquisition of Pentafloor (Pty) Limited
 • Impairment of goodwill acquired in a business combination
 • Impairment of investment in Pentafloor (Pty) Limited
 • Material uncertainty related to going concern.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated and 
separate financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors made subjective judgements; for example, in respect 
of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As 
in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters, 
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Independent auditor’s report SECTION 6: 
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain reasonable assurance whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered 
material if individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, including the overall group 
materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below. These, together with qualitative 
considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to 
evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall group materiality R2.9 million

How we determined it 1% of group revenue

Rationale for the materiality 
benchmark applied

We chose revenue as our materiality benchmark because, in our view, it is currently the most 
relevant benchmark  against which the performance of the group can be measured by users in 
circumstances of volatile year-on-year earnings. Under current economic conditions,  revenue 
is considered the driver of the trading business. 

We chose 1% based on our professional judgement, after consideration of the range of 
quantitative materiality thresholds that we would typically apply when using revenue to compute 
materiality for a profit-oriented entity in this sector.

How we tailored our group audit scope   
We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in 
which the group operates.

The group consists of the parent and twelve subsidiaries (referred to as components). We performed full scope audits on four 
components based on their financial significance in relation to the group as well as statutory requirements. For the remaining 
components we performed analytical procedures.

In establishing the overall approach to the group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be performed by us, as the 
group engagement team, and component auditors operating under our instruction. Where the work was performed by component 
auditors, we determined the level of involvement we needed to have in the audit work at those components to be able to conclude 
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the group financial statements as a 
whole.
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Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report on the consolidated and 
separate financial statements.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Business Combination – Acquisition of 
Pentafloor (Pty) Limited
This key audit matter relates to the consolidated  
financial statements. The group acquired 100% 
of the issued shares in Pentafloor (Pty) Limited 
(“Pentafloor”) on 29 September 2017 for a total 
consideration of R19.19 million. The acquisition 
resulted in goodwill of R9.7 million being 
recognised (refer to note 34 to the financial 
statements in this regard).  

The acquisition was funded through a long-term 
financing facility and the issuance of Accéntuate 
shares valued at R3.1 million. 

The group accounted for the acquisition in 
Pentafloor as a business combination in 
accordance with IFRS 3 – Business 
Combinations. On acquisition date the group 
measures the identifiable net assets at fair value. 
(refer to note 3.1(a) to the financial statements in 
this regard). 

The Pentafloor acquisition was considered to be 
a matter of most significance to the current year 
audit for the following reasons: 

 • The judgement involved in identification of all 
assets and liabilities assumed and the 
determination of contingent consideration 
payable; and

 • The degree of estimation in determining the 
fair value of the brands and customer 
relationships assumed.

We obtained the signed contracts relating to the acquisition of Pentafloor and 
utilised our IFRS accounting expertise to assess whether the IFRS 3 – 
Business Combinations requirements in relation to effective date of control 
have been met. 

We inspected the signed contracts and at acquisition financial information to 
identify all the assets and liabilities assumed as part of the acquisition, and 
evaluated this against that identified by management and found no material 
exceptions. 

In relation to the contingent consideration evident in the agreement, we 
performed the following procedures:

 • we obtained an understanding of the terms in the contract relating to the 
payment of contingent consideration; 

 • we obtained management’s assessment of the probability of meeting the 
terms of the contract for the contingent consideration to be paid; 

 • we evaluated the reasonability of management’s assessment by performing 
an independent calculation using historical and forecasted financial 
information relevant to the terms for contingent consideration;

 • the forecasted information used in performing the independent calculation 
was evaluated for reasonability using current South African economic data 
specific to the flooring industry; and

 • the likelihood of the contingent consideration being paid was estimated  by 
comparing the historical and forecasted profit after tax to the profit after tax 
targets per the acquisition contract. We accepted management’s estimate 
of the contingent consideration being at a nil value.

We obtained the valuation report issued by management’s  independent  
valuation expert, which was used to value the customer relationships and 
brands. We assessed the objectivity, independence and competence of 
management’s expert and noted no inconsistencies.  

By using our valuations expertise, we assessed the process, the underlying 
assumptions, and valuation methodology adopted by management’s experts 
in preparing the valuation. The discount rate and royalty rate originally used in 
the valuation was inconsistent with our assessment. We discussed this with 
management and they revised the discount rate and royalty rate as a result. 
We tested the journal entries and supporting workings relating to the 
accounting for the transaction and noted no exceptions.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Impairment assessment of  goodwill 
acquired in a business combination 
This key audit matter relates to the consolidated  
financial statements. The group has goodwill 
which relates to the acquisition of Pentafloor 
with a carrying amount of R9.7 million as at 
30 June 2018. The carrying amount of goodwill 
acquired in a business combination comprises 
cost recognised at the date of acquisition less 
any accumulated impairment.  IAS 36  
Impairment of Assets requires goodwill to be 
tested for impairment annually irrespective of 
any indicators that the carrying value of goodwill 
may be impaired. For the year ended 30 June 
2018, no impairment was recognised (refer to 
note 3.6 of the accounting policies and note 12 
to the financial statements in this regard).

For purposes of assessing impairment of 
goodwill acquired in business combinations, 
goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating 
units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from 
the combination (refer to note 3.10 (a) of the 
accounting policies in this regard).
 
The recoverable amount of each CGU was 
determined to be the value in use. Value in use 
is calculated by discounting expected pre-tax 
cash flows at a risk adjusted interest rate 
appropriate to the cash-generating unit.  Both 
the pre-tax cash flows and the risk adjusted 
interest rate require a degree of judgement in 
their determination. (refer to note 12 of the 
financial statements in this regard). 

The impairment assessment of goodwill was 
considered to be a matter of most significance 
to our audit due to the degree of estimation 
applied in determining the value in use of the 
respective cash-generating units to which 
goodwill has been allocated.

We obtained management’s value-in-use calculation and performed the 
following procedures to ensure the accuracy thereof:

 • we verified the mathematical accuracy of the calculation; and
 • we satisfied ourselves that goodwill has only been allocated to the 
Pentafloor CGU.

In assessing the reasonableness of the pre-tax cash flows, we performed the 
following procedures:  

 • agreed the pre-tax cash flows to the approved forecasts; 
 • tested the reasonableness of the approved forecasts by obtaining an 
understanding of how management determined the growth rate and 
evaluated the management determined growth rate against external factors 
such as CPI and GDP estimates and found this to be materially consistent 
with management; and

 • evaluated the assumptions applied by management in determining the 
pre-tax cash flows and found these to be appropriate. The assumptions 
considered most significant were the growth rates in EBITDA and revenue 
and the risk adjusted interest rate.

In evaluating the reasonableness of the risk adjusted interest rate used by 
management to discount the pre-tax cash flows, we performed the following 
procedures:

 • obtained an understanding of the manner in which management 
determined the rate at which the pre-tax cash flows have been discounted; 

 • independently verified the inputs used by management in its calculation to 
external sources; 

 • tested the mathematical accuracy and formulae used to calculate the risk 
adjusted interest rate; and

 • performed a sensitivity analysis to determine the effect on the impairment 
assessment by applying our independently determined rate and comparing 
that to the result determined by management and the results were within a 
reasonable range.
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Impairment of investment in Pentafloor (Pty) 
Limited
This key audit matter relates to the separate  
financial statements. Accéntuate Limited (“the 
company”) recognised an impairment loss of 
R2.1 million in relation to its investment in 
Pentafloor (Pty) Limited (“Pentafloor”) (refer to 
note 14 to the financial statements in this 
regard).

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost 
less any impairment losses in the company 
financial statements (refer to  note 3.1(b)(i) of the 
accounting policies in this regard). IAS 36  
Impairment of Assets requires an entity to 
assess at each reporting date whether there is 
any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
The losses experienced by Pentafloor and the 
general decline in the economic environment 
provided an indicator of potential impairment.

Management performed an impairment 
assessment of the investment in Pentafloor 
based on a value-in-use calculation. This 
assessment represents management’s 
assessment of future trends in the relevant 
industries and is based on historical data from 
both external and internal sources. (refer to note 
14 of the financial statements in this regard). 

The impairment assessment of the investment in 
Pentafloor was considered to be a matter of 
most significance to our audit due to the degree 
of judgement applied in determining the value in 
use of the respective cash-generating units to 
which goodwill has been allocated.

We obtained management’s value-in-use calculation and verified the 
mathematical accuracy thereof.

In assessing the reasonableness of the pre-tax cash flows of Pentafloor, we 
performed the following procedures:

 • agreed the pre-tax cash flows to the approved forecasts for Pentafloor;
 • tested the reasonableness of the approved forecasts by obtaining an 
understanding of how management determined the growth rate and 
evaluated the management determined growth rate against external factors 
such as CPI and GDP estimates and found this to be within reasonable 
range; and

 • evaluated the appropriateness of the revenue growth projections and 
significant once-off costs factored into the budgeted EBITDA that  
management used in determining the pre-tax cash flows and found these 
to be appropriate.

In evaluating the reasonableness of the risk adjusted interest rate used by 
management to discount the pre-tax cash flows, we performed the following 
procedures:

 • obtained an understanding of the manner in which management 
determined the rate at which the pre-tax cash flows have been discounted 
and made use of our valuation expertise to assess the appropriateness of 
the basis used by management and found this to be appropriate; 

 • independently verified the inputs used by management in its calculation to 
external sources; and

 • performed a sensitivity analysis to determine the effect on the impairment 
assessment by applying our independently determined rate and comparing 
that to the result determined by management and the results were within a 
reasonable range.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Accéntuate 
Limited integrated report 2018,which includes the directors’ report, the audit and risk committee report and the certification by the 
company secretary as required by the Companies Act of South Africa. Other information does not include the consolidated and 
separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and 
separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in 
accordance with IFRS and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group and/or the company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated and separate financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 • identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control;

 • obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s and the company’s internal 
control; 

 • evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors; 

 • conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group’s and 
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the group and/or company to cease to continue as a going 
concern; 

 • evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

 • obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the group 
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide  the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence 
and, where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
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circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. has been the auditor of Accéntuate Limited for two years.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. 
Director: K Ramnarian
Registered Auditor 
Johannesburg 
23 November 2018
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Statements of financial position
As at 30 June 2018

 Group  Company 

Note

Audited
 30 June 

2018 
 R’000 

Restated*
 30 June 

2017 
 R’000 

Audited
 30 June 

2018 
 R’000 

Restated*
 30 June 

2017 
 R’000 

Restated*
 30 June 

2016 
 R’000 

ASSETS
Non-current assets  80 014  58 885  66 174  49 147 49 147
Property, plant and equipment 11  61 427  54 339  –  – –

Goodwill 12  9 751  –  –  – –
Intangible assets 13  7 141  1 500  –  – –
Investments in subsidiaries 14  –  –  66 174  49 147 49 147
Investment in associate 15  –  – – – –
Deferred taxation 16  1 695  3 046  –  – –

Current assets  144 025  131 372 30 890 1 384
Inventories 17  80 234  80 157  –  – –

Trade and other receivables 18  47 003  47 266  –  – –
Other financial assets 19  8 231  1 726  –  856 1 343
Current tax receivable 29  2 027  2 022  –  – 4
Cash and cash equivalents 21  6 530  201  30  34 37

Total assets  224 039  190 257  66 204 50 037 50 531

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the parent  110 341  130 487 48 635 47 297 39 884

Share capital 24  150 557  147 613  150 188 146 998 139 498
Accumulated loss  (67 541)  (45 755)  (101 553)  (99 701) (99 614)
Revaluation reserve  27 216  27 614  –  – –
Share-based payment reserve  109  1 015  –  – –

Total equity  110 341  130 487 48 635 47 297 39 884

Non-current liabilities  3 645  6 613  –  – –
Deferred taxation 16  3 645  6 613  –  – –

Current liabilities  110 053  53 157  17 569  2 740 10 647
Loans from group companies 20  –  –  17 465  2 163 10 119
Trade and other payables 25  72 732  41 635  44  577 528
Borrowings 22  15 197  –  –  – –
Finance lease obligation 23  360  706  –  – –
Operating lease liability  1 271  1 530  –  – –
Current tax payable 28  2 703  500  60  – –
Bank overdraft 21  17 790  8 786  –  – –

Total liabilities 113 698 59 770 17 569 2 740 10 647

Total equity and liabilities  224 039  190 257  66 204  50 037 50 531

* Refer to note 35 for restatement of comparative financial information.
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Statements of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

 Group  Company 

Note

Audited
 30 June 

2018 
 R’000

Restated*
 30 June 

2017 
R’000

Audited
 30 June 

2018 
 R’000

Audited
 30 June 

2017 
 R’000

Revenue  5  294 893  295 061  –  – 
Cost of sales  (176 012)  (176 327)  –  – 

Gross profit  118 881  118 734  –  – 
Other income  6  1 795  12 384  –  120 
Operating expenses  7  (144 126)  (131 134)  (2 277)  (202) 

Operating loss before finance costs  (23 450)  (16)  (2 277)  (82) 
Finance income  486  145  485  – 
Finance costs  8  (3 520)  (2 420)  –  – 

Loss before tax  (26 484)  (2 291)  (1 792)  (82) 
Taxation  9  4 300  1 139  (60)  (5) 

Loss for the period  (22 184)  (1 152)  (1 852)  (87) 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  (398)  7 323  –  – 
Transfer of revaluation reserve  (398)  (350) – –
Asset revaluation surplus  –  7 673 – –
– Gross revaluation surplus  –  9 402 – –
– Deferred tax  –  (1 729) – –

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year  (22 582)  6 171  (1 852)  (87) 

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the parent  (22 184)  917  (1 852)  (87) 
Non-controlling interest  –  –  –  – 

(22 184) 917 (1 852) (87)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
Owners of the parent  (22 582)  8 240  (1 852)  (87) 
Non-controlling interest  –  –  –  –

 (22 582)  8 240  (1 852)  (87) 

Earnings per share (cents)
Loss per share (cents) 10 (16,58) (0,88) – –
Diluted loss per share (cents) 10 (16,58) (0,86) – –

* Refer to note 35 for restatement of comparative financial information.
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Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note

 Share 
capital 
 R’000 

 Share 
premium 

 R’000 

 Revaluation 
reserve 

R’000 

 Share-based 
payment 

reserve 
 R’000 

 Accumulated 
losses 
 R’000 

 Total 
equity 
 R’000 

GROUP
Balance at 30 June 2016  1 140 113 20 291  334  (44 953) 115 785
Restated total loss for the year 35  –  –  –  –  (1 152)  (1 152) 
Transfer of revaluation reserve  –  –  (350)  –  350  – 
Shares issued for cash  –  7 500  –  –  –  7 500 
Asset revaluation surplus  –  –  7 673  –  –  7 673 
 – Gross revaluation surplus  –  –  9 402  –  –  9 402 
 – Deferred tax  –  –  (1 729)  –  –  (1 729) 
Share-based payment expense  –  –  –  681  –  681 

Restated balance at 30 June 2017 35  1  147 613  27 614  1 015  (45 755) 130 487

Total loss for the year  –  –  –  –  (22 184)  (22 184) 
Transfer of revaluation reserve  –  –  (398)  –  398  – 
Repurchase of shares  –  (247)  –  –  –  (247) 
Acquisition of subsidiary  * 3 190  –  –  –  3 190 
Share-based payment expense  –  –  –  (906)  –  (906) 

Balance at 30 June 2018  1  150 556  27 216  109  (67 541)  110 341 

Note  24  24  27   

 Share 
capital 
 R’000 

 Share 
premium 

 R’000 

Accumulated 
losses 
 R’000 

 Total 
equity 
 R’000 

COMPANY
Restated balance at 30 June 2016 35  1  139 497  (99 614) 39 884
Total loss for the year  –  –  (87)  (87) 
Shares issued for cash  –  7 500  –  7 500 

Restated balance at 30 June 2017 35  1  146 997  (99 701) 47 297

Total loss for the year  –  –  (1 852)  (1 852) 
Shares issued for cash  – 3 190  – 3 190

Balance at 30 June 2018  1 150 187  (101 553) 48 635

Note  24  24 

* This amount is less than R500.
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 Group  Company 

Note

Audited
 30 June 

2018 
 R’000

Audited
 30 June 

2017 
 R’000 

Audited
 30 June 

2018 
 R’000

Restated*
 30 June 

2017 
 R’000 

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 9 552  13 444  (644)  (193) 
Finance income  486  145  485  – 
Taxation paid 29  (475)  1 308  (5)  (5) 
Finance costs 8  (3 520)  (2 420)  –  – 

Cash flows from operating activities 6 043  12 477  (164)  (198) 

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 11  (2 689)  (934)  –  – 
Acquisition of subsidiary 34  (14 745)  –  (16 000)  – 
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  124  74  –  – 
Acquisition of intangible asset 13  –  (42)  –  – 
Proceeds from loans to group companies  –  –  (2)  160 
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets  (6 505)  (187)  860  491 

Cash flows from investing activities  (23 815)  (1 089)  (15 142)   651 

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from shares issued for cash  247  7 500  –  7 500 
Increase in borrowings 15 197  –  –  – 
Payment of loans from group companies –  –  – (7 956)
Proceeds from loans from group companies  –  –  15 302  – 
Increase in finance lease obligations 346  706  –  – 

Net cash used in financing activities 15 098  8 206  15 302 (456)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (2 674)  19 594  (4)  (3) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  (8 586)  (28 179)  34  37 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 21  (11 260)  (8 586)  30  34 

* Refer to note 35 for restatement of comparative financial information.

Statements of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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1. REPORTING ENTITY
  Accéntuate Limited is a company domiciled in the Republic of South Africa. The consolidated annual financial statements 

of the group as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018 comprise the company and its subsidiaries and the group’s interest 
in associates (together referred to as the “group” and individually as “group entities”). 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
 (a) Statement of compliance
   The consolidated and separate annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in 

compliance with the Companies Act of South Africa, the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), 
the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, and the JSE Listings 
Requirements, that are relevant to its operations and have been effective for the annual reporting period ended 
30 June 2018. 

 (b) Going concern
   In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements, the directors are required to consider 

whether the group and company can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, which is the 
12 months following the date on which the financial statements are signed. 

   The group’s results in the current year were severely impacted by the adverse trading conditions in the South African 
construction industry. As a result the group incurred a net loss after taxation of R22 million, mainly as a result of 
significantly reduced production volumes at our facilities, which affected all subsidiaries within the group. 

   Despite incurring significant operational losses the group’s current assets of R144 million exceeds its current liabilities 
of R110 million and the group’s solvency ratio remains sufficient.

   A number of turnaround initiatives have been launched within the group during the course of the current financial 
year, which includes:

 • a restructuring plan was implemented in FloorworX, which included the execution of a retrenchment plan and 
reorganisation within the functions of the company during the year under review; and

 • the renegotiation of the lease on the Steeledale premises, which will result in a R7 million saving per annum.

   The group currently makes extensive use of it’s main overdraft facilities of R28 million with its financiers and it is 
critical that these facilities are maintained. At year end the group had R16,74 million in overdraft facilities available 
to manage its working capital. The covenants relating to R25 million of the facilities and the bank loan, with an 
outstanding balance of R14,8 million at 30 June 2018, were breached as a result of poor trading conditions. The 
bank loan has, as a result, been classified as a current liability. Our financiers are, however, assessing conditions on 
a continuous basis and are committed to work closely with management to ensure that the facilities are maintained. 
The going concern status of the group is dependent on these facilities being available.

   Given the results and conditions mentioned above management is aware of the fact that the implementation of the 
initiatives mentioned is critical to maintain and grow operations in the group. The Accéntuate group is therefore 
dependent on management generating the cash flows from the initiatives mentioned as well as our financiers 
continuing to provide the current facilities to the group. The matters mentioned indicate that a material uncertainty 
exists that may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

 (c) Historical cost convention
   The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 

the following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:
  Items     Measurement basis
  Financial instruments   Accounted for in terms of IAS 39
  Land and buildings   Revalued in terms of IAS 16

Accounting policies
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION continued
 (d) Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions
   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the 
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

   The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

   The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies are 
the following:
 •   Note 11 – Plant, property and equipment
 •   Note 12 – Goodwill
 •   Note 13 – Intangible assets
 •   Note 14 – Investments in subsidiaries
 •   Note 16 – Deferred taxation
 •   Note 17 – Write-down of inventories
 •   Notes 18 and 19 – Impairment of financial assets
 •   Note 27 – Share-based payments
 •   Note 34 – Business combination

   Further information, assumptions and judgements made in measuring fair values are included in the notes to the 
financial statements.

   Determination of fair values
   Some of the group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and 

non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value of an asset, the group uses market observable data 
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation techniques as follows:

 • Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 • Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(ie as prices) or indirectly (ie derived from prices).

 • Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

   If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The group recognises transfers 
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

 (e) Subsidiaries
   Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. Control is achieved when 

the group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which 
control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

  The group also considers the following facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee:
  (a) Contractual arrangements.
  (b) Rights arising from contractual arrangements.
  (c) Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

   The group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate changes to the 
elements of control.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION continued
 (f) Functional and presentation currency
   These consolidated and separate annual financial statements are presented in South African rand (“ZAR”), which 

is the functional currency and the presentation currency for the company and the group. Figures have been rounded 
to the nearest thousand.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated and 

separate annual financial statements. 

 3.1 Basis of consolidation
  (a) Business combinations
    The group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred 

to the group. A business may comprise an entity, group of entities or an unincorporated operation including 
its operating assets and associated liabilities.

    On acquisition date, the consideration transferred is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable 
net assets acquired. The consideration transferred is the fair value of the group’s contribution to the business 
combination in the form of assets transferred, shares issued, liabilities assumed or contingent consideration 
at the acquisition date. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on bargain 
purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

  (b) Consolidation
    All financial results are consolidated with similar items on a line-by-line basis except for investments in 

associates, which are included in the group’s results as set out below.

   (i) Subsidiaries
     Investments in subsidiaries in the company’s separate annual financial statements are stated at cost 

less any impairment losses. Transaction costs relating to the acquisition of a subsidiary are expensed 
during the year they occur in profit or loss.

     Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. 

   (ii) Associates
     Associates are those entities in which the group has significant influence, but not control, over the 

financial and operating policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method 
(equity-accounted investees) and are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes 
transaction costs.

     The consolidated financial statements include the group’s share of the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income of associates, from the date that significant influence commences until the 
date that significant influence ceases. When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an 
associate, the carrying amount of that interest, including any long-term investments, is reduced 
to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the group has 
an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee. Any unrealised gains or losses are 
eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised gains or losses arising 
from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment in the associate.

Accounting policies continued
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 3.2 Foreign currency translation
   Items included in the financial results of each entity are measured using the functional currency of that entity. 

   (a) Foreign currency transactions and balances
    Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates 

of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange 
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow 
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign 
operation.

    Foreign exchange gains or losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the statement of profit or loss, 
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the statement of profit or loss 
on a net basis within other income or other expenses.

    Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried 
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on 
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in 
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as 
equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.

  (b) Group companies
    The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary 

economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the 
presentation currency as follows:

   (i)  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date 
of that balance sheet.

   (ii)  Income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income 
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the 
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses 
are translated at the dates of the transactions).

   (iii)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

    On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, 
and of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised 
in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net 
investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain 
or loss on sale.

    Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

 3.3 Financial instruments
   All financial instruments are measured at fair value upon initial recognition when the group becomes party to the 

contractual terms of the instruments. Initial recognition of financial instruments includes transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are measured as follows:

  (a) Financial assets
    The group’s financial assets are trade and other receivables, other financial assets, loans to group companies 

and cash and cash equivalents.

    Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment losses. 

SECTION 6: 
Annual financial 
statements
P44

Accéntuate Integrated annual report 2018

61



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 3.3 Financial instruments continued
  (a) Financial assets continued
    Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there 

is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability 
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments 
(more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance 
recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

    The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account, 
and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable 
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

    For all financial instruments carried at amortised cost where the effects of time value of money are not 
considered to be material, the instruments are not discounted as their fair values approximate their 
amortised cost.

    For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, bank overdrafts are offset against cash and cash equivalents. 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call with banks.

  (b) Financial liabilities
    The group’s financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. These liabilities consist 

of trade and other payables, loans from group companies and bank overdraft.

    Where the effects of time value of money are not considered to be material, the instruments are not 
discounted as their fair values approximate their amortised cost.

 3.4 Equity
  (a) Equity instruments
    An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group are recognised as the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs.

  (b) Ordinary shares
    Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares 

are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

  (c) Repurchase of share capital (treasury shares)
    When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes 

directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased 
shares are classified as treasury shares.

  (d) Revaluation reserve
    The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Refer to note 11 for further 

details on the use of the reserve.

  (e) Share-based payment reserve
    The share option scheme is accounted for in this reserve. Refer to note 27 for the details and conditions of 

the scheme.

 3.5 Property, plant and equipment
  (a) Owned assets
    Items of property, plant and equipment, except for land and buildings, are measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

    Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 3.5 Property, plant and equipment continued
  (b) Leased assets
    Leases in terms of which the group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 

as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of 
its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset 
is accounted for in the same manner as owned items of property, plant and equipment.

    Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the group’s statement of 
financial position.

  (c) Revaluation
    Revaluation is performed every three years in the same month on land and buildings owned by the group 

such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value 
at the end of the reporting period.

    The income approach (discounted cash flows) is used to determine the fair value of the property, when the 
property is recovered principally through use. Refer to note 11 which describes the detail relating to the 
income approach valuation method. 

    When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of 
the revaluation is restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that 
the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount.

    Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised to other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity.

    The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred 
directly to retained earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

  (d) Depreciation
    Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.

    Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
component of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter 
of the lease term and the useful life of the asset. If it is reasonably certain that the group will obtain ownership 
by the end of the lease term, the asset is then depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

    The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Item Average useful life

Land Indefinite
Buildings 40 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or term of lease
Plant and machinery 5 to 12 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 5 to 10 years
IT equipment 3 to 5 years

    The residual value, useful life and depreciation methods for each asset are reviewed at the end of each 
financial year and adjusted if appropriate. Land is not depreciated.

    The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historic performance, as well 
as expectations about future use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied 
by management. These depreciation rates represent management’s current best estimate of the useful lives 
of the assets.

    The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit 
or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the 
carrying amount of the item.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 3.6 Goodwill
   Goodwill is initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment. On disposal of the 

relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss 
on disposal. Impairments on goodwill are not reversed subsequently. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least 
annually. 

 3.7 Intangible assets
   Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

   The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial 
year and adjusted if appropriate. Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, 
over the finite useful life of the asset.

   Intangible assets now include brands and customer relationships which were acquired during the year, as disclosed 
in note 34.

   The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Item Average useful life

Computer software 1 to 5 years
Customer relationships 3 to 15 years
Brands 3 to 15 years
Patents and other intangibles 3 to 15 years

 3.8 Inventories
   Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises all costs 

of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location 
and condition. The cost includes transport and handling costs, but excludes interest charges. 

   The cost of raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are valued on a weighted average basis.

   Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses. Write-downs to net realisable value and inventory losses are expensed in the 
period in which the write-downs or losses occur. 

 3.9 Cash and cash equivalents
   For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 

deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the 
balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalents are presented at face value.

 3.10 Impairment
  (a) Non-financial assets
    The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, 

are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

    The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into 
the smallest groups of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent 
of the cash flows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). 

    The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to the 
cash-generating unit expected to benefit from the combination. An impairment loss is recognised whenever 
the carrying amount of an asset, or its cash-generating unit, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment 
losses are recognised through profit or loss.

    Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to that cash-generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of 
the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 3.10 Impairment continued
  (a) Non-financial assets continued
    The recoverable amount of the group’s non-financial assets carried at amortised cost is calculated as the 

present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (ie the effective 
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these financial assets).

    The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

    An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

 3.11 Income tax
  (a)  Income tax expense
    Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in profit 

or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity 
or in other comprehensive income.

    Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive income if the 
tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity or in other 
comprehensive income.

  (b) Current taxation
    Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax 

rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous years.

    Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount 
already paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess 
is recognised as an asset.

  (c) Deferred taxation
    Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 

the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other 
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable 
profit or loss nor the accounting profit or loss.

    The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
asset to be recovered.

    Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and 
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the group expects, at the 
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 3.12 Revenue
   Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary 

course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of indirect taxes, estimated returns and discounts.

  (a) Sale of goods
    Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 

transaction will flow to the group and the amount of revenue, and associated costs incurred or to be incurred, 
can be measured reliably.

  (b) Services rendered
    Revenue from the rendering of services are recognised based on the stage of completion of the transaction, 

which is based on the cost incurred to date compared to the total cost of the transaction.

 3.13 Employee benefits
  (a) Short-term benefits
    The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and is 

not discounted.

    Compensated absences are expected to be utilised within 12 months subsequent to year end. The expected 
cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement, or in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

    The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal 
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

  (b) Defined contribution plans
    Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are charged as an expense as the related service is 

rendered. The plans are governed by the Pension Funds Act. The group has no obligation to contribute 
beyond the monthly deductions.

  (c) Share-based payments
    The group issues equity-settled share options to designated executive employees. The fair value of options 

granted is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured 
at grant date and is spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled 
to the option. Fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model taking into account the 
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The group revises at each reporting date its 
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. 
The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding 
adjustment to equity.

    The group issues cash-settled instruments (share appreciation rights scheme), based on the share price to 
its group employees. The fair value of these instruments granted is recognised as an expense with a 
corresponding increase in liability. The fair value is measured at grant date and is spread over the period 
during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The fair value of the share options 
is measured based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions 
upon which the options were granted. Any changes in fair value of the liability are recognised in the statement 
of comprehensive income or profit/loss. The fair value of the obligation is assessed at each reporting date. 

    The group issues cash-settled instruments (share appreciation rights scheme and total shareholder return 
scheme), based on the share price to its group employees. The fair value of these instruments granted is 
recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liability. The fair value is measured at grant date 
and is spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. 
The fair value of the share options is measured based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, taking 
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. Any changes in fair value of the 
liability are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or profit/loss. The fair value of the obligation 
is assessed at each reporting date. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
 3.13 Employee benefits continued
  (c) Share-based payments continued
    Share-based payments granted that do not vest until the counterparty completes a specified period of 

service, are accounted for as the services are rendered by the counterparty.

    The key assumptions for staff turnover per annum, early exercise multiple, risk-free rate, share price volatility 
and dividend yield are based on management’s best estimate at the date of valuation.

    Refer to note 27 of the financial statements for further details.

 3.14 Operating leases
   Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of 

the lease. 

 3.15 Finance costs
   Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, finance leases and bank overdrafts and are recognised 

in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

 3.16 Segment reporting
   An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 

revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the group’s 
other components. 

 3.17 Provisions
   Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make-good obligations are recognised when the group has a 

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating losses.

   Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

   Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

4. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
  At the date of the authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations that impact the 

group were in issue and effective:

 4.1 Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
   As required by the amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, the group has explained its changes in the 

liabilities arising from financing activities. This includes changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes such 
as acquisition, disposals, accretion of interest and unrealised exchange differences as well as providing a net debt 
reconciliation as disclosed in note 28. 

 4.2 Amendment to IAS 12 Income Taxes
   The amendment to IAS 12 Income Taxes clarifies the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured at fair 

value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax base. It also clarifies certain other aspects of accounting for deferred 
tax assets.

   The amendment clarifies the existing guidance under IAS 12. It does not change the underlying principles for the 
recognition of deferred tax assets as disclosed in note 16.
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4. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS continued
 4.3 Amendment to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
   The amendment to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities clarified that the disclosures requirement of 

IFRS 12 are applicable to interest in entities classified as held for sale except for summarised financial information. 
Previously, it was unclear whether all other IFRS 12 requirements were applicable for these interests. 

   At the date of the authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations that may be 
expected to impact the group were in issue but not effective:

   Management has considered all standards, interpretations and amendments that are in issue but not yet effective. 
Management has considered that these standards do not, with the exception of IFRS 16 Leases, have a significant 
impact on the group’s financial statements. Management is still assessing the impact of this standard. The standards, 
interpretations and amendments that are relevant to the group but which the group has not early adopted are as 
follows:

 4.4 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
   IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets. The group has reviewed 
its financial assets and liabilities and is expecting the following impact from the adoption of the new standard on 
1 July 2018: 

 • Debt instruments are currently classified at amortised cost and satisfy the criteria for such classification. Financial 
assets are currently measured at fair value through profit and loss will continue to be measured on the same basis 
under IFRS 9. Accordingly, the group does not expect the new guidance to affect the classification and 
measurement of these financial assets or liabilities. The group does not apply hedge accounting. The new 
impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected credit losses (“ECL”) rather 
than only incurred credit losses as is the case under IAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised 
cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on the 
assessments undertaken to date, the group does not expect a material change in the loss allowance for trade 
creditors based on historical information and management’s assessment of market conditions. Expected credit 
losses on the group’s credit facility are measured in accordance with paragraph 5.5.20 of IFRS 9. The group will 
apply the new rules retrospectively from 1 July 2018, with the practical expedients permitted under the standard. 
Comparatives for 2019 will not need to be restated as management does not expect any retrospective impact from 
the impending changes.

 4.5 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
   The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards.

  A new five-step process must be applied before revenue can be recognised: 
 • identify contracts with customers; 
 • identify the separate performance obligation; 
 • determine the transaction price of the contract; 
 • allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations; and 
 • recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied. 

   These accounting changes may have flow-on effects on the group’s business practices regarding systems, 
processes and controls, compensation and bonus plans, contracts, tax planning and investor communications. 
Entities will have a choice of full retrospective application, or prospective application with additional disclosures. The 
amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018. An impact assessment has been 
performed and the changes in the standard will not have a material impact on the financial statements of the group. 
Management is of the opinion that the current accounting processes do address the reporting requirements for this 
standard. All revenue streams are currently based on contractually agreed terms and amounts with identifiable 
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 4.5 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers continued
   customers (based on credit applications) and no separate performance obligations that would affect the timing of 

revenue recognition. Revenue is being recognised on transfer of the goods or services to the customer, ie when 
significant risks and rewards of ownership are considered to have transferred to the customer; when performance 
obligation has been satisfied. Where the performance obligation is satisfied over time (through partial delivery), the 
company already recognises revenue over time limited to the value of the goods delivered or satisfaction of that 
performance obligation. Based on the above assessment, the group identified that there is no material impact. 

 4.6 IFRS 16 Leases
   IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on balance 

sheet. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases and requires recognition 
of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An 
optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. 

   The income statement will also be affected because the total expense is typically higher in the earlier years of a lease 
and lower in later years. Additionally, operating expense will be replaced with interest and depreciation, so key metrics 
like EBITDA will change. 

   Operating cash flows will be higher as cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability are classified within 
financing activities. Only the part of the payments that reflects interest can continue to be presented as operating 
cash flows. The accounting by lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new 
guidance on the definition of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The amendments 
apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2019.

 4.7 IFRS 2 Share-based Payments
   The amendments made to AASB 2 in July 2016 clarify the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based 

payments and the accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equity-settled. They also 
introduce an exception to the classification principles in AASB 2. Where an employer is obliged to withhold an 
amount for the employee’s tax obligation associated with a share-based payment and pay that amount to the tax 
authority, the whole award will be treated as if it was equity-settled provided it would have been equity-settled without 
the net settlement feature. 

  Entities with the following arrangements are likely to be affected by these changes:
 • Cash-settled arrangements that are modified to equity-settled share-based payments.
 • Cash-settled share-based payments that include performance conditions.
 • Cash-settled arrangements that are modified to equity-settled share-based payments. 

  The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.

 4.8 Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
   The interpretation clarifies how to determine the date of transaction for the exchange rate to be used on initial 

recognition of a related asset, expense or income where an entity pays or receives consideration in advance for 
foreign currency denominated contracts. For a single payment or receipt, the date of the transaction should be the 
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the advance consideration 
(the prepayment or deferred income/contract liability). If there are multiple payments or receipts for one item, a date 
of transaction should be determined as above for each payment or receipt. 

  Entities can choose to apply the interpretation: 
 • retrospectively for each period presented; 
 • prospectively to items in scope that are initially recognised on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which 
the interpretation is first applied; or 

 • prospectively from the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information.

  The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.
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4. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS continued
 4.9  Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures – long-term interests in associates and 

joint ventures
   The amendments clarified that companies account for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture, to which 

the equity method is not applied, using IFRS 9. The amendments are effective from 1 January 2019, with early 
application permitted.

 4.10  Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures on sale or contribution of assets

   The postponement applies to changes introduced by the IASB in 2014 through narrow-scope amendments to 
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Those 
changes affect how an entity should determine any gain or loss it recognises when assets are sold or contributed 
between the entity and an associate or joint venture in which it invests. The changes do not affect other aspects of 
how entities account for their investments in associates and joint ventures.

   The reason for making the decision to postpone the effective date is that the IASB is planning a broader review that 
may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates 
and joint ventures.

  The effective date has been postponed – initially 1 January 2016.

 4.11 IFRS 3 Business Combination
   The amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combination relates to a company remeasuring its previously held interest in a 

joint operation when it obtains control of the business.

  The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.

 4.12 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
   The amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, relates to a company not remeasuring its previously held interest in 

a joint operation when it obtains control of the business.

   The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.

 4.13 IAS 12 Income Taxes
   The amendment to IAS 12 Income Taxes clarified that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial 

instruments classified as equity should be recognised according to where the past transactions or events that 
generated distributable profits were recognised. 

  The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.

 4.14 IAS 23 Borrowing Costs
   The amendment to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs relates to how a company treats as part of general borrowings any 

borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. 

  The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.
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4. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS continued
 4.15 IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
   This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where there is consideration that is 

denominated or priced in a foreign currency. The interpretation provides guidance for when a single payment/receipt 
is made as well as for situations where multiple payment/receipts are made. The guidance aims to reduce diversity 
in practice. 

  The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.

 4.16 IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
   IFRIC 23 provides a framework to consider, recognise and measure the accounting impact of tax uncertainties. 

The interpretation provides specific guidance in several areas where previously IAS 12 was silent. The interpretation 
also explains when to reconsider the accounting for a tax uncertainty. Most entities will have developed a model to 
account for tax uncertainties in the absence of specific guidance in IAS 12. These models might, in some 
circumstances, be inconsistent with IFRIC 23 and the impact on tax accounting could be material. Management 
should assess the existing models against the specific guidance in the interpretation and consider the impact on 
income tax accounting.

   The group is currently assessing what the impact of these new standards may be on the group and company. 
All standards and interpretations applicable to the entity will be adopted at their effective dates.

   The amendments apply to reporting periods commencing after 1 January 2018.
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Group Company

2018 
R’000 

 2017 
R’000 

2018 
R’000 

2017 
R’000 

5. REVENUE
Sale of goods 291 519  295 061  –  – 
Services rendered  3 374  –  –  – 

 294 893  295 061  –  – 

The revenue for the group has been restated for the reporting period ended 30 June 2017 to exclude inter-company 
recoveries amounting to R4,965 million, which have been eliminated against other operating expenses. This restatement had 
no impact on the operating profit of the group. Refer to note 35 for detail on the restatement.

6. OTHER INCOME  1 795  12 384  –  120 

 1 795  12 384  –  120 

Other income includes all revenue gained from non-operating activities. This has decreased mainly due to the fraud 
recoveries that have been recognised in the prior financial year, amounting to R9,7 million, after a realisation order was 
granted. 

7. EXPENSE BREAKDOWN BY NATURE
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for 
the following:
Advertising  3 632  4 100  –  – 
Amortisation 667  205  –  – 
Depreciation  5 967  4 403  –  – 
Foreign exchange loss/(profit)  688  (624)  –  – 
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  9  45  –  – 
Operating lease rentals  15 428  12 118  –  – 
– Premises  13 991  11 204  –  – 
– Equipment  507  914  –  – 
– Motor vehicles  930  –  –  – 
Employee costs  77 796  65 884  –  – 
Auditor’s remuneration  1 420  733  –  82 
– Audit services  1 420  709  –  – 
– Other  –  24  –  82 
Delivery costs  20 374  21 056  –  – 
Bad debts  262  686  –  – 
Security costs  1 392  1 254  –  – 
Insurance  1 549  1 335  –  – 
IT costs  4 363  5 192  –  – 
Motor vehicle costs  1 683  1 603  –  – 
Communications costs  2 203  664  –  – 
Rates and taxes  1 819  1 118  –  – 
Printing and stationery  259  454  –  – 
Packaging costs  30  542  –  – 
Impairment of investment in subsidiary – – 2 136 –
Other operating expenses 4 585  13 218 114  120 

 144 126  131 134 2 277  202 

Cost of sales 176 012 176 327  –  –

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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Group Company

2018 
R’000 

 2017 
R’000 

2018 
R’000 

2017 
R’000 

8. FINANCE COSTS

Bank 2 748  2 381  –  5 
Finance leases 772 39 – –

 3 520  2 420  –  5 

9. TAXATION
South African normal tax
– Current year  (529)  (1 909)  (60)  (5) 
Deferred taxation
– Temporary differences  5 164  3 048  –  – 
Adjustment to previous years  (335)  –  –  – 

 4 300 1 139  (60)  (5) 

Reconciliation of rate of taxation  %  %  %  % 
South African normal tax rate  28,00  28,00  28,00  28,00 
Deferred tax assets not recognised  0,84 (1,76) –  (28,00)
Deferred tax assets derecognised  (11,36)  –  –  – 
Effect of inclusion rate on capital loss  – (2,39)  –  – 
Non-deductible expenses (2,67) (8,43) (31,35)  – 
Deferred tax asset through OCI  (1,74) (75,49)  –  – 
Deferred tax prior year under/(over) provision  (0,13) 64,57  –  – 
Current tax prior year under/(over) provision  (1,26) (30,23) –  (6,10) 
Non-taxable income/capital allowances claimed  1,08  –  –  – 

Effective rate 16,24 (25,73)  (3,35)  (6,10) 

Refer to note 16 for details on the assessed losses not recognised.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Group

2018
Cents

2017
Cents

10. EARNINGS AND VALUE PER SHARE
(Loss) per share (cents)  (16,58)  (0,88) 
Diluted (loss) per share (cents)  (16,58)  (0,86) 
Headline (loss) per share (cents)  (16,57)  (1,37) 
Diluted headline (loss) per share (cents)  (16,22)  (1,34) 
Net asset value per share (cents)  79  97 

10.1 Earnings/headline earnings 
(Loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share  (22 184) (1 152)
Headline (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders  (22 175) (1 107)

 Gross
R’000

 Tax
R’000

 Net
R’000

10.2 Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings:    
2018
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders  (22 184)  (22 184) 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  9 –  9 

Headline loss attributable to ordinary shareholders  (22 175) –  (22 175) 

2017
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders  (1 152)  (1 152) 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  45 –  45 

Headline loss attributable to ordinary shareholders  (1 107) –  (1 107) 

2018
 Shares

2017
 Shares

10.3 Weighted average number of shares and diluted weighted average number of shares
Weighted average number of shares  133 827 505  130 405 641 
Diluted weighted average number of shares  136 724 476  133 302 612 
Total shares in issue  139 366 188  134 048 757 
Reconciliation between the number of shares used for earnings per share and 
diluted earnings per share
Number of shares used for earnings per share  133 827 505  130 405 641 
Shares to be issued for an exercise of options  2 896 971  2 896 971 

Number of shares used for diluted earnings per share  136 724 476  133 302 612 
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 2018  2017 
 Cost/

revaluation 
 R’000

 Accumulated 
depreciation 

 R’000

 Carrying 
amount 

 R’000

 Cost/
revaluation 

 R’000

 Accumulated 
depreciation 

 R’000

 Carrying 
amount 
 R’000

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT
Group
Land  11 500 –  11 500  11 500 –  11 500 
Buildings  33 174  (1 594)  31 580  32 500  (135)  32 365 
Leasehold property  6 134  (2 639)  3 495  3 884  (2 574)  1 310 
Plant and machinery  44 335  (31 313)  13 022  27 650  (20 784)  6 866 
Furniture and fixtures  3 643  (3 060)  583  4 179  (3 355)  824 
Motor vehicles  1 802  (1 386)  416  1 459  (862)  597 
Office equipment  3 295  (2 808)  487  2 926  (2 441)  485 
IT equipment  4 644  (4 300)  344  3 393  (3 063)  330 
Assets under construction – – –  62 –  62 

 108 527  (47 100)  61 427  87 553  (33 214)  54 339 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment

 Opening
balance

R’000 
 Additions 

R’000 

 Acqui-
sition of 

subsidiary
R’000 

 Disposals 
R’000 

 Transfers 
R’000 

 Revalu-
ation

R’000 

 Depre-
ciation
R’000 

 Closing
 balance

 R’000 

Group
2018
Land  11 500 – – – – – –  11 500 
Buildings  32 365  145 – – – –  (930)  31 580 
Leasehold property  1 310  29  2 590 – – –  (434)  3 495 
Plant and machinery  6 866  1 936  7 573  (16)  213 –  (3 549)  13 023 
Furniture and fixtures  824  11 – – – –  (253)  582 
Motor vehicles  597 –  238  (122) – –  (298)  415 
Office equipment  485  166  34 – – –  (198)  487 
IT equipment  330  251  57 – – –  (293)  345 
Assets under construction  62  151 – –  (213) – – –

 54 339  2 689  10 492  (138) – –  (5 955)  61 427 

Note 34

2017
Land  10 000 – – – –  1 500 –  11 500 
Buildings  26 960 – – –  (7)  6 173  (761)  32 365 
Leasehold property  1 726  73 – –  (53) –  (436)  1 310 
Plant and machinery  7 926  425 – –  775 –  (2 260)  6 866 
Furniture and fixtures  949  14 – –  122 –  (261)  824 
Motor vehicles  676  200 –  (56)  (9) –  (214)  597 
Office equipment  767  111 – –  (190) –  (203)  485 
IT equipment  505  111 – –  (18) –  (268)  330 
Assets under construction  682 – – –  (620) – –  62 

 50 191  934 –  (56) –  7 673  (4 403)  54 339 

The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historic performance, as well as expectations 
about future use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. These depreciation 
rates represent management’s current best estimate of the useful lives of the assets.

Revaluations
This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are 
recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs 
used in determining fair value, the group has classified its non-financial assets and liabilities into the three levels prescribed 
under the accounting standards as set out below:

 • Level 1:  observable, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;
 • Level 2:  quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets in 

markets that are not active; and inputs other than quoted prices; and
 • Level 3:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

 Level 1 
 R’000

 Level 2 
 R’000

 Level 3 
 R’000

 Total 
 R’000

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
Fair value hierarchy

At 30 June 2018     
Land and buildings – – 44 000 44 000

At 30 June 2017
Land and buildings – –  44 000  44 000 

The group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting 
period.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.

Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 and level 3 fair values.

Land and buildings are revalued independently every three years or if any indicators of impairment exists, as per the 
group policy.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment of the fair value of land and buildings, taking into 
account the most recent independent valuations. The directors determine the value of land and buildings within a range of 
reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not 
available the directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

 • Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active 
markets, adjusted to reflect those differences. 

 • Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows. 
 • Capitalised income projections based upon estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an 
analysis of market evidence of the land and buildings. 

All resulting fair value estimates for properties are included in level 3 except for land held for resale. 

The effective date of the latest revaluations was 1 May 2017. Revaluations were performed by an independent professional 
valuer, Tayland Valuations CC. Tayland Valuations CC is not connected to the group. The fair value measurement for the land 
and buildings has been categorised as a level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of land and buildings, as well as 
significant unobservable inputs used:

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs

Net income capitalisation approach: 

The net income capitalisation method of valuation was used to 
determine the value of the land and buildings 

Market rentals of (R19/m2 – R27/m2)

This method determines the net normalised annual income of the land 
and buildings, assuming that it is fully let at market-related rentals, and 
market escalations 

Vacancy rate 1% (2016: 3%)

Market-related operating expenses incurred are deducted, resulting in 
a net annual income which is then capitalised at market-related rate 

Expenditure rate 22,93% (2016: 30,98%)

The capitalisation rate is determined from the market (ie the rate at 
which similar assets have traded recently), and is influenced by rates 
of return of similar properties, risk, obsolescence, inflation, market 
rental growth rates, rates of return on other investments, as well as 
prevailing mortgage rates

Capitalisation rate 11,5% (2016: 11%)
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs continued
Management estimates that the carrying amount of the land and buildings at year end approximates their fair value and that 
no impairment indicators were present at year end suggesting otherwise.

The carrying amount of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been:

Group

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

Land  862  998 
Buildings  5 974  5 920 

 6 836  6 918 

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, 2011 is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the company.

A general notarial bond is registered over the land and buildings owned by Accéntuate Limited to the value of R25 million as 
security for the banking facilities provided by its financier.

12. GOODWILL 

 2018  2017 

 Cost
R’000 

 Accumulated 
impairment

 R’000

 Carrying 
amount

 R’000
 Cost

 R’000

 Accumulated 
impairment

 R’000

 Carrying 
amount
 R’000

Group 
Goodwill  9 751 –  9 751 – – –

 9 751 –  9 751 – – –

Reconciliation of goodwill 

 Opening
 balance

 R’000 
 Additions

 R’000 
 Impairment

R’000 

 Closing
balance

 R’000 

Group 
2018 
Goodwill –  9 751 –  9 751 

–  9 751 –  9 751 

2017 
Goodwill – – – –

– – – –

Goodwill is reviewed annually at each reporting date for impairment, or more frequently when there are indicators that 
impairment may have occurred, by comparing the carrying amount to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
included in other operating expenses in profit or loss.

Goodwill allocation
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the group’s subsidiaries or group of subsidiaries which are 
each considered to be a CGU and represent the lowest level within the group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal 
management purposes.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

12. GOODWILL continued
Goodwill allocation continued
A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or group of assets. The aggregate goodwill allocated to each CGU is as follows:

 Cost
R’000 

 Accumulated
impairment

R’000 

 Carrying
value
R’000 

2018 
The aggregate cost of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows:
Pentafloor CGU  9 751 –  9 751 

 9 751 –  9 751 

Key assumptions used in impairment testing for goodwill impaired in the current period 

The cash-generating capabilities of all cash-generating units (“CGUs”) were determined by discounting the future cash flows 
generated from continuing operations.

The recoverable amount of each operation’s goodwill is based on the higher of fair value less cost to sell and a value-in-use 
calculation. The calculations are based upon discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a risk adjusted interest rate 
appropriate to the cash-generating unit, the determination of both of which requires the exercise of judgement. The 
estimation of pre-tax cash flows is sensitive to the periods for which forecasts are available and to assumptions regarding the 
long-term sustainable cash flows. While forecasts are compared with actual performance and external economic data, 
expected cash flows naturally reflect management’s view of future performance.

The cash flow projections were based on an average of prior year actual results with a reasonable growth rate applied based 
on current market conditions. In assessing future cash flows, management has considered the assumptions relating to the 
sustainable growth, market opportunities as well as changes to the cost structures based on business plans.

The discount rates used in the discounted cash flow models are calculated using the principles of the capital asset pricing 
model, taking into account the current market conditions.

A pre-tax weighted average cost-of-capital rate of 33,6% per annum was used in discounting the projected cash flows. 
Growth rates applied for the five-year period from 2019 was 5%. Perpetuity growth rates applied was 5,3%. The growth rate 
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the entity operates and is consistent with the 
long-term average of the industry. 

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and are 
based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data).

The goodwill recognised on the recent acquisition of Pentafloor (Pty) Limited (refer to note 34) was tested in a separate CGU 
and no impairment was deemed necessary based on the value in use calculated by management.

The recoverable amount would equal its carrying value if the key assumptions were to change as follows:

2018
%

From

Average EBITDA growth rate 5,0
Average pre-tax discount rate 33,6
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 2018  2017 

 Cost
R’000 

 Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
impairment 

 R’000

 Carrying 
amount 

 R’000
 Cost 

 R’000

 Accumulated 
amortisation 

and 
impairment 

 R’000

 Carrying 
amount 
 R’000

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group
Computer software  2 184  (912)  1 271  649  (553)  96 
Customer relationships  4 398  (300)  4 098 – – –
Brands  1 910  (143)  1 767 – – –
Patents and other 
intangibles  1 128  (1 123)  5  1 991  (587)  1 404 

 9 620  (2 478)  7 141  2 640  (1 140)  1 500 

Reconciliation of intangible asset

 Opening 
balance

R’000 

 Additions/
reclassi-
fication 

R’000 

 Acquisition 
of 

subsidiary
R’000 

 Disposals
 R’000 

 Amortisation
R’000 

 Impairment
R’000 

 Closing
 balance

R’000 

Group
2018
Computer 
software  96 – – –  (216) –  (120) 
Customer 
relationships  – –  4 098 –  (300) –  3 798 
Brands  – –  1 767 –  (143) –  1 624 
Patents and other 
intangibles  1 404 –  443 –  (8) –  1 839 

 1 500 –  6 308 –  (667) –  7 141 

 Opening 
balance 

R’000 
 Additions 

R’000 
 Disposals

 R’000 
 Amortisation

R’000 
 Impairment

R’000 

 Closing 
balance 

R’000 

2017
Computer software –  170 –  (74) –  96 
Patents and other 
intangibles  1 663  (128) –  (131) –  1 404 

 1 663  42 –  (205) –  1 500

Valuation of brands

The Pentafloor brands were valued using the income approach. A royalty rate of 2% was determined based on average 
royalty rates of peer companies. The after tax royalty rate was used together with management’s estimated sales cash flows, 
this was then discounted at a risk adjusted rate of 21,3% (WACC of 19,3% and 2% premium added) to determine the 
discounted cash flows over the estimated useful life of 15 years. The sum of the discounted cash flows was recognised as 
the estimated fair value of the brands.

Valuation of customer relationships

Customer relationships relating to Pentafloor operations. The multi-period excess earnings method was used to determine 
the value of customer-based assets and was based on management projections. An after tax projected operating margin 
was used together with estimated sales cash flows, from which the required rate of return on all assets (tangible and 
intangible) was deducted. This was discounted at a risk adjusted rate of 19,5% (WACC of 18,5% and a 1% premium) to 
determine the fair value of the customer relationships. These relationships have an estimated useful life of 10 years.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

 Company 

 % 
holding 

2018

 % 
holding 

2017

 Carrying 
amount 

2018 
R’000 

 Carrying 
amount 

2017 
R’000

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Accéntuate Limited Share Trust  100  100  *  * 
Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Limited  100  100  *  * 
Empowerment Financial Investment Company (Pty) Limited  100  100  *  * 
FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited  100  100  49 147  49 147 
Glassace 12 (Pty) Limited (formerly CGA Fenestration 
(Pty) Limited)  100  100  *  * 
Pentafloor (Pty) Limited – refer to note 34  100  –  17 027  – 
– Cost  19 190  – 
– Impairment  (2 163)  – 
SAFIC (Pty) Limited  100  100  –  – 
SAFIC Environment Services (Pty) Limited  100  100  *  * 
Structworx (Pty) Limited  100  100  *  * 

Interior Wooden Floor (Pty) Limited  100  100  *  * 

 66 174  49 147 

An impairment review has been performed on the investment based on the higher of fair value less cost to sell and a 
value-in-use calculation as per IAS 36 and there is an indication that the investment is impaired. The future cash flows of the 
business will not generate the same value as initially envisaged.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The values assigned to the key 
assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been based on 
historical data from both external and internal sources.

2018
%

Discount rate 33,6
Terminal value growth rate 5,3
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate 5

The discount rate was a pre-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted-average cost of 
capital, with a possible debt leveraging of 30% at a market interest rate of 7.20%. The cash flow projections included 
specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal growth rate was determined based on 
management’s estimate of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growth rate.

*Amount less than R500

The recoverable amount would equal its carrying value if the key assumptions were to change as follows:

2018
%

From

Average EBITDA growth rate 5,0
Average pre-tax discount rate 33,6
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 Group 

 Listed/
unlisted 

 % 
holding 

2018

 % 
holding 

2017

 Carrying 
amount 

2018 
R’000 

 Carrying 
amount 

2017 
R’000

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited  Unlisted  40  40  –  – 

The investment in Ion Exchange Safic is equity-accounted for as an associate in line with the group accounting policy. The 
group has written down the investment in this associate to Rnil (2017: Rnil).

The recognition of losses incurred in Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited are limited to the investment in the entity. As a result 
of losses previously incurred the investment has been impaired and the losses incurred for the year are not recognised in the 
financial statements. The net share of accumulated losses is R2 847 299 (2017: R630 400).

Group Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

16. DEFERRED TAXATION
Represented by:
Provision for doubtful debts  330  438  –  – 
Amounts received in advance  1 016  843 
Prepayment  (269)  (82)
Employee accruals/provisions  2 394  2 505  –  – 
Tax losses  9 028  1 718  –  – 
Other  183  137  –  – 
Fair value adjustments  (1 151)  673  –  – 
Intangible assets  (1 539)  –  –  – 
Revaluation  (9 185)  (9 799)  –  – 

807  (3 567)  –  – 
Deferred tax asset not recognised  (2 757)  –  –  – 

 (1 950)  (3 567)  –  – 

Deferred tax asset  1 695  3 046  –  – 
Deferred tax liability  (3 645)  (6 613)  –  – 

 (1 950)  (3 567)  –  – 

Opening balance  (3 567)  (4 887)  –  – 
Charge to statement of comprehensive income  3 398  1 320  –  – 
Acquisition of subsidiary  (1 781)  –  –  – 

Balance at end of year  (1 950)  (3 567)  –  – 

The group and company consider it probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future to realise the 
deferred tax asset raised based on future income to be generated by Safic (Pty) Limited. 

The amount of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised on the statement of financial position is 
R3 351 562 (2017: R145 217).
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Group Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

17. INVENTORIES
Work in progress  4 354  4 511  –  – 
Finished goods  66 971  67 255  –  – 
Consumables  3 792  5 634  –  – 

 80 811  80 792  –  – 
Provision for obsolescence  (577)  (635)  –  – 

 80 234  80 157  –  – 

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period was R153 566 688 (2017: R139 091 000).

The value of inventory written down in the current year was R57 679 (2017: Rnil).

An allowance is made to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management has made estimates of 
the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write-down is included in cost of sales.

Group Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Financial instruments
Gross trade receivables  39 275  35 858  –  – 
Provision for bad debts  (1 893)  (2 357)

Net trade receivables  37 382  33 501  –  – 
Deposits  1 554  610  –  – 
Other receivables  6 582  9 077  –  – 

 45 518  43 188  –  – 

Non-financial instruments
Prepayments  1 401  4 038  –  – 
VAT  84  40  –  – 

 1 485  4 078  –  – 

Trade and other receivables  47 003  47 266  –  – 

Trade receivables were pledged as security for banking facilities as detailed in note 22.

Other receivables relate mostly to the provision for the fraud recoveries in FloorworX for which R5 761 514 
(2017: R8 596 766) was recognised in 2018.

Fair value of trade and other receivables
The directors estimate the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value. Trade receivables 
disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost. 

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the 
reporting period but against which the group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because there has 
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The group assesses its trade 
and loan receivables for impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in 
profit or loss, the group makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the 
estimated future cash flows. The impairment for trade and loans receivable is calculated on a specific basis. 
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Group

 2018 
R’000 

 2017
 R’000 

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables represents the maximum credit 
exposure.
Credit quality
The following represents information on the credit quality of trade receivables that are 
neither past due nor impaired:

Group 1 – recurring customers (%) 95 83
Group 2 – other customers (%) 5 17

Refer to note 32 for further information regarding credit risk of trade and other receivables.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables amounting to R10 643 000 (2017: R7 765 000) which are past 
due are not considered to be impaired. The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired 
is as follows:
One month past due 7 050  4 282 
Two months past due 491  980 
Three months past due  1 754  2 503 
Older  1 348  – 

 10 643  7 765 

Based on the credit history of the trade and other receivables the above the balances have 
not been impaired.

Trade and other receivables impaired
Trade and other receivables impaired and allowed for  1 893  2 357 
Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance 2 357  1 426 
Provision for impairment  –  1 156 
Provision released  (202)  – 
Amount written off against provision  (262)  (225)

 1 893  2 357 

Group Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Loans receivable
Purchaser of Kalahari Environmental Mining Supplies 
(Pty) Limited  –  372  –  372 
Loan to directors  6 330  –  –  – 
Other financial assets  –  484  –  484 
Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited  1 901  870  –  – 

 8 231  1 726  –  856 

Current
Loans receivable  8 231  1 726  –  856 
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS continued
Loan to directors
The above loans are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. 

Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited
The above loan is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. Ion Exchange Safic has committed to repay 
R1 million within six months. The remaining loan fluctuates during the course of the financial period in accordance with 
working capital requirements. Management is of the opinion that this loan is completely recoverable.

Fair values of financial assets
The above financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The directors consider that 
the carrying amounts of financial assets recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Company

 2018 
R’000 

 2017 
R’000 

2016
R’000

20. LOANS FROM GROUP COMPANIES
Subsidiaries
Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Limited  (15 709)  – (8 074)
Safic (Pty) Limited  –  (295) (290)
Empowerment Financial Investment Company (Pty) Limited  –  (110) –
FloorworX (Pty) Limited  –  (3) –
Glassace 12 (Pty) Limited (formerly CGA Fenestration (Pty) Limited)  (1 755)  (1 755) (1 755)

 (17 465) (2 163) (10 119)

Current liabilities  (17 465)  (2 163) (10 119)

 (17 465) (2 163) (10 119)

The above loans are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. 

 Group  Company 

 2018 
R’000 

 2017 
R’000 

 2018 
R’000 

 2017 
R’000 

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances  6 530  201  30  34 
Bank overdraft (see note 22)  (17 790)  (8 786)  –  – 

 (11 260)  (8 585)  30  34 

The amount of undrawn primary lending facility available 
for future operating activities and commitments:  16 740  27 814 

The group no longer employs sweeping accounts between group entities.

Credit quality of the banks utilised
ABSA
The Moody’s rating of Baa2 as of 30 June 2018 indicates ABSA has moderate credit risk and may contain certain 
speculative characteristics.

Recoverability of short-term deposits is acceptable at p-3.

First National Bank
The Moody’s rating of Baa2 as of 30 June 2018 indicates FNB has moderate credit risk and may contain certain speculative 
characteristics.

Recoverability of short-term deposits is acceptable at p-3.
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2018 2017
Current

R’000
 Non-current 

R’000
 Total 
R’000

Current
R’000

 Non-current 
R’000

22. BORROWINGS
Bank loan – First National Bank  14 801  –  14 801  –  – 
Bank loan – Mercantile Bank  396  –  396 

 15 197  –  15 197  –  – 

 First 
National 

Bank 
Mercantile 

Bank

Bank loan – contractual repayment terms
The current repayment terms on the bank loan are as follows:
Within one year  3 074  396 
Within one year but not more than five years  11 727  – 
Later than five years  –  – 

 14 801  396 

The First National Bank loan is payable over a five-year period and utilised for the first 
settlement of the Pentafloor (Pty) Limited acquisition. Interest at the South African prime 
lending rate plus 1% is payable on the loan.

 Credit quality
The credit quality of bank balances and short-term deposits (excluding cash on hand) is 
assessed being satisfactory, because the group only banks with reputable banks within 
South Africa.

Facilities – First National Bank
Total facilities granted are:
– Primary lending facility: R25 million
– Forward exchange contract facility: R10 million
– WesBank Autocard: R350 000 
– Guarantees: R1 000 000 

Facilities are secured by a general notarial bond to the value of R25 million over all movable assets of FloorworX (Pty) Limited 
in favour of FirstRand Bank Limited and a first ranking cession of debtors in Safic (Pty) Limited, FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited 
and Pentafloor (Pty) Limited. The facilities are granted subject to FNB obtaining a valuation on the mentioned property to the 
value of at least R42 million.

Compliance with loan covenants
The group breached the facility covenants for its financier relating to the bank overdraft and bank loan. The bank loan has 
been reclassified and is reflected as a current liability, considering the breach of covenants. The financier has indicated that 
it will work closely with management and is monitoring the implementation of the group’s turnaround plans.

Facilities – Mercantile Bank
Total facilities granted are:
– Overdraft facility: R3 million
– Credit card: R20 000
– Performance guarantee: R300 000 

The facilities are secured by an unlimited suretyship from Accéntuate Limited.

Facilities – Chester Finance
FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited has a trade finance facility with Chester Finance of R10 million. The facility is secured by a 
guarantee agreement and a minimum net current asset covenant of R68 million by Accéntuate Limited applies.
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2018 2017
Current

R’000
Non-current

R’000
Total

R’000
Current

R’000
Non-current

R’000
Total

R’000

23. FINANCE LEASE 
OBLIGATIONS
Finance leases  360 –  360  706 –  706 

The finance leases are utilised to finance motor vehicles throughout the group. All finance leases are disclosed as current as 
a result of the covenant breach with First National Bank.

 Group  Company

 2018
R’000

 2017
R’000

 2018
R’000

 2017
R’000

 2016
R’000

24. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,001 
cents each  5  5  5  5 5
Issued
139 366 188 (2017: 134 048 757) 
ordinary shares of 0,001 cents each 1  1  1  1 1
Share premium 150 556  147 612 150 187 146 997 139 497

150 557  147 612 150 188 146 998 139 498

Reconciliation of number of shares 
issued:
Opening balance  130 487 285  120 287 285 131 151 786 121 151 786 121 151 786
Shares issued for cash –  10 000 000 –  10 000 000 
Acquisition of subsidiary  5 317 431 –  5 317 431 – –
Acquisition of shares by group company (417 418) – – – –
Sale of shares by Accéntuate Limited 
Share Trust in exercise of options –  200 000 – – –

 135 387 298  130 487 285 136 469 217 131 151 786 12 151 786

Included in the number of issued shares by the company are 2 896 971 (2017: 2 896 971) shares owned by the Accentuate 
Limited Share Trust; 1 081 919 (2017: 664 501) treasury shares, which have been eliminated in the group share capital.

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the forthcoming annual general meeting.

 Group  Company

 2018
R’000

 2017
R’000

 2018
R’000

 2017
R’000

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Financial instruments
Trade payables 58 470 25 429  533  533 
Other payables  
Accrued operating expenses and other* 2 574  5 883  44  44 
Non-financial instruments
Payroll accruals 2 788  1 345  –  – 
Bonus accrued  –  3 953  –  – 
Directors’ fees accrued  –  34  –  – 
Leave pay accrued 1 686  2 936  –  – 
Deferred income 430  – 
VAT 240  1 609  –  – 
Amounts received in advance  796  446  –  – 
Withholding tax accrual  1 748  – 
Contingent liability  4 000  – 

14 262  16 206  44  44 

Trade and other payables  72 732 41 635  577  577 

Fair value of trade and other payables
Due to the short-term nature of the group’s trade and other payables, the carrying value approximates their fair value. 
* The above amount includes the share appreciation rights liability.
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 Loans and 
receivables 

R’000

 Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised 
cost

R’000
 Total
R’000

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Group – 2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  6 530 –  6 530 
Trade and other receivables  45 518 –  45 518 
Other financial assets 8 231 –  8 231 

Total financial assets  60 279 –  60 279 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables –  (61 044)  (61 044) 
Other financial liabilities – – –
Bank overdraft –  (17 790)  (17 790) 

Total financial liabilities –  (78 834)  (78 834) 

Group – 2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  201 –  201 
Trade and other receivables  43 188 –  43 188 
Other financial assets  1 726 –  1 726 

Total financial assets  45 115 –  45 115 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables –  (31 312)  (31 312) 
Other financial liabilities –  (579)  (579) 
Bank overdraft –  (8 786)  (8 786) 

Total financial liabilities –  (40 677)  (40 677) 

Company – 2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  30 –  30 
Trade and other receivables – –
Loans to group companies – – –
Other financial assets – – –

Total financial assets 30 – 30

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables –  (44)  (44) 
Loans from group companies –  (17 465)  (17 465) 

Total financial liabilities –  (17 509)  (17 509) 

Company – 2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  34 –  34 
Loans to group companies – – –
Other financial assets  856 –  856 

Total financial assets 890 – 890

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables –  (577)  (577) 
Loans from group companies –  (2 163)  (2 163) 

Total financial liabilities –  (2 740)  (2 740) 
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
During the year the following expenses/(reversals) were recognised in profit or loss regarding share-based payment 
schemes:

 Group  Company 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

Cash settled
– Share appreciation rights – scheme  (906)  (763) – –
– Total shareholder return – scheme  1 161 –
Equity settled
– Share option scheme  (906)  681 – –

 (651)  (82) – –

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payment expense is calculated at grant date and expensed over the vesting 
period of the share options. The total shareholder return scheme and share appreciation rights scheme are accounted for in 
liabilities and the share option scheme is accounted for in equity. 

Total shareholder return scheme
A total shareholder return scheme was approved by the remuneration committee of Accéntuate Limited in May 2017. The 
scheme measures the share performance of Accéntuate Limited over the vesting period of three years against that of the 
JSE All Share Industrial Index. The total shareholder return is calculated using the 90-day VWAP leading up to the start and 
the end of the measurement period. The scheme entitles participants to a cash-settled bonus payment. The options will vest 
automatically on the vesting date at 30 June 2020.

Share appreciation rights
The group has implemented a share appreciation rights (“SARs”) scheme to identified senior executive management. The 
SARs are mostly exercisable equally over five years on 1 April each year, with the SARs issued in 2014 only being exercisable 
in years four and five. The scheme entitles participants to a cash-settled bonus payment. The amount of the payment is 
determined by the increase in the company’s share price between grant date and the exercise date, subject to a minimum 
increase in the share price of CPI plus 2% per annum.

Share option scheme
Options are issued to senior staff at the discretion of the board of directors in terms of the share option scheme which has 
been approved by shareholders. The options vest over three years at 33,3% per annum and expire two years after the date 
of vesting. All options not exercised after two years are forfeited. 

The conditions relating to the scheme are:

 Issue 
date 

 Earliest 
vesting 

date 

 Latest 
vesting 

date 

 Number of 
rights/

options 
granted 

 Vesting 
period 

 Average 
remaining 

contractual 
life (years) 

Total shareholder return 
scheme 1 July 2017 30 June 2020 30 June 2020  5 185 412 3 years 2

Share appreciation 
rights

1 April 2013 1 April 2014 1 April 2018  5 732 200 5 years Vested

1 April 2014 1 April 2018 1 April 2019  5 309 080 5 years 0,75
1 April 2015 1 April 2015 1 April 2020  8 427 578 5 years 1,75

Share options 1 April 2015 1 April 2016 1 April 2019  1 522 722 3 years 0,75

The vesting condition applicable to all the SARs and options is that the participant must remain in service until the date of 
exercise.
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
The following summarises the number of rights/options:

 2018

Number 
of options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price
R

Total shareholder return scheme
Outstanding at beginning of year – –
Adjustment to value from prior year
Granted  5 185 412  0,22 
Forfeited – –
Exercised – –

Outstanding at end of year*  5 185 412  0,22 

 2018  2017

Number 
of options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price
R

Number 
of options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price
R

Share appreciation rights scheme
Outstanding at beginning of year  8 164 680  0,66  17 062 854  0,63 
Adjustment to value from prior year  (3 621 934)  0,63 
Granted  1 185 020  0,81 
Forfeited  (3 771 961) –  (6 461 260)  0,63 
Exercised – – –

Outstanding at end of year*  4 392 719  0,66  8 164 680  0,72 

Share option scheme
Outstanding at beginning of year  1 137 778  0,597  3 496 971  0,598 
Adjustment to value from prior year  757 999  0,598 
Granted – – – –
Forfeited (682 667)  0,597 (3 117 192)  0,597 
Exercised – – – –

Outstanding at end of year*  455 111  0,597  1 137 778  0,598 

Exercisable at end of year – – – –

* The range of issue prices is between 59,7 and 60,0 cents.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018

Total shareholder return
 Share appreciation 

rights scheme  Share option scheme 

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Valuation model  Black-Scholes option 
pricing model 

 Black-Scholes option 
pricing model 

 Black-Scholes option 
pricing model 

Measurement date 30 June 2018 30 June 2018 1 April 2015
Weighted average share price (cents)
Exercise price (cents)
1 April 2013 –  76,70 
1 April 2014 –  59,70 
1 April 2015 –  60,00  60,00 
1 April 2017 –  81,30 
30 June 2017
30 June 2018
Risk-free interest rate Bootstrapped zero 

coupon swap 7,3% – 7,9% 7,7%
Expected volatility 50% – 70% 40% 40%
Expected dividend yield – – –
Vesting period  3 years  5 years  1 – 3 years 
Fair value of rights/options (cents)  22  4,5 – 11,9  16 

The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual term of the share rights was based on the South African long-term 
government bond rate in effect at the time of the grant. The expected volatility in the value of the share rights granted was 
determined using the historical normalised volatility of the Accéntuate share price. A dividend yield of 0% was used as no 
discrete dividends were forecast for the foreseeable future at grant date.

The valuation of the share-based payment expense requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by management.
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 Outstanding 
at beginning 

of year
Issued 

during year
Forfeited 

during year

 Outstanding 
at end 
of year

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
Directors’ total shareholder return rights   
FC Platt – issued in 2018 at R0,223 –  1 728 471 –  1 728 471 
MJ Coetzee – issued in 2018 at R0,223 –  1 728 471 –  1 728 471 
DE Platt – issued in 2018 at R0,223 –  1 728 471 –  1 728 471 

Total shareholder return rights –  5 185 412 –  5 185 412 

Directors’ share appreciation rights 
FC Platt – issued in 2012 at R0,634 – – – –
 – issued in 2013 at R0,766  720 600 –  (720 600) –
 – issued in 2014 at R0,597  1 260 700 –  (630 350)  630 350 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,60  2 007 120 –  (669 040)  1 338 080 

 3 988 420 –  (2 019 990)  1 968 430 

MJ Coetzee – issued in 2017 at R0,813  1 185 020 –  (237 004)  948 016 

 1 185 020 –  (237 004)  948 016 

DE Platt – issued in 2012 at R0,634 – – – –
 – issued in 2013 at R0,766  540 480 –  (540 480) –
 – issued in 2014 at R0,597  945 400 –  (472 700)  472 700 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,60  1 505 360 –  (501 787)  1 003 573 

 2 991 240 –  (1 514 967)  1 476 273 

Total share appreciation rights  8 164 680 –  (3 771 961)  4 392 719 

Directors’ share options
FC Platt – issued in 2015 at R0,60  535 932 –  (321 627) 214 305

DE Platt – issued in 2015 at R0,60  601 846 –  (361 040) 240 806

Total share options 1 137 778 –  (682 667) 455 111

No share options were exercised during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

 Group  Company 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

28. CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS
Operating profit  (23 450)  (16)  (2 437)  (82) 
Adjustments for non-cash items: 1 373  5 707 2 326  – 
– Depreciation and amortisation  6 622  4 608  –  – 
– Impairment of investment in subsidiary  –  –  2 163  – 
– Impairment of inter-group loan  –  – –  – 
– Unrealised profit/(loss) on foreign exchange  (240)  –  –  – 
– Provision for obsolete stock  (58)  –  – 
– Other non-cash items  (4 054)  1 358  163  – 
– Loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed assets  14  (18)  –  – 
– Share-based payment expense  (652)  681  –  – 
– Movement in operating lease accruals  (259)  (722)  –  – 
– Loss from associate  –  –  –  – 

Cash generated by operations before changes  
in working capital (increase)/decrease in working capital  (22 077)  5 691  (111)  (82) 

– Inventories  8 542  23 990  –  – 
– Trade and other receivables  4 567  (10 065)  –  – 
– Trade and other payables  18 518  (6 372)  (533)  – 

9 552  13 444  (644)  (82) 

There were no non-cash financing activities during the current and prior years.

 Group  Company

Net debt reconciliation
2018

R’000
2017

R’000
2018

R’000
2017

R’000

Net debt
Cash and cash equivalents 6 329 201 (4) 34
Borrowings (15 197) –
Finance leases 346 (706) 
Bank overdraft (9 004) (8 786) 

(17 526) (9 291) (4) 34

 Group  Company

Cash flow reconciliation

Cash 
and cash 

equivalents
R’000

Bank 
overdraft

due in 
one year

R’000

Borrowings
due in 

one year
R’000

Finance 
leases
R’000

Total
R’000 

Cash 
and cash 

equivalents
R’000

Opening balance 201 (8 786) – (706) (9 291) 34
Cash flows 6 329 (9 004) (15 197) 346 (17 526) (4)

Closing balance 6 530 (17 790) (15 197) (360) (26 817) 30

 Group  Company 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

29. TAXATION PAID
Balance at beginning of year  1 522  4 716  (5) –
WithholdingWithholding tax accrual of acquisition 
subsidiary  (1 748) – – –
Current normal tax charge (refer to note 9)  (864)  (1 909)  60  (5) 
Interest received/(paid) (61)  23 – –
Balance at end of year 676  (1 522)  (60) –

Tax refund/(paid)  (475)  1 308  (5)  (5) 
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 Group  Company 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

30. COMMITMENTS
Group
The following lease charges are payable on equipment 
and premises:
– Due within one year 15 035  13 690 – –
– Due within two to five years 31 003  32 129 – –
– Due after five years 2 240 – – –

48 277  45 819 – –

Lease payments by the group represent rentals payable by the subsidiaries for certain of its office properties, motor vehicles 
and plant and machinery. All leases are negotiated for an average term of three to five years for plant, machinery, motor 
vehicles and equipment and properties. Rentals are subject to an annual escalation. No contingent rent is payable.

31. RELATED PARTIES
Relationships
Subsidiaries directly owned Refer to note 14 
Subsidiaries indirectly owned SAFIC Black Empowerment Enterprises (Pty) Limited 

SAFIC Facilities Management Services (Pty) Limited 
Associated company Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited 
Share trust Accéntuate Limited Share Trust 

Key senior management
The directors and prescribed officers are defined as key senior management. Details of the directors’ emoluments as 
disclosed in note 33, and shareholding is disclosed in the shareholders’ analysis. The following were regarded as prescribed 
officers: EW Platt (MD of Safic) and PS Dayah (group financial manager).

Inter-company transactions
Transactions between subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Management fees charged by Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Limited 
– FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited  10 424  8 881 
– Safic (Pty) Limited  5 816  3 668 

Rental recoveries charged to fellow subsidiaries by Accéntuate Management Services  
(Pty) Limited
– FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited  6 025  5 329 
– Safic (Pty) Limited  6 297 5 869

Other cost recoveries charged to fellow subsidiaries by Accéntuate Management Services 
(Pty) Limited
– FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited  4 182  4 403 
– Safic (Pty) Limited  2 923  2 069 

Inter-group sales to fellow subsidiaries by Safic (Pty) Limited
– FloorworX (Pty) Limited  5 123  5 387 
Inter-group sales to fellow subsidiaries by FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited
– Pentafloor (Pty) Limited  247 –

Interest charged to fellow subsidiaries by Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Limited
– FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited  13  1 270 
– Safic (Pty) Limited  1 518  1 198 
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction and overview
The group is exposed to a variety of financial risks from its use of financial assets and liabilities:

 • Credit risk
 • Liquidity risk
 • Market risk

 – Interest rate risk
 – Foreign exchange risk

 • Capital risk management

This note presents information about the group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the group’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are 
included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

Risk management framework
The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management 
framework. The board has established the audit and risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and 
monitoring the group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the group’s activities. The group, through its training and management 
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees 
understand their roles and obligations.

The group audit and risk committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the group’s risk management 
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the 
group. The group audit and risk committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both 
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit 
committee.

There have been no changes to the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and methods used to manage 
the risk from the prior year.

Credit risk 
Credit risk relates to the risk of financial loss to the group relating to customers, loans receivables and other financial 
instruments that fail to meet contractual obligations. The potential exposure on these financial instruments is inherent in 
trade receivables, loans, and bank and call deposits.

Trade and other receivables
The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the demographics of the group’s customer base, including the industry and role within the 
supply chain as these may have an influence on credit risk.

The group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before 
the group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

Many of the group’s customers have been transacting with the group for a number of years. In monitoring customer credit 
risk, customers are assessed according to their credit characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, 
geographic location, industry, ageing profile, maturity, existence of previous financial difficulties and sureties and guarantees 
provided. Trade and other receivables relate to a wide spread customers.

The group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and 
other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant 
exposures. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial 
assets.

At the reporting date, the group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which has not been 
adequately provided for. 

The board has delegated the responsibility of managing the credit risk to the managing executives of each subsidiary, who 
are responsible for: 

 • Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities.
 • Reviewing and assessing credit risk.
 • Monitoring the financial position of customers on an ongoing basis.
 • Formulating credit policies in relation to the subsidiary’s business and customer base.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued
Trade and other receivables continued
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Group Company

2018
R’000

 2017
R’000 

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Financial instrument
Trade and other receivables  45 518  43 188 –  – 
Cash and cash equivalents  6 530  201  30  34 
Financial assets  8 231  1 726 –  856 
Loans to group companies – – – –

60 279  45 115 30 890

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation. The group’s financiers have 
initiated a programme to work closely with the management of the group and monitor the group’s cash flow and business 
plan implementation, considering the losses that the organisation has been incurring and the fact that some of the covenants 
relating to the group’s facilities have been breached. 

Typically the group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand or borrowing facilities to meet expected operational 
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of 
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. 
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued
Liquidity risk continued

 Group Company

 Less 
than 
one 

month
R’000 

One 
month 

to three
 months

R’000

Three
 months 

to 12
 months

R’000

One 
year to 

five years
R’000

Total
R’000

 Less 
than 
one 

month
R’000 

One 
month 

to three
 months

R’000

Three
 months 

to 12
 months

R’000

One 
year to 

five years
R’000

Total
R’000

2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents – – 6 530 –  6 530 – –  30 – 30
Trade and other receivables 35 252 9 401 2 350 – 47 003 – – – – –
Other financial assets – – 8 231 – 8 231 – –  – –  – 
Loans to group companies – – – – – – – – – –

Total financial assets 35 252 9 401 17 111 – 61 764 – – 30 – 30

Financial liabilities
Borrowings* 289 868 14 040 – 15 197 – – – – –
Trade and other payables 54 549 14 546 3 637 72 732 44 – – 44
Bank overdraft – – 17 790 – 17 790 – – – – –
Loans from group 
companies – – – – – – – 17 465 – 17 465
Other financial liabilities – – – –  – – – – – –

Total financial liabilities 54 838 15 414 35 467 – 105 719  44 – 17 465 – 17 509

Net liquidity gap (19 586) (6 013) (18 356) – (43 955) (44) – (17 435) (17 479)

2017

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents – –  201 –  201 – –  34 –  34 
Trade and other receivables 35 450 9 453  2 363 – 47 266  – – – – –
Other financial assets – –  1 726 –  1 726 – –  856 –  856 
Loans to group companies – – – – – – – – – –

Total financial assets 35 450 9 453  4 290 – 49 193  – – 890 –  890 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 31 226 8 327 2 082 – 41 635  577 – – –  577 
Bank overdraft – –  8 786 –  8 786 – – – – –
Loans from group 
companies – – – – – – –  2 163 –  2 163 

Other financial liabilities – –  579 –  579 – – – – –

Total financial liabilities 31 226 8 327 11 447 – 51 000  577 –  2 163 –  2 740 

Net liquidity gap 4 223 1 126 (7 156) – (1 807) (577) – (1 273) – (1 850)

*  Borrowings are disclosed as current liabilities on the face of the balance sheet as a result of the breach of covenants as elaborated on in note 22. 

The net liquidity gap that has developed during the 2018 financial year mainly relates to the acquisition that was made of 
Pentafloor (Pty) Limited, which has a credit arrangement with its Chinese supplier that provides it with 180 day credit terms. 
This arrangement ensures that the mentioned account is settled when debtors have been collected from the related 
customers of Pentafloor (Pty) Limited. Management is committed to several plans to address the cash flow of the group. 
Please refer to the going concern statement in the basis of preparation note 2.

Interest rate risk
The group’s cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate owing to 
changes in the market interest rates. The fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The group assumes exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the 
prevailing levels of market interest rates on both the fair value and cash flow risks. 
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Interest rate risk continued
2018

R’000
2017

R’000

Interest-rate sensitivity
Interest-bearing borrowings:
Cash  6 530  201 
Bank overdraft (17 790) (8 786)
Bank loans (15 197) –
Finance leases (360) (706)

Balances exposed to variable interest rates (26 817) (9 291)

The impact on profit and loss if the interest rate had increased or decreased by 100 basis points, with all other variables held 
constant, are set out below:

Interest-bearing 
borrowings

Interest rate 
increase by 

100 basis points

Interest rate 
decrease by 

100 basis points

Balances exposed to variable interest rates 26 817 268 (268)

Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises when commercial transactions are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional 
currency. The group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising primarily with respect to the US dollar and euro. Foreign 
exchange risk arises from commercial transactions in foreign currencies.

The group has set up policies that require group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk using forward exchange 
contracts, transacted with financial institutions on all transactions that expose the entity directly to foreign exchange risk. 
These forward exchange contracts are accounted for as held for trading with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign balances to rand were:

Closing

2018 2017

Currency
US dollar (USD)  13,77  13,26 
Euro (EUR)  16,05  15,16 

Net monetary assets and liabilities exposed to foreign currency risk

 30 June 2018  30 June 2017
USD

 R’000 
EUR

 R’000 
USD

 R’000 
EUR

 R’000 

Trade receivables 845 – 1 018 –
Trade payables (782) (3 311) (463) (1 734)
Foreign exchange contracts
Buy foreign currency (notional amount) 418 2 855 2 009 2 782

Net foreign exchange exposure at 30 June  481 (456)  2 564  1 048 
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued
Foreign exchange risk continued

During the year, the following foreign exchange-related amounts were recognised in profit or loss:

2018
 R’000 

2017
 R’000 

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) included in other income/other expenses  125  17 

Details of the group’s forward exchange contracts are as follows

Imports and payables

Foreign 
currency 
amount

F’000
 Average 
FEC rate 

 Contract 
amount 

 R’000

2018
US dollar 30  12,83  385 
Euro 177  14,86  2 630 

2017
US dollar  153  13,18  2 017 
Euro  185  14,74  2 726 

Sensitivity
The impact of a 10% movement in the relevant exchange rate on profit after taxation on the net exposure at year end will be 
as follows:

 Impact on post-tax profit 

2018
 R’000 

2017
 R’000 

USD/rand exchange rate – 10% increase  35  185 
USD/rand exchange rate – 10% decrease (31) (168)
EUR/rand exchange rate – 10% increase (24)  75 
EUR/rand exchange rate – 10% decrease  30 (69)

Capital risk
The group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it 
can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for others stakeholders and to provide an adequate return to 
shareholders by pricing products and services adequately with a moderate level of risk.

The group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments 
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the group may issue dividends to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The group monitors capital on the basis of net debt-to-total equity ratio. 

The group’s strategy is to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio below 0,60, in order to secure access to finance at a 
reasonable cost. The group’s overall strategy remains unchanged. The debt-to-equity ratio is as follows:

Group

2018
 R’000

2017
 R’000

Total liabilities 113 698 59 770
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (6 530)  (201)

Net debt 107 168 59 569

Total equity  110 341  130 487 

Debt-to-equity ratio  0,97  0,46 

The increased gearing of the group during the financial year ended 30 June 2018 relates mainly to the Pentafloor acquisition. 
The acquisition was financed by a bank loan as set out in note 22 and the entity has special terms with a supplier that has 
increased trade payables significantly during the financial year.
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33. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
33.1 Executive directors’ remuneration – group

Guaranteed
 remuneration

R’000

Other 
expenses

R’000

Retirement 
fund 

contributions
R’000

 Performance-
based 

remuneration 
 R’000

Gains on 
exercise 
of SARs/

share 
options

R’000

Total 
emoluments

R’000

2018
Executive
FC Platt  2 387 502  237  193  154  3 473 
MJ Coetzee  1 497 221  149  121 –  1 988 
DE Platt  2 042 553 316  –  116  3 027

EW Platt 1 692 505  168  165  101  2 631 
PS Dayah  563 156  111 62 –  892 

8 181 1 937 981  541  371  12 011 

2017
Executive
FC Platt  2 890 – 223  211 –  3 324 
CJ Povall (nine months)  1 491 – 107  187 –  1 785 
MJ Coetzee (five months)  680 – 60 – –  740 
DE Platt  2 631 – 429  330 –  3 390 
EW Platt  2 180 – 158  16 –  2 354 
PS Dayah  914 – 126  150 –  1 190 

 10 786 – 1 103  894 –  12 783 

33.2 Non-executive directors’ fees

Group

2018
R’000 

2017
R’000 

RB Patmore  391  328 
NE Ratshikhopha  210  162 
MM du Preez  174  148 
Thebe Investment Corporation (PS Kriel)  123  168 

 898  806 
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION
On 29 September 2017, Accéntuate Limited acquired 100% of the issued shares in Pentafloor (Pty) Limited, a manufacturer 
of access flooring and distributor of commercial flooring, for the consideration of R19,19 million. The acquisition is expected 
to diversify the product offering of the group.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

 R’000 

Plant and equipment  10 492 
Inventories  8 619 
Trade and other receivables  4 295 
Cash and cash equivalents  1 255 
Loan to directors 6 043
Intangible asset: brands  4 398 
Intangible asset: customer relationships  1 910 
Other financial liabilities (2 160)
Contingent liability (4 000)
Finance lease obligations (241)
Deferred tax (3 547)
Current tax payable (3 285)
Trade and other payables (12 592)

Net identifiable assets acquired  9 439 
Goodwill  9 751 

Net assets acquired  19 190 

Purchase consideration paid:
Cash paid  16 000 
Shares issued in Accéntuate Limited  3 190 
Contingent consideration –

Total  19 190 

Purchase consideration – cash flow
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Cash consideration  16 000 
Less: Balances acquired
Cash (1 255)

Net outflow  14 745 

The initial settlement for the acquisition of Pentafloor (Pty) Limited was made during the current financial year as indicated 
above. The sale of shares agreement includes a clause that allows the sellers to an earn out additional settlements over the 
course of two years based on the achievement of profit targets in each financial year of the target. 

The fair value of the 5 317 431 shares as part of the consideration paid for Pentafloor (Pty) Limited was based on the 
published share price on 29 September 2017. 

The financial results of Pentafloor (Pty) Limited have been consolidated into the group results for the nine months ended 
30 June 2018. The turnover included in the consolidated results was R30 465 874 and the relating net profit was 
R1 189 444.

The financial results of Pentafloor (Pty) Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018 indicated that turnover was R39 604 465 
and the relating net profit was R1 848 485.

There is a contingent liability amounting to R4 000 000 arising from a potential claim relating to Pentafloor (Pty) Limited that 
originated during the acquisition of the entity. Should this liability materialise, the group will have a corresponding claim 
against the sellers for the same amount. The contingent liability and indemnification asset have both been included in the 
group results in the directors’ loan as disclosed in notes 25 and 19 respectively.
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35. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Prior period error

35.1 A misstatement of a provision for cartage shipment in the FloorworX division has resulted in a correction of the 2017 
financial accounts by R2,87 million. The restatement has no impact on financial years prior to 2017. The correction of the 
error has resulted in an increase of trade payables, as well as the corresponding decrease in equity and income tax as 
illustrated below:

35.2 A misstatement of turnover relating to inter-divisional sales by Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Limited was disclosed 
as turnover for the period ended 30 June 2017 amounting to R4,965 million, which should have been eliminated. As a result 
of the elimination other operating expenses have also reduced by a similar amount in that financial year. The error had no 
impact on operating profit or any other financial statements. The financial impact of the misstatement is as follows:

 Group

Restated 
Year ended

30 June 2017
 R’000 

Adjustment
 R’000 

Previously 
reported

Year ended
30 June 2017

 R’000 

Effect on the consolidated statement of financial position:
Current assets  131 372  805  130 567 
Taxation receivable  2 022  805  1 217 

Total assets  190 257  805  189 452 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Total equity  130 487  (2 069)  132 556 
Accumulated loss  (45 755)  (2 069)  (43 686) 
Current liabilities  53 157  2 874  50 283 
Trade and other payables  41 635  2 874  38 761 

Total equity and liabilities  190 257  805  189 452 

 Group

Restated 
Year ended

30 June 2017
 R’000 

Adjustment
 R’000 

Previously 
reported

Year ended
30 June 2017

 R’000 

Effect on statement of comprehensive income:
Revenue  295 061  (4 965)  300 026 
Cost of sales  (176 327)  (2 874)  (173 453) 

Gross profit  118 734  (7 839)  126 573 
Other income  12 384 –  12 384 
Operating expenses  (131 134)  4 965  (136 099) 

Operating (loss)/profit before finance costs  (16)  (2 874)  2 858 
Finance income  145 –  145 
Finance costs  (2 420) –  (2 420) 

(Loss)/profit before tax  (2 291)  (2 874)  583 
Taxation  1 139  805  334 

(Loss)/profit for the period  (1 152)  (2 069)  917 

(Loss)/earnings per share (cents) (0,88) 0,70

SECTION 6: 
Annual financial 
statements
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

35. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION continued
35.3 Prior period restatement: Share Trust loan

A loan from Accéntuate Limited was provided to the Accéntuate Share Trust to finance the purchase of Accéntuate shares 
that would be used to settle IFRS 2 Share-based Payment policy requirements. The loan will be reclassified from current 
assets to equity due to the equity nature of these investments.

Company

Restated 
Year ended

30 June 2016
 R’000 

Adjustment
 R’000 

Previously 
reported

Year ended
30 June 2016

 R’000 

Effect on the statement of financial position:
Current assets    
Loans to other group companies –  (3 693) 3 693
Equity and liabilities
Share capital 139 498  (3 693) 143 191
Effect on the statement of changes in equity:    
Total equity    
Share premium 139 497 (3 693) 143 190

Company

Restated 
Year ended

30 June 2017
 R’000 

Adjustment
 R’000 

Previously 
reported

Year ended
30 June 2017

 R’000 

Effect on the statement of financial position:
Current assets    
Loans to other group companies –  (3 533) 3 533
Trade and other receivables –  (160) 160
Equity and liabilities
Share capital 146 998  (3 693) 150 691
Effect on the statement of changes in equity:    
Total equity    
Share premium 146 997 (3 693) 150 690
Effect on the statement of cash flows:    
Cash flows from investing activities    
Proceeds from loans to group companies –  (160) 160 
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35. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION continued
35.4 Prior period restatement: Reclassification of cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows on loans to/from group companies has been reclassified from investing activities to financing activities. The cash 
flows on loans to/from group companies has been reclassified as they are not related to the acquisition of long term assets/
investments.

Company

Restated 
Year ended

30 June 2017
 R’000 

Adjustment
 R’000 

Previously 
reported

Year ended
30 June 2017

 R’000 

Effect on the statement of cash flows:
Cash flows from investing activities    
Payment of loans from group companies –  7 956 (7 956)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of loans from group companies (7 956)  (7 956) –

SECTION 6: 
Annual financial 
statements
P44
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2018

36. SEGMENT REPORT
The group has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the group’s strategic divisions. The strategic 
divisions offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they operate in different markets. 
For each of the strategic divisions, the group executive committee reviews internal management reports on a monthly basis.

Description of segments and principal activities:
1. Flooring: This segment comprises of FloorworX, which manufactures resilient flooring and also imports numerous 

international flooring solutions. Pentafloor is also part of this segment and manufactures and installs access flooring 
solutions. Both entities distribute its products locally and in the rest of Africa. Safic produces adhesives that FloorworX 
applies in the installations made of their products and sales are made at arm’s length.

2. Environmental solutions: This segment consists of our Safic entities, which provide sustainable, customised, 
environmentally acceptable cleaning and maintenance solutions, process chemicals for metal and water treatment, as 
well as confidential blending services to the industrial, commercial, food and beverage, transport, construction and 
government sectors.

3. Corporate: This segment represents the head office of the group where the strategic, governance and treasury 
functions are maintained. The costs related to managing these activities on behalf of the group are charged to the 
operating entities on a monthly basis. The financial impact of these transactions is set out in note 30. This includes all 
transactions required to produce consolidated results for the group.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment 
profit before income tax, as included in the internal management reports. 

 Flooring 
 Environmental  

solutions  Corporate  Consolidated 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

Comprehensive 
income 
Total sales  229 010  232 999  71 006  67 489  12 273  9 086  312 288  309 574 
Less: Inter-
segmental sales  –    –    (5 123)  (5 427)  (12 273)  (9 086)  (17 396)  (14 513)

Revenue  229 010  232 999  65 883  62 062  –    –    294 893  295 061 

Gross profit  92 856  91 034  41 364  39 746  (15 339)  (12 046)  118 881  118 734 

Operating profit  (19 233)  540  (5 117)  (2 379)  900  1 823  (23 450)  (16)
Finance income  47  –    –    144    439  1  486  145 
Finance costs  (444)  (1 270)  (1 397)  (1 384)  (1 679)  234   (3 520)  (2 420)

Profit/(loss) 
before tax  (19 630)  (730)  (6 513)  (3 619)  (341)  2 058  (26 484)  (2 291)
Taxation  5 923  986  120  741  (1 743)  (589)  4 300  1 139 

(Loss)/profit for 
the period  (13 707)  256  (6 393)  (2 877)  (2 083)  1 469  (22 184)  (1 152)
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36. SEGMENT REPORT continued

 Flooring 
 Environmental  

solutions  Corporate  Consolidated 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

 2018
R’000 

 2017
R’000 

Segment assets
Property, plant 
and equipment  58 849  51 313  1 875  2 484  703  542  61 427  54 339 
Goodwill – – – –  9 751 –  9 751 –
Intangible assets –  84  1 276  1 416  5 865 –  7 141  1 500 
Investment in 
subsidiaries – –  190  190  (190)  (190) – –
Deferred taxation – –  1 695  1 575 –  1 471  1 695  3 046 
Inventory  73 064  73 444  7 170  6 713 – –  80 234  80 157 
Trade and other 
receivables  34 474  34 243  11 235  10 505  1 294  2 518  47 003  47 266 
Other financial 
assets  6 330 –  1 902  870 –  856  8 231  1 726 
Current tax 
receivable  2 023 2 022  4 – – –  2 027  2 022 
Loans to group 
companies  3 104  1 651 –  295  (3 104)  (1 946) – –
Cash and cash 
equivalents  5 754  56  720  85  56  60  6 530  201 

 183 598  162 813  26 067  24 132  14 374  3 312  224 039  190 257 

Segment 
liabilities 
Deferred taxation  2 002  6 613 – –  1 643 –  3 645  6 613 
Loans from 
group companies – –  14 123  6 974  (14 123)  (6 974) – –
Trade and other 
payables  58 500  24 276  10 910  9 671  3 322  7 688  72 732  41 635 
Borrowings  396 – – –  14 801 –  15 197 –
Finance lease 
obligation 54 – 201 255 105 451 360 706
Operating lease 
liability  408  487 – –  863  1 530  1 271  1 530 
Current tax 
payable  2 219 – – –  484 13  2 703 500 
Bank overdraft  273 – – –  17 517  8 786  17 790  8 786 

 63 851  31 376  25 234  16 900  24 613  11 494  113 698  59 770 

Other 
information 
Capital 
expenditure  1 991  1 133  281  130  417  333  2 689  1 596 
Depreciation and  
amortisation  4 908  3 325 1 019  1 123  695  160 6 622  4 608 
Cash flows from 
operating 
activities  21 132  11 800  (5 019)  (261)  (10 071)  12 062  6 043  12 477 
Cash flows from 
investing 
activities  (13 817)  (11 815)  5 733  887  (15 731)  (12 702)  (23 815)  (1 089)
Cash flows from 
financing 
activities  (1 890)  –    (65)  (58)  17 054  58  15 098  8 206 
Non-cash items  3 909  3 862  1 268  1 330  (1 565)  2 532 1 373  5 707 
Impairment 
losses  –    –    –    976  –  (976)  –  –   

Major customers are defined as customers whose revenues comprise more than 10% of the total revenue per segment. 
There are no customers that fall into this classification in the group.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the group’s accounting policies.

SECTION 6: 
Annual financial 
statements
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Notice of annual general meeting

ACCÉNTUATE LIMITED
(Registration number: 2004/029691/06) 
JSE share code: ACE
ISIN: ZAE000115986
(“Accéntuate” or “the company”)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting 
(“AGM”) of shareholders of Accéntuate Limited, in respect of the 
year ended 30 June 2018, will be held at Accéntuate Business 
Park, 404 Southern Klipriviersberg Road, Steeledale, 
Johannesburg, on Friday, 18 January 2019 at 10:00. 
Shareholder registration will commence from 09:30.

This notice of AGM includes the attached form of proxy.

Purpose
The purpose of the meeting is to present, consider and adopt 
the annual financial statements of the company for the year 
ended 30 June 2018; to transact the business set out in this 
notice of AGM (“AGM notice”) by considering and, if deemed fit, 
passing, with or without modification, the ordinary and special 
resolutions hereunder; and to transact such other business as 
may be transacted at the AGM. 

Unless otherwise indicated, in order for the ordinary resolutions 
to be adopted, the support of at least 50% (fifty percent) plus 
one vote of the total number of votes, which the shareholders 
present or represent by proxy at this meeting are entitled to 
cast, is required. In order for the special resolutions to be 
adopted, the support of at least 75% (seventy-five percent) 
of the total number of votes, which the shareholders present 
or represented by proxy at this meeting are entitled to cast, 
is required.

Record date, attendance and voting 

2018/2019
Record date for post Friday, 16 November 
Post date Friday, 23 November
Last trade date to vote Tuesday, 8 January
Record date Friday, 11 January 
Proxy forms Wednesday, 16 January
AGM date Friday, 18 January
SENS Friday, 18 January

 • Shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may 
appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote thereat 
in their stead. A proxy need not be a member of the company. 
A form of proxy, which sets out the relevant instructions for 
its completion, is enclosed for the use of a certificated 
shareholder or “own name” registered dematerialised 
shareholder who wishes to be represented at the AGM. 
Completion of a form of proxy will not preclude such 
shareholder from attending and voting (in preference to 
that shareholder’s proxy) at the AGM.

 • The instrument appointing a proxy and the authority (if any) 
under which it is signed must reach the company’s transfer 
secretaries at the address given below by not later than 
10:00 on Wednesday, 16 January 2019.

 • Dematerialised shareholders, other than “own name” 
registered dematerialised shareholders, who wish to attend 
the AGM in person will need to request their Central Securities 
Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker to provide them 
with the necessary letter of representation in terms of the 
custody agreement entered into between such shareholders 
and the CSDP or broker.

 • Dematerialised shareholders, other than “own name” 
registered dematerialised shareholders, who are unable to 
attend the AGM and who wish to be represented thereat, 
must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting 
instructions in terms of the custody agreement entered 
into between them and the CSDP or broker in the manner 
and time stipulated therein.

 • Shareholders present in person, by proxy or by authorised 
representative shall, on a show of hands, have one vote each 
and, on a poll, will have one vote in respect of each share held.

 • In terms of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended (“the 
Companies Act”), any shareholder or proxy who intends to 
attend or participate at the AGM must be able to present 
reasonably satisfactory identification at the meeting for such 
shareholder or proxy to attend and participate at the AGM. 
A green bar-coded identification document or identity card 
issued by the South African Department of Home Affairs, a 
driver’s licence or a valid passport will be accepted at the 
AGM as sufficient identification.

Agenda
1.  Presentation and consideration of the annual financial 

statements of the company, including the reports of the 
auditors and directors and the audit and risk committee for 
the year ended 30 June 2018 as set out in the company’s 
integrated annual report 2018 of which this AGM notice 
forms part.

2.  To consider and, if deemed fit, approve, with or without 
modification, the following ordinary and special resolutions:

Ordinary resolutions
Ordinary resolution number 1: Re-election of 
Ralph Patmore as an independent non-executive 
director of the company 
“Resolved that Ralph Patmore, who retires by rotation in terms 
of the memorandum of incorporation of the company and who, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby 
re-elected and an independent non-executive director of the 
company.”

An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Ralph Patmore 
may be viewed on the company website.
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The remuneration and nominations committee has considered 
Ralph Patmore’s past performance and contribution to the 
company and, in accordance with article 32 of the 
memorandum of incorporation of the company, recommends 
that Ralph Patmore is re-elected as an independent non-
executive director of the company. 

Ordinary resolution number 2: Retirement of 
Thys du Preez as non-executive director of the 
company 
“Resolved that Thys du Preez retires by rotation in terms of the 
memorandum of incorporation of the company and will not be 
available for re-election.”

Reason for ordinary resolution numbers 1 and 2 
The reason for ordinary resolution numbers 1 and 2 is that article 
32 of the memorandum of incorporation requires that one-third 
of the non-executive directors shall retire at the AGM and, if 
eligible, may offer themselves for re-election as directors. 

Ordinary resolution number 3: Confirmation of the 
appointment of the auditor 
“Resolved that the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers 
as independent auditor of the company for the ensuing year (the 
designated auditor being Keeran Ramnarian) on the 
recommendation of the company’s audit and risk committee be 
hereby ratified.”

Reason for ordinary resolution number 3
The reason for ordinary resolution number 3 is that the company, 
being a public listed company, must have its financial results 
audited and such auditor must be appointed or reappointed 
each year at the AGM of the company as required by the 
Companies Act.

Ordinary resolution number 4: Appointment of 
Andile Mjamekwana as a member and chairman of 
the audit and risk committee 
“Resolved that Andile Mjamekwana be elected a member and 
chairman of the audit and risk committee, with effect from the 
conclusion of this AGM in terms of section 94(2) of the 
Companies Act.”

An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Andile Mjamekwana 
may be viewed on the company website.

Ordinary resolution number 5: Appointment of 
Ralph Patmore as a member of the audit and risk 
committee
“Resolved that Ralph Patmore be elected a member of the audit 
and risk committee, with effect from the conclusion of this AGM 
in terms of section 94(2) of the Companies Act.”

An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Ralph Patmore 
may be viewed on the company website.

Ordinary resolution number 6: Appointment of 
Eric Ratshikhopha as a member of the audit and 
risk committee
“Resolved that Eric Ratshikhopha be elected a member of the 
audit and risk committee, with effect from the conclusion of this 
AGM in terms of section 94(2) of the Companies Act.”

An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Eric Ratshikhopha 
may be viewed on the company website.

Reason for ordinary resolution numbers 4 to 6
The reason for ordinary resolution numbers 4 to 6 (inclusive) is 
that the company, being a public listed company, must appoint 
an audit committee as prescribed by sections 66(2) and 94(2) of 
the Companies Act, which also requires that the members of 
such audit committee be appointed, or reappointed, as the case 
may be, at each AGM of a company.

Ordinary resolution number 7: Endorsement of the 
remuneration policy and implementation report
Ordinary resolution 7.1: “Resolved that the company’s 
remuneration policy, as set out in the remuneration report on 
pages 38 to 40 of the integrated annual report of which 
this notice forms part, be and is hereby approved by way of a 
non-binding advisory vote of shareholders of the company in 
terms of the King IV Report on Corporate Governance™.”

Ordinary resolution 7.2: “Resolved that the implementation 
report, as set out on pages 40 and 41 of the integrated annual 
report of which this notice forms part, be and is hereby 
endorsed as a non-binding advisory vote of shareholders of the 
company in terms of the King IV Report on Corporate 
Governance™.”

Reason for ordinary resolution numbers 7.1 and 7.2
The reason for ordinary resolution numbers 7.1 and 7.2 is that 
King IV™ recommends that the remuneration policy of the 
company be endorsed through separate non-binding advisory 
votes by shareholders at the AGM of a company. Failure to pass 
these resolutions will not have legal consequences relating to 
existing arrangements; however, the board of directors of the 
company (“the board”) will take the outcome of the vote into 
consideration when assessing the company’s remuneration 
policy and implementation report.

SECTION 7: 
Annual general meeting
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Notice of annual general meeting continued

Ordinary resolution number 8: The general authority 
to issue unissued but authorised shares for cash 
“Resolved that the directors be authorised pursuant, inter alia, to 
the company’s memorandum of incorporation, until this authority 
lapses at the next AGM of the company, unless it is then 
renewed at the next AGM of the company and provided that it 
shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) months, to allot and issue 
any ordinary shares for cash subject to the JSE Listings 
Requirements on the following basis:
1.  The allotment and issue of the shares must be made to 

persons qualifying as public shareholders as defined in the 
JSE Listings Requirements.

2. The shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must 
be of a class already in issue.

3. The number of shares issued for cash shall not in the 
aggregate in any one financial year exceed 30% (thirty 
percent) of the company’s issued share capital of ordinary 
shares. The number of ordinary shares which may be issued 
shall be based on the number of ordinary shares in issue at 
the date of such issue less any ordinary shares issued during 
the current financial year, provided that any ordinary shares 
to be issued pursuant to a rights issue (announced, 
irrevocable and fully underwritten) or acquisition (concluded 
up to the date of application including announcement of the 
final terms) may be included as though they were shares in 
issue at the date of application.

4. The maximum discount at which ordinary shares may be 
issued is 10% (ten percent) of the weighted average traded 
price on the JSE of those shares measured over the 
30 (thirty) business days prior to the date that the price of 
the issue is agreed by the directors of the company and 
the party subscribing to the shares.

5. After the company has issued shares for cash which 
represent, on a cumulative basis within a financial year, 
5% (five percent) or more of the number of shares in issue 
prior to that issue, the company shall publish an 
announcement containing full details of the issue (including 
the number of shares issued, the average discount to the 
weighted average traded price of the shares over the 
30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue 
is determined or agreed to by the directors and the effect of 
the issue on net asset value and earnings per share), or any 
other announcements that may be required in such regard in 
terms of the JSE Listings Requirements which may be 
applicable from time to time.”

Reason for ordinary resolution number 8
For listed entities wishing to issue shares, it is necessary for the 
board not only to obtain the prior authority of the shareholders 
as may be required in terms of their memorandum of 
incorporation contemplated in ordinary resolution number 10 
on the next page but it is also necessary to obtain the prior 
authority of shareholders in accordance with the Listings 
Requirements of the JSE. The reason for this resolution is 
accordingly to obtain a general authority from shareholders to 

issue shares in compliance with the Listings Requirements of the 
JSE. The authority granted in terms of this resolution number 8 
must accordingly be read together with authority granted in 
terms of ordinary resolution number 9 below and any exercise 
thereof will be subject to the conditions contained in ordinary 
resolution number 8.

Note: This resolution requires the approval of not less than 75% of the votes 

cast by shareholders present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at 

this AGM.

Ordinary resolution number 9: Placing unissued 
ordinary shares under the directors’ control
“Resolved that all the authorised but unissued ordinary shares 
in the capital of the company be and are hereby placed at the 
disposal and under the control of the directors, and that the 
directors be and are hereby authorised to allot, issue and 
otherwise dispose of all or any of such shares at their discretion 
in terms of and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 
and the JSE Listings Requirements and subject to the proviso 
that the aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be 
allotted and issued in terms of this ordinary resolution 10 shall 
be limited to 30% (thirty percent) of the number of ordinary 
shares in issue from time to time.”

Reason for ordinary resolution number 9
The reason for ordinary resolution number 9 is that the board 
requires authority from shareholders in terms of article 5(b) of its 
memorandum of incorporation to issue shares in the company. 
This general authority, once granted, allows the board from time 
to time, when it is appropriate to do so, to issue ordinary shares 
as may be required inter alia in terms of capital raising exercises, 
and to maintain a healthy capital adequacy ratio that may be 
required from time to time. This general authority is subject to 
the restriction that it is limited to 5% of the number of shares in 
issue at 31 December 2018 on the terms more fully set out in 
ordinary resolution number 10 and subject to the further 
restrictions set out in ordinary resolution number 8 above.

Ordinary resolution number 10: Signature of 
documentation
“Resolved that any director or the company secretary of the 
company be and is hereby authorised to sign all documentation 
and do all such things as may be necessary for or incidental to 
the implementation of all special resolutions and all ordinary 
resolutions passed at the AGM.”

Reason for ordinary resolution number 10
The reason for ordinary resolution number 10 is to ensure that 
the resolutions voted favourably upon is duly implemented 
through the delegation of powers provided for in terms of clause 
5.3 of the company’s memorandum of incorporation.
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Special resolutions
Special resolution number 1: Authority to repurchase 
shares 
“Resolved, as a special resolution, that the directors be 
authorised pursuant, inter alia, to the company’s memorandum 
of incorporation until this authority lapses at the next AGM of the 
company, unless it is then renewed at the next AGM of the 
company and provided that this authority shall not extend 
beyond 15 (fifteen) months from the date of passing this special 
resolution, for the company or any subsidiary of the company 
to acquire shares of the company, subject to the JSE Listings 
Requirements, provided that:
1. any such repurchase of securities (which includes shares) 

must be effected through the order book operated by the 
JSE trading system and done without any prior 
understanding or arrangement between the company and 
the counterparty;

2. the company or any subsidiary of the company may only 
appoint one agent to effect any repurchases on its behalf;

3. the company or any subsidiary of the company must be 
authorised thereto by its memorandum of incorporation, 
upon the adoption thereof;

4. the number of shares which may be acquired pursuant 
to this authority in any financial year (which commenced 
1 July 2017) may not in the aggregate exceed 20% (twenty 
percent) of the company’s issued share capital as at the date 
of passing of this special resolution;

5. repurchases of shares may not be made at a price greater 
than 10% (ten percent) above the weighted average of the 
market value of the securities for the 5 (five) business days 
immediately preceding the date on which the transaction 
was effected;

6. repurchases may not be undertaken by the company or one 
of its wholly owned subsidiaries during a prohibited period 
(as defined in paragraph 3.67 of the Listings Requirements 
of the JSE);

7. after the company has acquired shares which constitute, on 
a cumulative basis, 3% (three percent) of the number of 
shares in issue at the time that authority from shareholders 
for the repurchase is granted, the company shall publish an 
announcement to such effect, or any other announcements 
that may be required in such regard in terms of the Listings 
Requirements of the JSE which may be applicable from time 
to time; and

8. the company’s designated adviser shall confirm the 
adequacy of the company’s working capital for purposes of 
undertaking their purchase of shares in writing to the JSE 
prior to entering the market to proceed with any repurchase.

In accordance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE, the 
directors record as follows:

Although there is no immediate intention to effect a repurchase 
of securities (which includes shares) of the company, the 
directors would utilise the general authority to repurchase 
securities as and when suitable opportunities present 
themselves, which opportunities may require expeditious and 
immediate action.

The directors, after considering the maximum number of 
securities (which includes shares) which may be repurchased 
and the price at which the repurchases may take place pursuant 
to the buy-back general authority, are of the opinion that for a 
period of 12 (twelve) months after the date of notice of this 
AGM:

 • the company and group will be able to pay their debts in the 
ordinary course of business;

 • the consolidated assets of the company and group fairly 
valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, will exceed the consolidated liabilities of the 
company and of the group after the buy-back;

 • the share capital and reserves of the company and group will 
be adequate for the purposes of the business of the company 
and its subsidiaries; and

 • the working capital available to the company and its 
subsidiaries will be adequate for the purposes of the business 
of the company and its subsidiaries.”

The following additional information, some of which may appear 
elsewhere in the integrated annual report of which this notice 
forms part, is provided in terms of paragraph 11.26 of the 
Listings Requirements of the JSE for purposes of this general 
authority:

 • Directors – page 12.
 • Significant shareholders – page 42.
 • Directors’ interests in ordinary shares – page 43.
 • Share capital of the company – page 86 to the annual financial 
statements.

Litigation statement
There has been no further legal action instituted by or against 
Accéntuate Limited during the financial year under review. 
Accéntuate Limited was granted a realisation order by the court 
relating to the fraud committed by the convicted financial 
director at FloorworX (Pty) Limited, which was recognised in the 
annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 
and has made substantial progress in liquidating these assets.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors whose names appear on page 12 of the integrated 
annual report collectively and individually accept full 
responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to 
this special resolution and certify that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been omitted 
which would make any statement false or misleading, that all 
reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made 
and that the special resolution contains all information required 
in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Material changes
Other than the facts and developments reported on in the 
integrated annual report, there have been no material changes 
in the affairs or financial position of the company and its 
subsidiaries since 30 June 2018 up to the date of this notice.
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Notice of annual general meeting continued

Reason for and effect of special resolution number 1 
The reason for special resolution number 1 is to afford directors 
of the company or a subsidiary of the company a general 
authority to effect a buy-back of the company’s shares on 
the JSE. 

The effect of the resolution will be that the directors will have the 
authority, subject to the JSE Listings Requirements and the 
Companies Act, to effect acquisitions of the company’s shares 
on the JSE.

Special resolution number 2: Approval of non-
executive directors’ fees
“Resolved that the non-executive directors’ fees for services as 
directors for the period ended 30 June 2018, as set out below, 
be and are hereby approved and that such fees be payable for 
two years after the AGM unless amended at a subsequent 
general meeting.”

Category
Recommended 

remuneration

Chairman R252 000 annual retainer
Board member R91 900 annual retainer

R15 300 per meeting attended
Audit and risk committee
Chairman R20 000 per meeting attended
Member R15 300 per meeting attended
Remuneration and 
nominations committee
Chairman R10 000 per meeting attended
Member R7 800 per meeting attended
Social and ethics 
committee
Chairman R10 000 per meeting attended
Member R7 800 per meeting attended

Reason for and effect of special resolution number 2
The reason for the proposed special resolution is to comply with 
section 66(9) of the Companies Act, which requires the approval 
of directors’ fees prior to the payment of such fees. 

The effect of special resolution number 2 is that the company 
will be able to pay its non-executive directors for the services 
they render to the company as directors without requiring further 
shareholder approval until the next AGM.

Special resolution number 3: Financial assistance to 
related or inter-related entities of the company 
“Resolved that the board of directors is authorised, in terms of 
and subject to the provision of section 45 of the Companies Act, 
to cause the company to provide any financial assistance to any 
company or corporation that is related or inter-related to the 
company (including, without limitation, its subsidiaries) and the 
provision of such financial assistance is hereby approved under 
this special resolution number 3.”

Reasons for and effect of special resolution number 3
Special resolution number 3 is required in terms of section 45 
of the Companies Act to grant the directors of the company the 
authority to cause the company to provide financial assistance to 
any entity which is related or inter-related to the company. This 
special resolution does not authorise the provision of financial 
assistance to a director or prescribed officer of the company.

Special resolution number 4: Financial assistance for 
subscription of securities in the company or to related 
or inter-related entities
“Resolved that the board of directors is authorised, in terms of 
and subject to the provisions of section 44 of the Companies 
Act, to cause the company to provide any financial assistance to 
any persons (as considered by the board as appropriate) for the 
purpose of, or in connection with, the subscription of any option, 
or any securities issued or to be issued by the company, or a 
related or inter-related company, or for the purchase of any 
securities of the company or a related or inter-related company, 
and that the provision of such financial assistance is hereby 
approved under this special resolution number 4.”

Reason for and effect of special resolution number 4
Special resolution number 4 is required in terms of section 44 
of the Companies Act to grant the directors of the company the 
authority to cause the company to provide financial assistance 
for the subscription or purchase of securities in the company 
or any entity which is related or inter-related to the company. 
This special resolution does not authorise the provision of 
financial assistance to a director or prescribed officer of the 
company.

Special resolution number 5: Amendment of the 
memorandum of incorporation
“Resolved that the memorandum of incorporation of the 
company be amended by replacing the word ‘director’ with 
‘non-executive director’ in clause 32(a) relating to the rotation 
of directors.”
 
Reason for and effect of special resolution number 5
The reason for the proposed amendment of this special 
resolution is to clarify that only one-third of non-executive 
directors will rotate for re-election at the annual general meeting.

A form of proxy and notes for the use of the form of proxy are 
attached.

By order of the board

Juba Statutory Services (Pty) Limited
(represented by Sirkien van Schalkwyk)

Company secretary

Johannesburg
23 November 2018
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Form of proxy

ACCÉNTUATE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 
(Registration number 2004/029691/06)
JSE code: ACE ISIN: ZAE000115986
(“Accéntuate” or “the company”)

Form of proxy for the annual general meeting of the company to be held at 10:00 on Friday, 18 January 2019 at the company’s registered offices at 
Accéntuate Business Park, 404 Southern Klipriviersberg Road, Steeledale (“the AGM”). 

For use by certificated shareholders, nominee companies of Central Securities Depository Participants (“CSDP”), brokers’ nominee companies and 
shareholders who have dematerialised their shares and who have elected “own name” registration, who wish to vote on the ordinary and special 
resolutions per the notice of the AGM to which this form is attached. 

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or broker must not complete this form of proxy and must provide their CSDP 
or broker with their voting instructions, except for shareholders who elected “own name” registration in the sub-register through a CSDP, which 
shareholders must complete this form of proxy and lodge it with Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited. Holders of dematerialised shares other 
than with “own name” registration wishing to attend the AGM must inform their CSDP or broker of such intention and request their CSDP or broker to 
issue them with the necessary written authorisation to attend:

I/We (name in block letters) 

of (address)

being the holder(s) of (number) ordinary shares in the company, do hereby appoint

1. or failing him/her

2. or failing him/her

3. the chairman of the AGM as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the AGM of the company, which will be held for the purpose of 
considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment 
thereof, and to vote in favour of and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name(s), 
in accordance with the following instructions (refer to notes to the form of proxy).

Number of shares
In favour of Against Abstain

To consider the presentation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Ordinary resolution number 1:
Re-election of Ralph Patmore as an independent non-executive director of the company
Ordinary resolution number 2:
Retirement of Thys du Preez as non-executive director of the company
Ordinary resolution number 3:
Confirmation of the appointment of the auditor
Ordinary resolution number 4:
Appointment of Andile Mjamekwana as a member and the chairman of the audit and risk committee
Ordinary resolution number 5:
Appointment of Ralph Patmore as a member of the audit and risk committee
Ordinary resolution number 6:
Appointment of Eric Ratshikhopha as a member of the audit and risk committee
Ordinary resolution number 7:
7.1 Endorsement of the remuneration policy
7.2 Endorsement of the implementation report
Ordinary resolution number 8:
The general authority to issue unissued but authorised shares for cash
Ordinary resolution number 9:
Placing unissued ordinary shares under the directors’ control
Ordinary resolution number 10:
Signature of documentation
Special resolution number 1:
Authority to repurchase shares
Special resolution number 2:
Approval of non-executive directors’ fees
Special resolution number 3:
Financial assistance to related or inter-related entities of the company
Special resolution number 4:
Financial assistance for subscription of securities in the company or to related or inter-related entities
Special resolution number 5:
Amendment of the memorandum of incorporation

Signed at on 2019 

Signature

Assisted by (if applicable)
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Notes to the form of proxy

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is 
entitled to appoint an individual as its proxy to attend, participate 
in, speak and vote at the meeting in the place of the 
shareholder. A proxy may delegate the proxy’s authority to 
act on behalf of the shareholders to another person.

A proxy need not be a shareholder of the company.

1. A shareholder may insert the name(s) of one or more proxies 
(none of whom need be a company shareholder) in the 
space provided, with or without deleting the words “the 
chairman of the AGM”. The person whose name stands first 
on the form of proxy and has not been deleted and who is 
present at the AGM will be entitled to act as proxy to the 
exclusion of those whose names follow. In the event that no 
names are indicated, the proxy shall be exercised in favour 
of all resolutions by the chairman.

2. A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated 
by the insertion of an “X” or the relevant number of votes 
exercisable by that shareholder in the appropriate box 
provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed 
to authorise the proxy to vote as he/she deems fit. Where 
the proxy is the chairman, such failure shall be deemed to 
authorise the chairman to vote in favour of the ordinary and 
special resolutions in respect of all the shareholders’ votes 
exercisable thereat.

3. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy shall in 
no way preclude the shareholder from attending, speaking 
and voting in person at the AGM to the exclusion of any 
proxy appointed in terms hereof, subject to the shareholder 
notifying the chairman prior to the commencement of the 
AGM.

4. Should this form of proxy not be completed and/or received 
in accordance with these notes, the chairman may accept or 
reject it, provided that, in respect of its acceptance, the 
chairman is satisfied as to the manner in which the 
shareholder wishes to vote.

5. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of the 
person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity 
must be attached to this form of proxy unless previously 
recorded by the company’s transfer secretaries or waived 
by the chairman of the meeting.

6. Where this form of proxy is signed under power of attorney, 
such power of attorney must accompany this form unless 
it has previously been registered with the company’s 
transfer secretaries.

7. Where shares are held jointly, all joint holders are required 
to sign.

8. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian, 
unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal 
capacity have been produced or have been registered by 
the transfer secretaries of the company.

9. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must 
be signed in full and not initialled by the signatories.

10. This form of proxy must be lodged with, or posted to, the 
transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) 
Limited, Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, 
Johannesburg, 2196 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107) 
so as to be received by not later than 10:00 on Wednesday, 
16 January 2019.

11. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy by 
the shareholders holding certificated shares, nominee 
companies of CSDPs or brokers and the shareholders who 
have dematerialised their shares and who have elected “own 
name” registration will not preclude the relevant shareholder 
from attending the AGM and speaking and voting in person 
thereat, to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms 
thereof. The shareholders who have dematerialised their 
shares other than with “own name” registration, and who 
wish to attend and vote at the AGM, must instruct their 
CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary written 
authority to attend and vote on behalf of the registered 
shareholder.
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Corporate information

Nature of business and principal activities
The group is engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and 
installation of flooring solutions, the manufacturing and supply of 
chemical cleaning, infrastructural maintenance solutions, and the 
supply of chemicals and equipment for water treatment 
solutions. 

Country of incorporation and domicile
South Africa

Company registration number
2004/029691/06

Share code
ACE

ISIN
ZAE000115986

Non-executive directors
RB Patmore (chairman)*
NE Ratshikhopha*
PS Kriel
MM du Preez
A Mjamekwana (alternate)
OJ Goosen (alternate)
* Independent non-executive directors

Executive directors
FC Platt (chief executive officer)
MJ Coetzee (chief financial officer)
DE Platt

Company secretary
Juba Statutory Services (Pty) Limited
(represented by Sirkien van Schalkwyk)

Registered office and business address
Accéntuate Business Park
32 Steele Street
Steeledale
Johannesburg
2197

Postal address
PO Box 1754
Alberton
1450

Telephone
+27(0) 11 406 4100

Email
info@accent.co.za

Website
www.accentuateltd.co.za

Twitter
@AccentuateLtd

Facebook
www.facebook.com/AccentuateLtd

Investor relations
Keyter Rech Investor Solutions
vrech@kris.co.za
www.kris.co.za

Bankers
First National Bank Limited

Attorneys
Fullard Mayer Morrison
4 Morris Street West
Rivonia
2191
PO Box 4475
Rivonia
2128

Designated advisers
Bridge Capital Advisors (Pty) Limited
27 Fricker Road
Illovo
2196
Johannesburg
PO Box 651010
Benmore
2010

Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited
Rosebank Towers
15 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank
Johannesburg
2196
PO Box 61051
Marshalltown
2107

IBC
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